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Chairman’s Statement
TERES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board (the “Board”) of Directors of K2 F&B
Holdings Limited (the “Company”), together with its subsidiaries
(the “Group”), | am pleased to present our annual report of the
Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2024 (“FY2024").

Operational Review

The operating environment in 2024 remained challenging and
dynamic, with global economic uncertainties, inflationary pressures,
and increased labour costs impacting businesses across all
industries. Despite these headwinds, the Group has demonstrated
resilience, adaptability, and financial discipline, allowing us to
navigate the volatility and sustain business growth.

Throughout the year, the Group reviewed its business and asset
portfolio to identify opportunities for greater efficiency and long-
term value creation. As a result of this review, we undertook
several strategic initiatives, including the divestment of assets so
as to reallocate capital towards higher-value growth opportunities.
This strategic realignment ensures that we remain agile and well-
positioned for future expansion.

In September 2024, taking into account the prevailing property
market conditions, the Group disposed its property at 200 Jalan
Sultan for S$8.8 million, recording a gain of S$450,000. The
disposal represented a positive opportunity to realise the value of
the property and the Group can diversify its income streams and
further enhance value for the shareholders. The Group strategically
acquired the property for S$7.3 million in September 2021. The
subsequent disposal at S$8.8 million, after accounting for related
expenses, has generated approximately S$1.3 million in net profit
for the Group from the acquisition date till the date of disposal.

The Group has secured a temporary occupation permit for its new
headquarters and has been progressively relocating to the new
premises. This transition provided an opportunity to sell a portion
of our present office property during the year for S$2.0 million,
resulting in a disposal gain of S$235,000. We expect to officially
launch our new headquarters in 2025.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

FEREE(E)

Operationally, interest rates remained high, which increased
financing costs for businesses. The rising cost of manpower also
presented challenges, particularly in the food and beverage sector,
where labour shortages continued to put pressure on operational
costs. Our Group has proactively adapted to these challenges by
maintaining a disciplined approach to cost management, while
remaining committed to delivering quality, affordability, and
innovation to customers.

New Outlets

As part of our growth strategy, the Group continued to expand its
network of food outlets, focusing on high-demand locations that
offer strong business potential. In 2024, the Group successfully
opened new food establishments, carefully selecting sites based
on foot traffic, consumer demographics, and emerging food trends.
One of these was the new food court at Orchard Cineleisure, a
prime location in the heart of Singapore’s bustling shopping and
entertainment district. This new establishment features 12 food
stalls offering a carefully curated selection of different food types,
catering to the diverse tastes and preferences of our customers.

To create a unique and engaging dining experience, the food court
has been designed with a distinct thematic approach. Recognising
Orchard Cineleisure’s strong appeal among youth, we introduced
a comic-themed dining area, providing a vibrant and visually
captivating space that resonates with younger diners and social
media enthusiasts. Additionally, we have incorporated interactive
elements for families with children, including a large fish tank that
adds a touch of liveliness to the environment, as well as a LEGO
wall that encourages creativity and play while parents enjoy their
meals.

Beyond being a family- and youth-friendly destination, this food
court also serves as an alternative dining option for the surrounding
office crowd and retail staff working in the Orchard area. With an
increasing demand for affordable, high-quality meal choices in this
prime location, our food court provides a convenient and diverse
selection that appeals to both professionals seeking a quick yet
satisfying lunch and retail employees looking for an accessible and
comfortable dining space during their breaks.

As the demand for affordable yet high-quality dining options
remains strong, the Group ensured that its new outlets were
designed to cater to a broad customer base by offering competitive
pricing and a diverse menu selection.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

THERESE (B)

In October 2024, the Group acquired a property for S$9.5 million.
The property is located in the mature residential estate of Ang Mo
Kio and within close proximity to Ang Mo Kio MRT Station, bus
interchange and AMK Hub shopping mall. The property consists
of a unit sub-divided into three smaller units which are presently
engaged in the retail business and are currently tenanted till March,
May and August 2025 respectively. This will enable the Group to
generate additional income and improve the Group's resilience.

While expanding our network, we also took a disciplined approach
to managing our portfolio. Throughout the year, the Group carefully
assessed the performance of food and beverage stalls to determine
their long-term viability. Underperforming stalls were either
repurposed, restructured, or leased out to ensure that resources
were deployed in the most effective manner. By striking a balance
between expansion and portfolio optimisation, the Group has been
able to sustain growth while maximising returns on investment.

Financial Review

For FY2024, the Group recorded consolidated revenue of
approximately S$57.2 million, representing an increase of
approximately 2.7% from S$55.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2023 (“FY2023"). This growth was primarily driven by
higher revenue from rental and related services income.

Despite the challenging operating environment, the Group has
effectively managed costs to maintain profitability. The Group
recorded a consolidated net profit after tax of approximately S$2.8
million for FY2024, representing a decrease of approximately
61.6% from approximately S$7.3 million in FY2023. The decrease
in the profit after tax was primarily attributable to (i) decrease
in fair value changes of investment properties of approximately
S$4.8 million; (i) increase in finance costs of approximately S$0.8
million; (iii) increase in staff costs of approximately S$0.4 million;
(iv) increase in depreciation of right-of-use assets of approximately
S$0.6 million; and partially offset by (v) higher revenue of
approximately S$1.5 million; (vi) decrease in other operating
expenses of approximately S$0.2 million; and (vii) lower cost of
inventories consumed of S$0.2 million.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

FEREE(E)

The balance sheet of the Group remains healthy. The Group
generated cash from operating activities of approximately S$9.6
million, respectively. This was offset by cash used investing
activities approximately S$1.6 million and financing activities of
approximately S$8.3 million, resulting in a net decrease in cash
and cash equivalents from approximately S$7.4 million as at the
beginning of the year to approximately S$7.1 million as at 31
December 2024.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Beyond financial performance, the Group remains deeply
committed to corporate social responsibility and community
engagement. Throughout the year, the Group actively supported
community initiatives and expanded our collaboration with local
community centres and charitable organisations, strengthening our
role as a responsible corporate citizen.

In Singapore, community centres (“CC") function as central
gathering points where residents engage in group activities, access
social support, receive public information, and participate in various
community-focused initiatives. Each year, the Group takes an
active role in events organized by CCs to nurture a strong sense of
community spirit.

Furthermore, the Group consistently collaborates with CCs to
provide community scholarships and distribute food vouchers to
disadvantaged families identified within the local area. Beyond
its involvement with CCs, the Group also demonstrates its
commitment to supporting those in need by making donations to
registered Institutions of Public Character, thereby contributing to
the well-being of the underprivileged.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

THERESE (B)

Outlook

Looking ahead to 2025, the Group recognises that economic
uncertainty remains a key challenge, with inflationary pressures,
fluctuating interest rates, and evolving consumer behaviour shaping
the market landscape. In particular, interest rates are expected to
remain elevated than previously anticipated, which would directly
affect the Group's finance costs. We will closely track interest
rate trends and their effects on the Group’s loans to mitigate any
unfavourable impact on profitability.

Operating in the F&B industry, the Group requires a substantial
workforce relative to its operational scale. The ongoing labour
shortage in the industry is expected to persist, presenting a
continued challenge despite our proactive recruitment and
retention efforts. To remain competitive, we have been refining our
compensation packages and anticipate that labour costs will keep
rising, though at a more gradual pace.

As part of our commitment to sustainable growth, we will adopt
an asset-light model, which focuses on leveraging strategic
partnerships, allocating capital to high-performing assets and divest
underperforming assets when necessary. By doing so, we aim to
enhance operational efficiency, reduce fixed costs, and maintain
greater financial flexibility. This approach allows us to scale rapidly
without being burdened by heavy asset ownership, enabling the
Group to respond more agilely to market changes and seize new
opportunities as they arise.

While we remain cautiously optimistic about the year ahead, we
are prepared to adapt our strategies to navigate these uncertainties
effectively. With a clear vision, disciplined execution, and a strong
foundation, | am confident that the Group is well-positioned to
navigate future challenges and capitalise on new opportunities in
the years ahead.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
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In Appreciation

As we reflect on the past year, | would like to extend my deepest
gratitude to our Board of Directors, management team, and
employees for their unwavering dedication and resilience. Their
hard work and commitment have been instrumental in driving the
Group’s success.

| would also like to express my appreciation to our suppliers,
customers, landlords, tenants and other stakeholders for their
continued trust and collaboration. Finally, | would like to thank our
shareholders for their confidence and support as we continue to
build a stronger and more sustainable future for the Group. We
remain committed to working diligently to enhance shareholder
value and secure long-term growth and success in the years to
come.

Mr. Chu Chee Keong (Zhu Zhigiang)
Chairman

28 March 2025
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Directors and Senior Management

ESheREERE

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Chu Chee Keong (Zhu Zhiqiang) (% & i) ( “Mr. Chu’),
aged 53, has been with the Group since 2004. He is the chairman
of the Board, the chief executive officer of the Company,
an executive Director, and the controlling shareholder of the
Company (the “Controlling Shareholder”), as well as a member
of the nomination committee of the Board (the “Nomination
Committee”), a member of the remuneration committee of the
Board (the “Remuneration Committee”) and a member of the
internal control compliance committee of the Board (the “Internal
Control Compliance Committee”). Mr. Chu was appointed as
a Director on 13 March 2018 and redesignated as an executive
Director, the chairman of the Board and chief executive officer
of the Company on 30 August 2018. He is primarily responsible
for the overall strategic planning, management and operation of
the Group. Mr. Chu is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company.

Mr. Chu is an entrepreneur and has over 20 years of experience
in the food and beverage industry. Since May 1993, Mr. Chu has
been the sole proprietor of E Teng What Fisheries, a business
principally engaged in wholesale import, export and retail of fishes,
and he was primarily responsible for the overall management of
the business. Since July 2002, Mr. Chu has been working in Fu
Chan Food Paradise, a sole-proprietor business that is principally
engaged in food and beverage industry.

Save for being the spouse of Ms. Leow Poh Hoon (Liao Baoyun)
and the father of Mr. Chu Pok Chong, Ivan, both executive
Directors, Mr. Chu does not have any relationship with other
Directors and members of the senior management of the Group.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EEhEREEE(B)

Ms. Leow Poh Hoon (Liao Baoyun) (EEZ=) ( “Ms. Leow”), aged
54, has been with the Group since January 2004 as operations
manager of Fu Chan F&B Pte Ltd. She was appointed as a Director
on 13 March 2018 and re-designated as an executive Director on
30 August 2018. She is primarily responsible for the day-to-day
operation, budget and strategic planning and administration of the
Group. Ms. Leow is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company.

Ms. Leow has over 20 years of experience in the food and
beverage industry. Prior to joining the Group, from October 1992
to July 2000, Ms. Leow worked in E Teng What Fisheries as an
operation assistant, being primarily responsible for operation of
business. Since April 2003, Ms. Leow began working in Fu Chan
Food Paradise together with Mr. Chu, being primarily responsible
for operation of business.

Save for being the spouse of Mr. Chu and the mother of Mr. Chu
Pok Chong, Ivan, both executive Directors, Ms. Leow does not
have any relationship with other Directors and members of the
senior management of the Group.

Mr. Chu Pok Chong, Ivan (% 1EE8¥) ( “Mr. Ivan Chu”), aged 31,
has been appointed as a non-executive Director on 1 April 2024 and
was re-designated as an executive Director on 15 October 2025.
Mr. Ivan Chu is the son of Mr. Chu and Ms. Leow, both executive
Directors.

Mr. Ivan Chu is responsible for managing the daily operations of
food centers, driving property management initiatives, overseeing
mergers and acquisitions, and ensuring alignment with the Group's
budgetary goals and long-term strategic objectives.

Mr. Ivan Chu graduated with a Bachelor’'s degree with Honours
in Mechatronics Engineering from Curtin University in Western
Australia in 2024. Preceding his academic pursuits, Mr. Ivan
Chu accumulated over 3 years of professional experience as
an Operation Manager in a Singapore-incorporated Precision
Engineering company based in Ningbo, China. He was responsible
for overseeing the daily operations of the factory and developing
strategies to maximise and effectively manage its supply chain
productivity. Mr. Ivan Chu was also involved in public relations,
specifically global client relationship management, and the
execution of corporate initiatives.

Save for being the son of Mr. Chu and Ms. Leow, Mr. Ivan Chu
does not have any relationship with other Directors and members
of the senior management of the Group.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EEhEaREEE(B)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Wong Loke Tan ( “Mr. Wong”), aged 69, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 1 February 2019. He
is the chairman of the Nomination Committee, a member of the
audit committee of the Board (the "Audit Committee”) and a
member of the Remuneration Committee. He is responsible for
providing independent judgment on issues of policy, accountability,
resources and standard of conduct.

Mr. Wong has over 30 years of banking experience. His experience
and expertise span across syndicated loans, project financing,
structured trade financing and mergers and acquisitions. Before
joining the Group, Mr. Wong worked in various international banks
including OCBC Bank where he worked from 1989 to 2003 and
was responsible for handling various portfolios of corporate clients.
From July 2003 to his retirement in June 2016, he worked at
Maybank, with his last position as senior vice president and head of
Singapore main branch business centre in the bank’'s commercial
banking unit, where he built a strong SME portfolio consisting of
many established players in their respective industries in Singapore.

Mr. Wong is an independent director of the following listed
companies:

(a)  Union Steel Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Mainboard of Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited
(the "SGX-ST") (stock code: BLA.SI);

(b)  Adventus Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Catalist
board of the SGX-ST (stock code: 5EF.SI);

(c) International Cement Group Ltd, a company listed on the
Mainboard of the SGX-ST (stock code: KUO.SI); and

(d) Travelite Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Mainboard of Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited
(the "SGX-ST") (stock code: BCZ.Sl);

Mr. Wong is also the non-executive independent chairman of Koyo
International Limited, a company listed on the Catalist board of the
SGX-ST (stock code: KOYO.SI).

BYFHTES

Wong Loke Tan 5t % ([ Wong 5%t 4£/) * 69
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Mr. Wong is dedicated to contribute to civic organisations such as
the Saint Gabriel's School Management Committee in Singapore.
In 2018, he was awarded the silver medallion service award
by the Ministry of Education of Singapore in recognition of his
contributions and services.

Mr. Wong obtained his master of business administration degree
from Brunel University London in the United Kingdom in May 1996.
He later obtained an executive diploma in directorship from the
Singapore Management University and the Singapore Institute of
Directors in March 2013.

Mr. Mah Seong Kung (S # /) ( “Mr. Mah”), aged 57, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 1 February
2019. He is the chairman of the Audit Committee, a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee. He is
responsible for providing independent judgment on issues of policy,
accountability and reporting, resources and standard of conduct.

Mr. Mah obtained his bachelor's degree of accountancy from the
National University of Singapore in 1991. He is also a chartered
accountant of the Institute of Singapore Chartered Accountants.
Mr. Mah is currently an associate partner of Biztrack Consultants
Private Limited, a nominated advisor with the National Stock
Exchange of Australia ("NSX").

Mr. Mah has over 30 years of industry experience by having
worked in managerial positions of an entertainment content
production company, licensed capital market services advisory
firm, public listed education provider and investment company,
and as an investment manager of private equity fund management
company.
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Mr. Ng Yong Hwee (# R #) ( “Mr. Ng”), aged 60, joined the
Board of Directors on 29 June 2021. He is currently the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and Nomination Committee.

Apart from the K2 F&B Holdings Limited, Mr Ng is also an
Independent Director of SGX-listed Serial System Limited and
Eneco Energy Limited.

Mr. Ng holds a Bachelor of Arts and Social Sciences degree
from the National University of Singapore and an MBA from the
Business School, University of Warwick in the United Kingdom. He
has worked for both global and Asian multinational corporations
and Temasek-linked companies such as Esso, BASF and GE and
was the Chief Executive Officer of City Gas and Netlink. Mr. Ng is
also a Senior Accredited Board Director of the Singapore Institute
of Directors.

ERELXLE(EXLE] 6057 1202146
A20BMAE=E - REANAFHEESE:
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Man Yun Wah (3 #Z) ( “Mr. Man”), aged 42, was appointed
as the company secretary of the Company on 30 September 2020.

Mr. Man holds a bachelor’'s degree in business administration and
management and a master’s degree in corporate governance. He is
currently an associate member of both The Chartered Governance
Institute and The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute.
Mr. Man has extensive experience in the company secretarial
profession.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yin Hongzhi (F41#8) ( “Mr. Yin”), aged 46, joined the Group
in October 2021 as the financial controller. Mr. Yin is primarily
responsible for the overall accounting and financial management,
project management, strategic planning and internal control of the
Group.

Mr. Yin has more than 10 years of working experience in the
external audit. Before joining the Group, he worked in three
established Certified Public Accountant firms in Singapore. Mr. Yin
was in charge of the statutory audit of several the SGX-ST listed
companies, major subsidiaries of companies that listed in London
Stock Exchange and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
and multinational corporations covering a wide range of industries.

Mr. Yin graduated from Harbin Institute of Technology, the People's
Republic of China with a bachelor’'s degree in civil engineering in
July 2002. He also obtained an Honors bachelor’s degree in applied
accounting of Oxford Brookes University in the United Kingdom in
July 2008. Mr. Yin has been the Chartered Accountant of Singapore
since 2014.

Ms. Koh Poy Poy (£EZ &) ( “Ms. Koh”), aged 46, is the head
of food centre operations of the Group. She joined the Group in
February 2008 as an accounts assistant where she was initially
responsible for accounts related work and assisting in day to day
business operations. Ms. Koh was promoted to the position of
operation assistant in May 2015 and began also to oversee human
resources and operation matters of the Group. In June 2018, she
was further promoted to current position as head of food centre
operations of the Group. Ms. Koh is responsible for the overall
management and oversight of all food establishments, including but
not limited to setting up of new food establishments, coordinating
with all parties and monitoring compliance with applicable laws,
regulations and licensing requirements across the Group.

Before joining the Group in February 2008, Ms. Koh worked in
various industries in Malaysia.
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND PROSPECT

The core business and revenue structure of the Group remain
unchanged. The Group owns and operates food centres in
Singapore since 2004. The revenue of the Group is primarily
derived from the Group’s two main operating business segments,
being (i) the rental and outlet management operation which
involves the leasing of food establishment premises to tenants and
the provision of cleaning and utilities services to tenants (the
“Rental and Outlet Management”), and (ii) the food and
beverage stalls operation which comprises the retailing of
beverage, tobacco products, and cooked food directly to
consumers such as mixed vegetable rice, zi char, roasted meat and
chicken rice located in food establishments operated and managed
by the Group and third parties (the “Food and Beverage Stalls”).

As at 31 December 2024, the Group owned and managed 24 food
centres as follows:

FBoERRE

AEENZOLER LB EZEBRFTE - K
SEB 2004 FRNFINEHER RKLEEXRTP
Do ARENKRBETERBERAEEN M E
BEXBHR B RAEAFPEERES
Rk mBEPRHEBEERABEXRBENES
RiEHEESE ((HEREREER]) ALK
BRUNAEBERE=ZTREREENRE
(BRELDEERNEEETERM ER
EmLkAR (SRR 2Y  FERER)
BB BRI 2 8 -

R2024F 12 A31H REBHEAE REEI
T24fEERP D

FY2024 FY2023
2024 BT E B 2023 EFE

Food centres owned and/or managed  ANEBE%HA K& oS B
by the Group ERAFL 24 24

The following sets forth the changes in the number of food centres
owned and/or managed by the Group under the Outlet
Management and Leasing Business for the year stated below:

FXBIIAREE R EREEREE L
THES R RERERTOORELD -

Number of food centres as at 1 January 2024 R2024F1 A1HENERFPLEE 24
Number of food centres opened during 2024 R2024 FHRBHERFLEE 1

Number of food centres closed during 2024 R2024 FHEHENERFPLEE (1)
Number of food centres as at 31 December 2024 MR2024F 12 A3THWERFPLEE 24

The Group operated 48 food and beverage stalls as at 31
December 2024 as follows:

MR2024F12 318 » REBEKLE LT 481E
BHREN

FY2024 FY2023

2024 T F E 2023 B 2

In owned properties BRAWE 14 17

In leased properties HEM=E 19 27
In food centres managed by HEVE=-FEEMERF DL

independent third parties 15 19

Total HEt 48 63
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The following sets forth the changes in the number of food and
beverage stalls under the F&B Retail Business for FY2024 stated
below:

Number of food and beverage stalls as at 1 January 2024
Number of food and beverage stalls opened during 2024
Number of food and beverage stalls closed during 2024
Number of food and beverage stalls as at 31 December 2024

The operating environment for the food and beverage industry in
Singapore remains challenging and dynamic. Elevated interest rates
have led to increased financing costs for businesses, while rising
manpower costs and ongoing labour shortages continue to exert
pressure on operational expenses. Despite these challenges, the
Group has demonstrated resilience, adaptability, and financial
discipline, enabling us to navigate market volatility while sustaining
business growth. Moving forward, our strategic development
initiatives will focus on the following key areas:

° Divesting lower-performing assets to reallocate capital
towards higher-value growth opportunities.

° Expanding our network of food outlets, with a focus on high-
demand locations that offer strong business potential.

o Strengthening our presence in Singapore by opening new
food establishments.

° Upgrading existing food center to create a distinctive and
engaging dining experience.

By executing these initiatives, the Group aims to drive sustainable
growth and enhance long-term value for our stakeholders.

T%ﬁﬂzozﬂﬁﬂzifﬂ% REEEB T
BRBEUNBES

R2024F1 A1 HHERIENEZE 63
M2024 FHBHZERIBAEE 7
MR2024 FHEENZ BN EE (22)
2024412 A31 BB RER 82 48
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group recorded an increase in revenue of approximately S$1.5
million or 2.7% from approximately S$55.7 million for FY2023 to
approximately S$57.2 million for FY2024. This growth was primarily
driven by higher revenue from rental and related services income.

The revenue generated from sale of cooked food, beverages and
tobacco products decreased by approximately S$0.6 million or
1.4% from approximately S$43.9 million for FY2023 to
approximately S$43.3 million for FY2024. The decrease was mainly
attributed to the closure of underperforming food and beverage
stalls during the financial year as part of the Group’s ongoing
operational optimisation strategy.

The revenue generated from rental income from lease of premises
to tenants and provision of cleaning and utilities services increased
by approximately S$2.1 million or 17.8% from approximately
S$11.8 million for FY2023 to approximately S$13.9 million for
FY2024, which was mainly due to a higher occupancy rate and
improved leasing terms compared to FY2023.

20
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The following table sets forth the breakdown of revenue by the  TFEREFIIR=ALERIE| DB U SRR ¢
three categories:
2024 2023
2024 & 2023 4F
S$$'000 % S$'000 %
FH T % FHEINE T %
Revenue from contracts EEEHWE
with customers
Sales of goods at a point in time RE—FRE2
HEEMD
— Sales of cooked food, —HEHRR -
beverage and tobacco Ko M EE
products E 43,282 75.7% 43,891 78.7%
Services income over time R—ERRREAR
PR 75 WA
— Provision of cleaning and — mEFREM
utilities services to BR R AR
tenants ES 3087 4,679 8.2% 3,949 7.1%
47,961 47,840
Revenue from other sources H 3R Wz
Rent from leases of premises BNk R Ay
to tenants HE 9,211 16.1% 7,900 14.2%
57,172 100.0% 55,740 100.0%

Both revenue streams from lease of premises and provision of
cleaning and utilities services were under the Group’s Rental and
Outlet Management business segment, while sales of cooked
food, beverage and tobacco products was under the Group's Food
and Beverage Stalls business segment.

Fair Value Gain of Investment Properties

Fair value gain of investment properties depended largely on
economic conditions, property market sentiment and other factors.
The fair values of the Group's investment properties were
determined by comparable sales method. The assessment of fair
values of investment properties was carried out by Knight Frank
Pte. Ltd., an established independent qualified professional valuer
in Singapore having no connection with the Group, which
possesses appropriate qualifications and experience in valuation of
investment properties owned by the Group.

KEEEZmREHERRAAEERBEH
WRRBAEEES REHEBREBDE
MEEAR HKmhEEERBAEEER
AV PR

REWMEN R ERE
BREVMERAFERESERAREE LBURRE

ERE MEMBRALEMEZ - AEH
WEMENRFETIARE LR EERETE -
WEMEQNFET GHEAEETEBEN
FMENBBILA BB EGHERMKnight
Frank Pte. Ltd.#7T - HAEHANSEFR#ESR
WEYERETHENBEE BB RER -
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Other income, gains and losses, net

Other income, gains and losses, net decreased by approximately
S$0.1 million, or 8.3%, from approximately S$1.2 million in FY2023
to approximately S$1.1 million in FY2024. The decline was mainly
due to the absence of a one-time gain of approximately S$1.2
million from the disposal of a subsidiary in FY2023. However, this
was partially offset by a gain of S$0.5 million from the disposal of
an investment property in FY2024. Additionally, the Group recorded
a gain of S$0.2 million from the disposal of property, plant, and
equipment in FY2024, compared to a loss of S$0.2 million in
FY2023.

Cost of Inventories Consumed

The cost of inventories consumed decreased by approximately
S%$0.2 million or 1.1% from approximately S$18.7 million in FY2023
to approximately S$18.5 million in FY2024, which was in line with
the decrease in revenue from sale of the cooked food, beverages
and tobacco products. The cost of inventories consumed decreased
at a slower rate as compared to sale of the cooked food, beverages
and tobacco products mainly due to the inflation. The cost of
inventories consumed primarily represents the cost of purchases
of food ingredients for its food and beverage retail business,
consisting of fresh and frozen meat, seafood, vegetables, eggs,
dried food, canned food, seasonings, beverages, coffee powder
and cigarettes.

Staff Costs

Staff costs were the second largest component of the operating
expenses and amounted to approximately S$17.0 million and
S$17.4 million for FY2023 and FY2024, respectively, which
accounted for approximately 30.4% and 30.5% of the revenue of
the respective periods. The increase of approximately S$0.4 million
or 2.4% was due to the increase in salaries during FY2024.

22
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Property Rentals and Related Expenses

The property rentals and related expenses primarily represent the
rental expenses paid for leasing of properties from independent
third parties for the operation of short-term food and beverage
stalls and food centres. The property rentals and related expenses
increased by approximately S$0.2 million or 4.5% from
approximately S$4.4 million for FY2023 to approximately S$4.6
million for FY2024, which was mainly due to the higher rental rate
in FY2024 compared to FY2023.

Management, Cleaning and Utilities Expenses

The management, cleaning and utilities expenses decreased by
approximately S$0.1 million or 2.9% from approximately S$3.4
million for FY2023 to approximately S$3.3 million for FY2024. The
decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease in utility expenses
as a result of lower electricity tariffs during FY2024.

YEEE REBAX
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Other Operating Expenses

Other operating expenses decreased by approximately S$0.2
million, or 4.9%, from approximately S$4.1 million in FY2023 to
approximately S$3.9 million in FY2024. The decline was primarily
due to (i) lower advertisement and promotion fees paid to food
delivery platforms, resulting from a decrease in sales through such
platforms; and (i) a reduction in legal and professional fees as part
of the Group’s cost control measures. This decrease was partially
offset by an increase in donations, as the Group took on greater

H &<

Hi e 2 MY M08 HFENL418 S
FIF TR A0 2B EFTNHEITHA9% =
2024 R FE M HIB.9E BH M T o B
DEZEHN()BARMEXAFERHEERD
BYIHTFREFENESRHEEARK

R (i) VE R AR B AR S i H) — B8 2

A

BRREXERRD - R D HIBFIE AT ED
DHEE AAREEAREAMGELRE

social responsibility initiatives to enhance its branding. AIRFA MR -
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
S$°000 S$'000
FH M T T hniE T
Administrative fee THRER 1,016 979
Advertisement and promotion EEREE 71 169
Insurance R 48 34
Property tax and related costs W) ZE B N AR B K AR 625 644
Repairs and maintenance e RIRE 802 788
Legal and professional fee FEREEER 554 745
Telephone and communication B EE 58 48
Donation B 521 419
Others H 233 301
3,928 4,127
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Finance Costs

The finance costs increased by approximately S$0.8 million or
28.6% from approximately S$2.8 million for FY2023 to
approximately S$3.6 million for FY2024, which was mainly
attributable to higher interest rates on outstanding loans.

Taxation

The income tax expense decreased slightly by approximately S$0.3
million or 50.0% from approximately S$0.6 million in FY2023 to
approximately S$0.3 million in FY2024. The decrease was primarily
due to underprovision of tax in prior years recognised in FY2023.

Profit for the Year

The decrease in the profit after tax was primarily attributable to (i)
decrease in fair value changes of investment properties of
approximately S$4.8 million; (ii) increase in finance costs of
approximately S$0.8 million; (iii) increase in staff costs of
approximately S$0.4 million; (iv) increase in depreciation of right-of-
use assets of approximately S$0.6 million; and partially offset by (v)
higher revenue of approximately S$1.5 million; (vi) decrease in
other operating expenses of approximately S$0.2 million; and (vii)
lower cost of inventories consumed of S$0.2 million.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had no material capital
commitment.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

On 14 October 2024, an indirect owned subsidiary of the Company
acquired the entire equity interest of New Chance Properties Pte.
Ltd at a total consideration of S$9,500,000.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

As majority of the operations of the Group were located in
Singapore, all revenue from customers of the Group were derived
from activities in Singapore.

During FY2024, the Group did not experience any significant
difficulty or impact on its operations or liquidity due to fluctuations
in currency exchange rates. The management will continue to
monitor the foreign exchange exposure and take prudent measures
to reduce foreign exchange risks.

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity
position throughout FY2024. The finance department of the Group
was responsible for treasury management functions, which
include, amongst others, researching and evaluating investment
options for further consideration by the management and the
Board, and monitoring the investments on a continuous basis.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD

During FY2024, the Group held no significant investment.
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BIEEN WA (8)

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group's key financial
position indicators as follows:

RBEERUBER

P 20244 % 2023412 A31H - REBK E
EMBAREFEOT -

2024 2023

2024 2023

S$$'000 S$'000

T Fr o T TFHhns T

Current assets B EE 9,779 10,768
Current liabilities mEEE 23,217 20,378
Net current liabilities MEBEFE (13,438) (9,610)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFEIRITER 95,668 90,653
Equity M 89,208 86,418

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had aggregate outstanding
bank borrowings of approximately S$95.7 million, which was an
increase of approximately S$5.0 million or 5.5% from
approximately S$90.7 million as at 31 December 2023. The
increase was mainly due to new financing secured for the
acquisition of an investment property at Block 710A Ang Mo Kio
Avenue 8 #01-2625, Singapore 561710. This was partially offset by
loan redemptions related to the disposal of investment properties
at 200 Jalan Sultan, #01-05 Textile Centre, Singapore 199018, and
51 Ubi Avenue 1 #01-18, Singapore 408933.

These bank borrowings consisted of term loans, secured mortgage
loans and working capital loan. The working capital loan, term loans
and secured mortgage loans related to financing for the purchase
of property, plant and equipment and investment properties were
secured by the respective assets, corporate guarantee provided by
the Company and its subsidiaries.

The Group had unutilised banking facilities of approximately S$10.8
million. The Group aims at maintaining flexibility in funding by
keeping sufficient bank balances and committed credit lines
available to manage its business in a manner consistent with the
short-term and long-term financial strategies of the Group.
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GEARING RATIO

Gearing ratio is calculated based on the interest-bearing liabilities
divided by the total equity as at the respective year/period end and
multiplied by 100%. The Group's interest-bearing liabilities mainly
comprised bank borrowings for the purchase of the properties. As
at 31 December 2024, the Group’s gearing ratio was approximately
107.2%, increased from approximately 104.9% as at 31 December
2023. The change in the Group's gearing ratio was primarily due to
new financing secured for the acquisition of an investment property
at Block 710A Ang Mo Kio Avenue 8 #01-2625, Singapore 561710.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had a total of 381 employees
(2023: 412). The gender ratio of the Group's workforce (including
senior management) was approximately 57.2% male to
approximately 42.8% female. The Group shall continue to take into
account diversity perspectives including gender diversity in its
hiring of employees from time to time. The Group’s remuneration
policies were in line with the prevailing market practice and were
determined on the basis of performance, qualification and
experience of each individual employee. The Group recognised the
importance of a good relationship with its employees. The
remuneration payable to its employees included salaries,
allowances and performance bonuses.
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Corporate Governance Report
TRERWME

The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report in
the annual report of the Company for FY2024.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to maintaining high corporate governance
standards to safeguard the interests of Shareholders, enhance
corporate value, formulate its business strategies and policies,
and enhance its transparency and accountability. The Company’s
corporate governance practices are based on the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the “"CG
Code"”) contained in Appendix C1 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the "Listing Rules”).
During FY2024, the Company has adopted and, save for the
deviation from code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code as disclosed
in this report, has complied with all applicable code provisions as
set out in the CG Code. The Group will continue to review and
enhance its corporate governance practices to ensure its continued
compliance with the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") as
set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiry with all the Directors and each of the Directors confirmed
that he/she had complied with the Model Code for FY2024.

The Company has also established written guidelines (the
“"Employees Written Guidelines”) no less exacting than the
Model Code for securities transactions by employees who are
likely to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive information
of the Company. No incident of non-compliance of the Employees
Written Guidelines by the employees was noted by the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Responsibilities

The Board is primarily responsible for overseeing and supervising
the management of business affairs and overall and performance
of the Group.

The Board reserves its decisions for all major matters of the
Company, including the approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control systems,
risk management systems, material transactions (in particular
those that may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
change of Directors, ad hoc projects and other significant financial
and operational matters. The Board has the full support of the
management to discharge its responsibilities.

The day to day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to executive Directors and the senior
management. The delegated functions and work tasks are
periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board
prior to any significant transactions entered into by the above
mentioned officers.

The Directors have full access to information of the Group and
the management has an obligation to supply the Directors with
adequate information in a timely manner to enable the Directors
to perform their responsibilities. The Directors are entitled to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at
the Company's expense.

In addition, the Board has also delegated various responsibilities to
the board committees of the Company. Further details of the board
committees of the Company are set out on pages 35 to 42 of this
annual report.

For FY2024, the Board has reviewed the above arrangements for
the delegation of responsibilities to the senior management and
considered it to be appropriate.
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Directors and officers’ liabilities

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnity the Directors for their liabilities arising from corporate
activities. The insurance coverage will be reviewed on an annual
basis.

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises six Directors, consisting of three
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors
as detailed below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chu Chee Keong (Zhu Zhigiang)
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. Leow Poh Hoon (Liao Baoyun)

Mr. Chu Pok Chong, Ivan (appointed as a non-executive
Director on 1 April 2024 and re-designated to
an executive Director on 15 October 2024) Mot

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Mah Seong Kung

Mr. Ng Yong Hwee

Mr. Wong Loke Tan

Note: Mr. Chu Pok Chong, Ivan , being appointed on 1 April 2024, obtained the legal
advice referred to in Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules on 1 April 2024, and he
confirmed that she understood his obligations as a Director.

During FY2024, save as disclosed in this report, there was no
change in the composition of the Board.

The biographical information of the Directors is set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 11
to 17 of this annual report.

Ms. Leow is the spouse of Mr. Chu and Mr. Ilvan Chu is the son of
Mr. Chu and Ms. Leow.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 11 to 17 of this annual report, the
Directors have no other financial, business, family or other material,
reference relationships with each other.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision C.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Under the current organisational
structure of the Company, Mr. Chu is the chairman and chief
executive officer of the Company. With extensive experience in
the food and beverage industry, the Board considers that vesting
the roles of chairman and chief executive officer in the same
person is beneficial to the business prospects and management
of the Group. The balance of power and authority is ensured
by the operation of the senior management and the Board,
which comprise experienced and high caliber individuals. The
Board currently comprises three executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors, therefore the Board has a
strong independence element in its composition.

Independent non-executive Directors

During FY2024, the Board at all times met the requirements of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors representing one-third
of the Board. These independent non-executive Directors are
seasoned individuals from diversified backgrounds and industries
and one member has the appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The independent non-executive Directors serve the relevant
function of bringing independent judgment and advice on the
overall management of the Company. They take the lead where
potential conflicts of interests arise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of
his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules for
FY2024. The Company is of the view that all independent non-
executive Directors meet the independence guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent in accordance
with the terms of the guidelines throughout FY2024.

32

K2 F&BHOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUALREPORT 2024

ERRITHAR

SFRHEXE C2 KR E - EFRITEAEM
BeEERY  BTER—ARBET-R
BARRMIRITARZERE %%Eﬁﬁ$
RIEBRITHAE - BEREREREL
Kh - EFEeRAMAER— Aﬁ&{ﬁ&ﬁﬂ
BEMBEIRAEENESISRER -
SRERELEAEBERMA M ALTHK
MESES - A FE(RE D SR 2 A ArHlE -
EZQENACERTESE R -RE IR

TEZHAK MEZTSEHETO B -
BYFHITESE
R4 B FEHHE EFe —EEFLEM

RAUABRZERI=2(HER=2Z—EF
EREB)BIUIFNTES - RFBUIFNTE
FNREZTIEEERITENEREE AL
HEHh— 2R BHBEEEXERA RN
M EE R

BIYFATEFTREEHBE RARFW
%%ﬁﬁ%1ﬁiﬂ%& R BRALE
25 & CREREIEEEIEE -

ARARBEWESBULIERITESRE LR
B 313 EBH 2024 B TR E S 7 ¥ <7 M 82
B FERRE - AQARE BB
%ﬁ%%?AimﬁW%3BM%ﬁ5 a3
h%ﬁ@%h%ﬁﬁﬂ%ﬂmm%ﬁi&ﬁ
B -



Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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Board Independence Evaluation

The Company recognises the importance of the Board
independence to corporate governance. In particular, in order to
ensure the strong independence of the Board and make ensure
that the Board can obtain independent views and opinions, the
following mechanisms are required: 1) in assessing the qualification
of potential candidates to become independent Directors, the
Nomination Committee and the Board will consider, among others,
whether the candidates are able to dedicate sufficient time to
fulfill their duties as independent Directors and the candidates’
backgrounds and qualifications, in order to assess whether such
candidates are able to bring an independent view to the Board;
and 2) the Nomination Committee is authorized to assess the
independence of all independent non-executive Directors on an
annual basis with reference to the independence criteria set out in
the Listing Rules so as to ensure that they can continue to exercise
independent judgment.

All Directors have full and timely access to all information of the
Company and to the advice and services of the company secretary
and senior management of the Company. Directors are generally
entitled to seek independent professional advice on the discharge
of their duties to the Company in appropriate circumstances upon
request and at our Company’s expense.

At the same time, the Company has formulated internal policies
(including but not limited to the Company’s articles of association
(the “Articles of Association”), the terms of reference of
the Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee) to ensure that the Board is provided with
independent views and opinions. For FY2024, the Company has
reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the above
mechanism and is of the view that the above mechanism is able
to ensure that the Board is provided with independent views and
opinions.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial fixed term of three years and will
continue thereafter until terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either party on the other. The executive
Directors can only serve the termination notice after the initial fixed
term in accordance with their service contract.

Each of the non-executive Director has entered into an appointment
letter with the Company with no fixed term of service and shall
continue thereafter on a yearly basis up to a maximum of three
years, until terminated by either party giving not less than three
months’ notice in writing to the other.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company for an initial fixed term
of one year and will continue thereafter until terminated by not less
than one month's notice in writing by served by either party on the
other.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation). In accordance
with the Articles of Association, all the Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and any new
Director appointed to fill a causal vacancy shall submit himself
for election by the Shareholders at the first general meeting of
the Company after appointment and new Director appointed as
an addition to the Board shall submit himself for re-election by
Shareholders at the next following annual general meeting of the
Company (the “Annual General Meeting") after appointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association.
The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the
Board composition, monitoring the appointment, re-election and
succession planning of Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

To oversee particular aspect of the Company’s affairs, the
Board has established four Board committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Internal Control Compliance Committee
(together, the “Board Committees”). The Board has delegated
responsibilities to the Board Committees as set out in their
respective terms of reference.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 1 February
2019 with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21
of the Listing Rules and the CG Code as set out in Appendix C1
to the Listing Rules. The written terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

The principal roles and functions of the Audit Committee include
but are not limited to:

° making recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, approving
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditor, and handling any question of resignation or dismissal
of that auditor;

° reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s
independence, objectivity and the effectiveness of the
audit process in accordance with applicable standards and
discussing with the auditor the nature and scope of the audit
and reporting obligations before the commercial of the audit;

° developing and implementing a policy on the engagement of
an external auditor to supply non-audit services;

° monitoring the integrity of the Company's financial
statements, annual report and accounts, half-year report and
quarterly reports, and reviewing significant financial reporting
judgments contained in them;
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discussing the Company's risk management and internal
control systems with the Company’s management to ensure
that it has performed its duty in having effective internal
control systems. This discussion should include the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function;

considering major investigation findings on risk management
and internal control matters as delegated by the Board or
on its own initiative and management’'s response to these
findings;

ensuring co-ordination between the internal and external
auditors, and to ensure that the Internal Audit Function is
adequately resourced and has appropriate standing within the
Company, and reviewing and monitoring its effectiveness;

reviewing the external auditor’'s management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management in
respect of the accounting records, financial accounts or
systems of control and management’s response;

ensuring that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor's management letter;

reporting to the Board on the matters in the terms of
reference of the Audit Committee;

considering other topics, as defined by the Board;

acting as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor;

reviewing the Group's financial and accounting policies and
practices; and

establishing a whistle blowing policy and system for
employees and those who deal with the Company (e.g.,
customers and suppliers) so that they can, in confidence, to
raise concerns about possible improprieties in any matter
related to the Company and ensure that proper arrangements
are in place for fair and independent investigation of these
matters.
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The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Mah (chairman), Mr. Wong and Mr. Ng.

The members of the Audit Committee possess appropriate
professional qualifications and/or experience in financial matters.

The Audit Committee reviewed, together with senior management
and the external auditors, the financial statements for the six
months ended 30 June 2024 and for FY2024, the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Company, statutory
compliance, other financial reporting matters, risk management and
internal control systems and continuing connected transactions of
the Company.

During FY2024, the Audit Committee held four meetings including
the interim results of the Company for the six months ended 30
June 2024 and the annual results of the Company for FY2023.
Details of the attendance of the members of the Audit Committee
in the said meetings are set out under the sub-heading “Attendance
Records of Directors and Board Committee Members"” on page 44
of this annual report.

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board (which
endorsed the recommendation) that, subject to Shareholders’
approval at the Company's forthcoming Annual General Meeting,
Fan, Chan & Co. Limited be re-appointed as the Company’s
external auditors for the year 2025.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 1
February 2019 with written terms of reference in compliance with
Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the CG Code. The written terms
of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The principal roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee
include but are not limited to:

° making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration of all Directors
and members of the senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure in the
development of a remuneration policy;

° making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of all individual executive Directors and members
of the senior management, including benefits in kind and
compensation payments;

° reviewing and approving the management’s performance-
based remuneration proposals by reference to the Board's
corporate goals and objectives from time to time;

° ensuring that no Director or any of his/her associate(s) is
involved in deciding his/her own remuneration;

° making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive Directors;

° considering factors such as salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the
directors, and employment conditions elsewhere in the Group
and desirability of performance-based remuneration; and

° reviewing and approving compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management of the Company for any
loss or termination of office or appointment to ensure that it
is consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair and
not excessive.

° reviewing and/approving matters relating to share schemes
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.
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The Remuneration Committee comprises one executive Director,
namely Mr. Chu, and three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Ng (chairman), Mr. Wong and Mr. Mah.

During FY2024, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting
to review terms of remuneration package offered to Directors and
senior management.

Details of the attendance of the members of the Remuneration
Committee in the said meetings are set out under the sub-
heading “Attendance Records of Directors and Board Committee
Members"” on page 44 of this annual report.

Details of the fees and other emoluments paid or payable to the
Directors and the five individuals with the highest emoluments
are set out in notes 10 and 11 to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for FY2024 (the “Consolidated Financial
Statements”) respectively.

The remuneration paid to members of the senior management by
band during FY2024 is set out below:
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BIEE10 11 °
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PZER®

Number of Individuals

In Singapore dollars ( “S$”) LA 3 o ([ $hn3g 7o 1) & AE
0-200,000 0-200,000 2
Directors Remuneration Policy EEHMBECE

The Company has adopted a director Remuneration Policy
(the “"Director Remuneration Policy”), it sets out the general
principles which guide the Group to deal with the remuneration
matters. This remuneration policy aims to provide a fair market
level of remuneration to retain and motivate high quality directors,
senior management of the Group and attract experienced people
of high calibre to oversee the business and development of the
Group.
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Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 1
February 2019 with written terms of reference in compliance with
the CG Code. The written terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee are available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

The principal roles and functions of the Nomination Committee
include but are not limited to:

o reviewing the structure, size and diversity (including without
limitation, gender, age, cultural and educational background,
skills, knowledge, professional qualifications and industry
experience) of the Board at least on an annual basis and
making recommendations on any proposed change to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

° identifying individuals who are suitably qualified to become
Board members and selecting or making recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships;

° assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

° making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or reappointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the chairman of the Board and the
chief executive officer of the Company; and

° developing and reviewing the policy of the Board on diversity
and measurable objectives for implementing such policy
from time to time and adopted by the Board and reviewing
progress on achieving the objectives.
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The Nomination Committee consults the chairman of the Board
about his proposals relating to the process for Board appointments
and for identifying and nominating candidates as members of the
Board.

The criteria for the Nomination Committee to select and
recommend a candidate for directorship include the candidate’s
skills, knowledge, experience and integrity and whether he/she can
demonstrate a standard of competence commensurate with his/
her position as a director of the Company.

The Nomination Committee has also adopted a nomination policy
(the “Nomination Policy”) which sets out the selection criteria
and procedure of appointing and re-appointing a Director. Details
of the Nomination Policy are set out under the sub-heading
“Nomination Policy” on pages 47 to 48 of this annual report.

The selection criteria used in assessing the suitability of a candidate
include, inter alia, his/her academic background and professional
qualifications, relevant experience in the industry, character and
integrity and whether he/she can contribute to the diversity of
the Board as detailed in the board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”). Details of the Board Diversity Policy are set out
under the sub-heading “Board Diversity Policy” on page 46 of this
annual report.

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive Director,
namely Mr. Chu, and three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Wong (chairman), Mr. Mah and Mr. Ng.

During FY2024, the Nomination Committee held one meeting to
recommend the Board on the re-election of Directors.

Details of the attendance of the members of the Nomination
Committee in the said meeting are set out under the sub-
heading “Attendance Records of Directors and Board Committee
Members"” on page 44 of this annual report.
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Internal Control Compliance Committee

The Company established the Internal Control Compliance
Committee on 1 February 2019 with written terms of reference in
compliance with the CG Code.

The principal roles and functions of the Internal Control Compliance
Committee include the following:

° monitoring and ensuring the Group's compliance with
Singapore laws, rules and regulations as applicable to the
Group’s operations;

° providing status reports to the Board on a regular basis;
° engaging external advisers where necessary; and

o taking all necessary measures as it thinks appropriate to
ensure the aforesaid measures are properly implemented.

The Internal Control Compliance Committee comprises one
executive Director, namely Mr. Chu, one independent non-
executive Director, namely Mr. Ng (chairman) and a member of the
senior management team of the Company, namely Mr. Yin.

During FY2024, the Internal Control Compliance Committee held
one meeting to review the Company’s policies and practices on
its internal control and policies and practices and compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements.

Details of the attendance of the members of the Internal Control
Compliance Committee in the said meetings are set out under
the sub-heading “Attendance Records of Directors and Board
Committee Members" on page 44 of this annual report.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code:

developing and reviewing the Company’'s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and members of
the senior management;

reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
and compliance manual applicable to employees and the
Directors; and

reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

During FY2024, the Board had reviewed the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance issues, the Company’s
compliance with CG Code, the Company's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance
of the Model Code and Written Employee Guidelines, the
disclosure in the corporate governance report, and monitored the
training and continuous professional development of the Directors
and members of the senior management.
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ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS AND EEREEZEEREHETE
BOARD COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each Director at the Board, the Board &EZWR2024FEHBEERTNEES &
Committee meetings and the general meeting of the Company Z=ZEBE€€ZRARAIREAS 2 HE
held in FY2024 is set out in the table below: BN TR

Attended/ Eligible to attend

HERE/ SERERRE
Internal
Control Annual
Audit Remuneration  Nomination ~ Compliance General
Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting
AR
Name of Directors E3E EZg BWZEE §MZEE REZEE  SHZEE WREFAE
Executive Directors yES
Mr. Chu REE 4/4 - n - 7n 7n
Ms. Leow Byt 44 - - - - i
Ms. Chu Pek Si (Zhu Peishi) Kkt n - - - - N/A
(resigned on 30 April 2024) (2024 F4 B30 AHHE)
Mr. van Chu (appointed as anon- R EE (R 2024F4 718 33 - - - - n
executive Directoron 1 April 2024 and EZE BHTEZTH
re-designated to an executive Director 2024410 A 15 BT A
on 15 October 2024) #H1EE)
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
Directors
Mr. Wong Wong £ 4 414 444 11 i1 - 1
Mr. Mah oik 4/4 44 n 7n - 7n
Mr. Ng EEE 44 44 I 1L 1L 1L
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Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Newly appointed Director will be arranged a comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction which includes provision of key guidelines,
documents and publications relevant to their roles, responsibilities
and ongoing obligations; a briefing on the Company’s structure,
businesses, risk management and other governance practices
and meeting with other fellow Directors so as to help the newly
appointed Directors familiarize with the management, business and
governance policies and practices of the Company, and ensure that
they have a proper understanding of the operations and businesses
of the Company.

The Company will from time to time arrange continuing
professional development training for the Directors such as
internally-facilitated briefings and provision of reading material on
relevant topics to ensure the Directors keep abreast of regulatory
developments and changes in order to effectively perform their
responsibilities and to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. All Directors are also encouraged to
attend relevant training courses at the Company’s expense.

The following Directors pursued continuous professional
development and relevant details are summarised as follows:

EENREERERE

MEZTESHERM2E L REHH
ABBEI HTeRRHERSZAG BE
RIFEEGHABOBRES  XHERTY
BENBARRNRE X RREERER
HibE R R RIEEMEZTGHRESH -
EYHFEEEABTARANEE - EBUR
ERBREMERLERREEE THARA]

ARAB AR REELTHRERERERIT -
A ED A N SR AR R RO B FE AR - B
REZZEZERRNEZUNEIETH
B YHEAREAEMBERATHESSFL
HEER - ARR B I AAEE L FE A
EAIRIE - BEREANREALE -

TINEFCETHBESERRE  ARAFBEM
M

Attended
services/ Reading
briefings materials
Name of Directors EEnA HERE BN RIEM B
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Chu KAk Vv v
Ms. Leow B4 vV Vv
Ms. Chu Pek Si (Zhu Peishi) KAF 22 (742024 F v vV
(resigned on 30 April 2024) 4 A30 HEHT)
Mr. Ivan Chu (appointed as a non-executive 51882 56 4 (742024 F v v
Director on 1 April 2024 and re-designated 4 A1 BEZI A
to an executive Director on 15 October FEHITESI RN
2024) 202410 A 15 H
FAERBINITES)
Independent non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. Wong Wong %t 4 v Vv
Mr. Mah %4 Vv v
Mr. Ng i v vV
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted Board Diversity Policy which sets out the
approach to achieve diversity of the Board.

The Board sees diversity at the Board level as an essential element
in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and its
sustainable development. In designing the Board's composition,
the board diversity has been considered from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service and any other factors that the Board might
consider relevant and applicable from time to time. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination Committee
will review annually the structure, size and composition of the
Board and where appropriate, make recommendations on changes
to the Board to complement the Company's corporate strategy and
to ensure that the Board maintains a balanced diverse profile.

The Company aims to maintain an appropriate balance of diversity
perspectives that are relevant to the Company’s business growth
and is also committed to ensure that recruitment and selection
practices at all levels (from the Board downwards) are appropriately
structured so that a diverse range of candidates are considered.

At present, the Nomination Committee considers that the existing
Board Diversity Policy is sufficient to serve the purpose and will review
the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

Currently, the Board consists of six members who have accounting
or financial expertise, professional qualifications, or experience
related to the industry where the Company operates, one of whom
is a female Director. The Nomination Committee has reviewed the
policy concerning the diversity of Board members and believes
that the Board has already had a diverse mix of gender, skills,
knowledge and experience. The Company will strive to achieve
gender balance of the Board through the following measures to be
implemented by the Nomination Committee in accordance with the
Board Diversity Policy. The Company will actively identify female
individuals suitably qualified to become the Board members.
To further ensure gender diversity of the Board in the long run,
the Group will take opportunities to increase the proportion of
female members of the Board, identify and select several female
individuals with a diverse range of skills, experience and knowledge
in different fields from time to time, and maintain a list of such
female individuals who possess qualities to become the Board
members, which will be reviewed by the Nomination Committee
periodically in order to develop a pipeline of potential successors to
the Board to promote gender diversity of the Board.
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for
selection and appointment of Directors to the Nomination
Committee.

The Company has adopted a Nomination Policy which sets out
the selection criteria and process and the Board succession
planning considerations in relation to nomination and appointment
of Directors and aims to ensure that the Board has a balance of
skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to
the Company and the continuity of the Board and appropriate
leadership at Board level.

The Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the
suitability and the potential contribution to the Board of a proposed
candidate, including but not limited to the following:

° character and integrity;

° qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy;

o diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age (18 years or above), cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service;

° requirements of the proposed independent non-executive
Directors;

° independence of independent non-executive Directors in
accordance with the Listing Rules;

° directorship in other public companies and corporate
governance structure of these companies; and

° commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest
to discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or Board
Committee(s).
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The procedure of appointing and re-appointing a Director is
summarised as follows:

nomination and invitation of suitable candidates by any
member of the Nomination Committee or the Board,;

° evaluation of the candidate by the Board based on all
selection criteria as set out in the Nomination Policy;

° performing due diligence in respect of each candidate and
making recommendation for the Board's consideration and
approval;

° in the case of the nomination of an independent non-
executive Director, assessing the candidate’s independence
under the relevant code provisions from the CG Code and the
Listing Rules;

° where nominating an independent non-executive Director
for election at general meetings, having due consideration of
matters under code provision B.3.4 of the CG Code;

° in the context of the re-appointment of retiring Directors,
reviewing the candidate’'s overall contribution and
performance and making recommendations to the Board and/
or the Shareholders in connection with his/her re-election at
general meeting; and

° convening a meeting of the Board to consider the
appointment or re-appointment of the candidate as a Director.

The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

48 K2 F&B HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2024

ZEREHZEEFTNEFSENT

. EE%E%i,\E.&%%A{EHW,\k%&
A E AR

. %$A$E?F?%%ESZ”EP§Wﬁﬁ*ﬁ%%%
SRR NEITRTE

e MBREBAETEBES UREFE
ZEZRAER DR

s MIERWIUNFMNTEF RIRBLEEXE
Y8 ST RIJE9 AR BE <7 UGS R £ T AR RI RS
fREN 2 BILIE -

o F?;%%ﬁiiﬁﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁémﬁﬁ?ﬁ@ig
BE - BEZELEEARATASANEX
FBI4IGERTEIE

e REFZARAEZZEBERT B
REAERBERERERR ITMNESE
M/SBRRIBEHEBERBRREAS LS
REAMNER &

s AHAHEFECR TREZEXENZE
3% ﬁi%ﬁ

RAZBEHERFRNERRE  BRITZ
B



Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TEBERW®E (E)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group on an on-
going basis and reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems are
designed to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and they can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in
achieving the Company's strategic objectives, and establishing and
maintaining appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the management
and overseeing the design, implementation and monitoring of the
risk management and internal control systems.

The Company has developed and adopted various risk
management procedures and guidelines with defined authority for
implementation by key business processes and office functions,
including project management, sales and leasing, financial
reporting, human resources and information technology.

All divisions/departments have conducted internal control
assessment regularly to identify risks that potentially impact
the business of the Group and various aspects including key
operational and financial processes, regulatory compliance and
information security. Self-evaluation has been conducted annually
to confirm that control policies are properly complied with by each
division/department.

During FY2024, the Board, through the Audit Committee,
conducted a review of the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group, including the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experiences, training
programmes, internal audit and financial reporting functions. In this
respect, the Audit Committee communicates any material issue to
the Board.

K2 F&B HOLDINGS LIMITED / 2024 5 =

[\ B i B % P BB A

EEemRESEREAEERARERERA
FRERHE I E LA R sf E AR & A - 1t F 1l
faﬁaﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁi EERER BIRZAE

WER BB RERRA KB REHAE
ﬁ#%@ﬁ%ﬁz

E=ZEERBECHAMNEEARARAREN

REBEABEAZEZEREENEE Wi

S REREBRARERE R KRG

HE -

%ﬁéAE%%% PEEEENMEER
FYHER aﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁTﬂrm&% i

&%%°

AAREBRETYHEMZHES EWHNRARE
BREFRIES  UNEBRETBEBERF LBA

Bt 2EEATE HELEE HBR
& ANER KRS B -

P 93 &0 BB PIE BAME 1T AP B IE AT Al - U
%%ﬂ$%l%%&%ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁig%@&

MGiEr BEEARKENRR) ABE
EHE R $QTM1¢Eﬁ§ﬁ%EMﬁ

REDE,/ BB E BBIEEITER

R2024MBFE - EE QB BERZESY
REE 7 ke I N A BB I R At B AU
ETEZ BRERNANIE -BITEER
&5 I - REPE AR S B 7 R AR A -
BERZEERBAEFTERBIEMERMHRE

49



Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TEEARE (B

The internal auditor is responsible for performing independent
review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems. The internal audit function examined
the key issues in relation to the accounting practices and all
material controls and provided its findings and recommendations
for improvement to the Audit Committee.

The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee, the management
report and the internal audit findings, reviewed the risk
management and internal control systems, including the financial,
operational and compliance controls, during FY2024 and considered
that such systems are effective and adequate. The annual review
also covered the financial reporting and internal audit function and
staff qualifications, experiences and relevant resources.

INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company takes the Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information issued by the Securities and Futures Commission
of Hong Kong as the Company's basis of identification of inside
information, to ensure the timely report of inside information to the
executive Directors and maintain communication with the Board.
Meanwhile, the Company handles and disseminates the inside
information according to the related policy of the Company to
ensure that the inside information is kept confidential before being
approved for dissemination and the relevant information will be
released effectively and consistently.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for FY2024.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainty relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out
in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 124 to 131 of this
annual report.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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TERBEARS (B)

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY AND ANTI-
CORRUPTION POLICY

The Company has formulated whistle blowing policy that allows
all staff and independent third parties, including customers,
suppliers and contractors, to report any possible improprieties,
misconducts, malpractices or irregularities in matters of financial
reporting, internal control or other matters to the Board or the Audit
Committee anonymously. The Group will handle the reports and
complaints with care and will treat the whistle-blower’s concerns
fairly and properly. Any person who is found to have victimized or
retaliated against those who have raised concerns under this policy
will subject to disciplinary sanctions.

The Group has adopted anti-corruption policy on a zero-tolerance
basis for any form of corruption, including bribery and extortion,
fraud and money laundering, and promise to operate our business
in an honest, ethical and creditable manner. The policies are revised
in due course and all Directors and employees are reminded with
its requirement from time to time.

Please refer to the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”
contained in this report for more details.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TEREARS (B

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

An analysis of the remuneration paid to the external auditors of
the Company, Fan, Chan & Co. Limited, in respect of services for
FY2024 is set out below:

BHET &

72024 B R JE 5h AR 76 B AN AR A B AN AZ B
EERETAITER AR MBS 5 H2m
T

Fee Paid/Payable

ENER ENER

(S$'000)

Service Category PR 75 28 Bl (F#rhni )

Audit service ZE R

— annual audit services — FEZERS 115

Non-audit service IEZBURTS 34

Total @st 149
COMPANY SECRETARY DARAWE

The Company has engaged In.Corp Corporate Services (HK)
Limited, an external service provider, and Mr. Man Yun Wah has
been appointed as the Company’s company secretary. Mr. Man
Yun Wah's primary contact person at the Company is Mr. Yin
Hongzhi, the financial controller of the Company. He reports to the
chairman and/or the chief executive of the Company.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the

company secretary on corporate governance and board practices
and matters.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TEBERW®E (E)

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The Company engages with Shareholders through various
communication channels and a shareholders’ communication policy
is in place to ensure that Shareholders’ views and concerns are
appropriately addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to ensure
its effectiveness.

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, separate resolutions
should be proposed for each substantially separate issue at
general meetings, including the election of individual Director. All
resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange after each
general meeting.

Procedures for Convening an Extraordinary General
Meeting and Putting Forward Proposals at Extraordinary
General Meeting

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles of Association, the Board may,
whenever it thinks fit, convene an extraordinary general meeting.

Any one or more members holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the Company’s company secretary, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

The requisition must state clearly the name of the requisitionist(s),
their shareholding in the Company, the reason(s) to convene an
extraordinary general meeting, the agenda proposed to be included
and the details of the business(es) proposed to be transacted in the
extraordinary general meeting and signed by the requisitionist(s).
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Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiry to the Board, the Shareholders
may send written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not
normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: Unit 1307A, 13/F
Two Harbourfront
22 Tak Fung Street, Hunghom
Kowloon, Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 3422 8030

Email: feedback@fuchangroup.com

For the avoidance of doubt, the Shareholders must deposit
and send the original duly signed written requisition, notice or
statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address
and provide their full name, contact details and identification in
order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be
disclosed as required by law.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TEBERW®E (E)

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with the
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance and
strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going
dialogue with the Shareholders and in particular, through the Annual
General Meetings and other general meetings. At the Annual
General Meeting, Directors (or their delegates as appropriate) are
available to meet the Shareholders and answer their enquiries.

To promote effective communication, the Company adopts
a communication policy for the Shareholders which aims at
establishing a two-way relationship, communicating between
the Company and the Shareholders and maintaining a website
at www.fuchangroup.com, where up-to-date information on the
Company’s business operations and developments, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other information
are available for public access. The Company concluded that this
communication policy was effective.

During FY2024, the Company has not made any change to the
Articles of Association. An up-to-date version of the Articles of
Association is also available on the Company’s website and the
Stock Exchange’s website.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy on payment of
dividends. The Company does not have any pre-determined
dividend payout ratio. Depending on the financial conditions of the
Company and the Group and the conditions and factors as set out
in the dividend policy, dividends may be proposed and/or declared
by the Board during a financial year and any final dividend for a
financial year will be subject to the Shareholders’ approval at the
Annual General Meeting.
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Directors’ Report
EERRE

The Directors present herewith their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for FY2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company was incorporated and registered in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability on 13 March 2018. The Shares were
initially listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 6 March
2019 (the “Listing Date").

The Company is an investment holding company. Details of the
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note
41 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for FY2024. During
FY2024, there was no significant change in the nature of the
Group’s principal activities.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group's revenue and contribution to the results
by principal operating activities and the Group's assets and
liabilities by reportable segments of operations for FY2024 is set
out in note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for FY2024.
All of the Group’s businesses were carried out in Singapore during
FY2024 and all of the Group's revenue from external customers
was generated in Singapore during FY2024.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group as at 31 December 2024
together with the future business development is set out in the
sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 5 to 10 and pages 18 to 28
respectively of this annual report. A description of the Group's
corporate governance and the Group's risk management and
internal control system is provided in the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report” on pages 29 to 55 of this annual report. A
discussion on the Group's environmental policies, relationships
with its key stakeholders and the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group are provided in the section
headed “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages
75 to 123 of this annual report.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Consolidated Financial Statements are set out on pages 132 to
231 of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
FY2024 (2023: S$Nil).

The forthcoming Annual General Meeting will be held on Friday, 27
June 2025. A notice of which shall be sent to the shareholders of
the Company in accordance with the Articles, the Listing Rules and
other applicable laws and regulations.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the Shareholders’ entitlement to attend and
vote at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 24 June
2025 to Friday, 27 June 2025, both days inclusive, during which no
transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. To be eligible
to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting, all transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar,
Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited of 2103B, 21st Floor, 148
Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Monday, 23 June 2025 or at another time and/or date
as advised.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during FY2024 are set out in note 16 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for FY2024.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the investment properties of the Group
during FY2024 are set out in note 15 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for FY2024. All of the Group’s investment properties
were revalued by independent professional property valuers as at
31 December 2024 using the direct comparison method.
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BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2024
are set out in note 26 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for
FY2024.

SHARES CAPITAL

Details of the movement in the share capital of the Company
during FY2024 are set out in note 29 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for FY2024.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2024, the Company's reserves available for
distribution to equity holders comprising share premium and
retained earnings amounted to approximately S$16,514,000
calculated in accordance with the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law
3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands.
Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company during
FY2024 are set out in note 30 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for FY2024 and in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 135 of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for the pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis
to the existing Shareholders.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 232 of this annual report.
This summary does not form part of the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

DONATIONS

During FY2024, the Group donated approximately HK$3,044,000
(approximately S$521,000) to the recognised charities in Singapore.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

For FY2024, the Company did not redeem any of its listed
securities, nor did the Company or any of its subsidiaries purchase
or sell such securities.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during FY2024 and up to the date of this annual
report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Chu Chee Keong (Zhu Zhigiang)
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Leow Poh Hoon (Liao Baoyun)
Ms. Chu Pek Si (Zhu Peishi) (resigned on 30 April 2024)
Mr. Chu Pok Chong, Ivan (appointed as a non-executive
Director on 1 April 2024 and re-designated to
an executive Director on 15 October 2024)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Mah Seong Kung

Mr. Ng Yong Hwee

Mr. Wong Loke Tan

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, Mr. Chu Chee Keong (Zhu
Zhigiang) and Mr. Wong Loke Tan shall retire and being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the
independent non-executive Directors and, as at the date of this
annual report, still considers them to be independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and members of the
senior management are set out on pages 11 to 17 of this annual
report.

K2 F&B HOLDINGS LIMITED / 2024 £ 3§

R2024BRFE - AR AW EHE O HAE ] £
MESH BARGSKETEME QR INEE

B ERFES -
=

R2024RFERBERFRAY  EFR:

HITESE

NG

(EERITBAER)
BEE=RI

RAMIF £+ (742024 4 A 30 HEHE)
RIERR A4
(R2024F 4B 1BEZTAINTES
W 2024F10 A1 HAEBHITES)

BIYFHTES
NI 5 A
Wong Loke Tan %t &

RIEABERAA - KEREE M Wong

Loke Tan Sc & ¥ FEfE R IBEF K& LR
WHEERBEEE®EET-

ARRE B EBUIFATESRELTR
BIE3IBIGRMIEFEBLIEHER - ERASF
HEM  DARRBERBILAL -

EEREAREEEBEBEFNE

BEENEREEBEAENBEFBIHNAFE
EREFI11E17H -

59



Directors’ Report (Continued)
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company, under which they agreed to act as
executive Directors for an initial term of three years, which may be
terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing served
by either the Director or the Company.

Each of non-executive Director has entered into an appointment
letter with the Company with no fixed term of service and shall
continue thereafter on a yearly basis up to a maximum of three
years, until terminated by either party giving not less than three
months’ notice in writing to the other.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed an
appointment letter with the Company for an initial term of one year,
which may be terminated by not less than one month’s notice in
writing served by the independent non-executive Director or the
Company. Under the respective appointment letters, each of the
independent non-executive Directors is entitled to a fixed Director’s
fee.

The appointments of the Directors are subject to the provisions
of retirement and rotation of Directors under the Articles of
Association. None of the Directors has entered into a service
contract or appointment letter with members of the Group that
cannot be terminated by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed "Related Party
Transactions” in note 34 to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for FY2024, no contract of significance was entered into between
the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the Controlling
Shareholders or any of its subsidiaries during FY2024 or subsisted
as at 31 December 2024 and no contract of significance for the
provision of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a
Controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries was entered into
during FY2024 or subsisted as at 31 December 2024.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
TEE5gHE (B)

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION
TO THE COMPANY'’S BUSINESS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Related Party
Transactions” in note 34 to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for FY2024 contained in this report, no transaction, arrangement
and contract of significance to the business of the Group which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which
a Director or any entity connected with such a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted as at 31
December 2024 or at any time during FY2024.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2024, the interests or short positions of each
Director and the Chief Executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong (the “SFQ")), as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

Long positions in the Shares

Name of Director Capacity/nature of interest

EERNERARAXBEBEZEER
5 RERGHNERER

PR RS P 2024 BA U B 4R B I S 3R R N
FEo4AIREE F X5 —EFTHEE SN - 742024
F12 A31 B 20248 B F EEAEHREAR
RISk AT M B A R AT L B AN S X 75
MEBEAMEFIEEFHBFELEME
BRETEERIEEREEAEZ RS
ZHEHAH o

EENRTETRAERALQAREM
BOrERD HERORERERH
BER /KR

MR2024F12A31H ARAISEEREE
TTHABRAR RIS EAMABEEZR (E& R
EBERENEFFLBEGR ([BHER
HEHH (BXVI) %% - HERD ME
EER  BELHRALRBREEFNPE
15 2362157877 & 2 B e sk iR I 1Z &
SFRAIZARITAE AR R KB AT 2 s oK
BN

RERGOHER

Number of shares Percentage of
held (Note 1) shareholdings (%)

FsRGEE READL
EEpE B REME (Btat1) (%)
Mr. Chu Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 2) 600,000,000 (L) 75.00%
KEE R LAk (Hit2)
Ms. Leow Interest of spouse (Note 3) 600,000,000 (L) 75.00%
B+ fe B (F/a3)
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BEEEHE ()

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATION
(Continued)

Notes:
1. the letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the relevant Shares.
2. the entire issued share capital of Strong Oriental Limited (“Strong Oriental”)

is legally and beneficially owned by Mr. Chu. Accordingly, Mr. Chu is deemed
to be interested in 600,000,000 shares held by Strong Oriental by virtue of the
SFO.

3. Ms. Leow is the spouse of Mr. Chu. She is deemed to be interested in all the
shares in which Mr. Chu is interested or deemed to be interested by virtue of
the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, none of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company had any interest
or short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was
required to be recorded pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
TEE5gHE (B)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2024, the following corporation (other than a
Director or the chief executive of the Company) had interests or
short positions in the Shares as recorded in the register required to
be kept under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions in the Shares

Name of Shareholder Capacity/nature of interest

FERRARADREERONES

R2024F12 A31 B W NEE (BEEFHAR
AEBITHRABRIN RIRDFHEE LRI
BBAENHEEHIEIB6IKEATEFEZER
MARMERSSARDT

RBRGOHER

Number of Shares Percentage of
held (Note 1) shareholdings (%)

iR EE
BEEHE B Rt E (KtaE1) IR 2 L (%)
Strong Oriental Limited Beneficial Owner 600,000,000 (L) 75.00%
EREBA
Lee Kek Choo Interest in your spouse 56,536,000 (L) 7.07%
P (S A 2
Toh Soon Huat Beneficial Owner 56,536,000 (L) 7.07%

EnfB A
Note:

1. the letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, no other
corporation which/person (other than a Director or the chief
executive of the Company) had any interest or short position in the
Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to
be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

K2 F&B HOLDINGS LIMITED / 2024 £ 3§

His -

1. FRILIEZBALRED 2T

B EXPHTH BRI B2024F 128318
MEREMEE AL (BEEHARAEBITR
ANBBRIN) R BRI D P B RIEES
MHAE 5B £ 33616 7B7F E 2 Bl Frat 8%
2RISR R o

63



Directors’ Report (Continued)
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COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The emoluments of the Directors and members of the senior
management of the Group are decided by the Board by reference
to the recommendation given by the Remuneration Committee,
having regard to the Group’'s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and emoluments of the
five highest paid individuals in the Group for FY2024 are set out
in notes 10 and 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for
FY2024.

For FY2024, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any
Director or any of the five highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office. None of the Directors has waived any emoluments for
FY2024.

Saved as disclosed above, no other payments have been made or
are payable, for FY2024, by the Group to or on behalf of any of the
Directors.

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives or rewards to eligible persons,
including the Directors and employees of the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements that (i) will or may result in the
Company issuing Shares or (ii) require the Company to enter into
any agreement that will or may result in the Company issuing the
Shares were entered into by the Group during FY2024 or existed
as at 31 December 2024.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during FY2024 or as at 31 December 2024 was the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt
securities including debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
TEE5gHE (B)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the written resolution of the sole Shareholder passed
on 1 February 2019, the Company adopted a share option scheme
conditional upon the Listing (the “Share Option Scheme"”). The
Share Option Scheme became effective on the Listing Date. As no
share option has been granted by the Company under the Share
Option Scheme since the Listing Date, there was no share option
outstanding as at 31 December 2024 and no option was exercised,
cancelled or lapsed during FY2024. The total number of Shares
that may be issued in respect of share options granted under Share
Option Scheme during FY2024 divided by the weighted average
number of shares in issue for FY2024 was Nil.

(a) Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is enable the
Board to grant options to Eligible Persons (as defined below)
as incentives or rewards for their contribution or potential
contribution to the Group and to recruit and retain high
calibre Eligible Persons and attract human resources that are
valuable to the Group.

(b) Eligible persons

The Directors may at any time and within a period of ten (10)
years commencing from the date of adoption of the Share
Option Scheme at their absolute discretion and subject to
such terms, conditions, restrictions or limitations as they may
think fit offer, at the consideration of HK$1.00 per option, to
grant option to any person belonging to the following classes
of participants (the “Eligible person(s)”):

(i) any employee or proposed employee (whether full time
or part time, including any director) of any member of
the Group or invested entity; and

(i) any supplier of goods or services, any customer, any
person or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support, any Shareholders or other
participants who contribute to the development and
growth of the Group or any invested entity.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
TEEgHE (E)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(c)

(d)

66

Maximum number of Shares available for issue

(i) the maximum number of shares of the Company which
may be allotted and issued upon the exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company shall not, in aggregate,
exceed 30% of the total number of Shares in issue
from time to time.

(i) the total number of Shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme shall
not in aggregate exceed 80,000,000 Shares, being 10%
of the total number of Shares in issue as at the date of
this annual report.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible person

Unless approved by the Shareholders in general meeting and
subject to the following paragraph, no option shall be granted
to any Eligible Person if any further grant of options would
result in the Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
all options granted and to be granted to such person (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in the twelve
(12) months period up to and including such further grant
would exceed 1% of the total number of Shares in issue from
time to time.

Where an option is to be granted to a substantial Shareholder
or an independent non-executive Director (or any of their
respective associates), and such grant will result in the
Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
already granted and to be granted (including options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company in the twelve (12) months period
up to and including the date of such grant: (1) representing in
aggregate over 0.1% of the total number of Shares in issue at
the relevant time of grant; and (2) having an aggregate value,
based on the closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of each
grant, in excess of HK$5 million, such grant shall not be valid
unless approved by the independent Shareholders in general
meeting.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
TEE5gHE (B)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Period within which the securities must be
exercised under an option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as the
Board may determine which shall not exceed ten years from
the date of grant subject to the provisions of early termination
thereof.

Performance target or minimum period for which
an option must be held before it can be exercised

There is no performance target that has to be achieved or
minimum period in which an option must be held before the
exercise of any option save as otherwise imposed by the
Board in the relevant offer of options.

Period for and consideration payable on acceptance
of an option

An offer of grant of an option may be accepted by an Eligible
Person within the date as specified in the offer letter issued
by the Company, being a date not later than twenty-one (21)
days inclusive of the date upon which it is made, provided
that such date shall not be more than ten (10) years after
the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme or after
termination of the Share Option Scheme, and no such offer
may be accepted by a person who ceases to be an Eligible
Person after the offer has been made. The amount payable by
a grantee of an option to the Company on acceptance on the
offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.00. Such consideration
shall in no circumstances be refundable. Subject to the rules
of the Share Option Scheme, option may be exercised in
whole or in part by the grantee at any time before the expiry
of the period to be determined and notified by the Board to
the grantee which in any event shall not be longer than ten (10)
years commencing on the date of the offer letter and expiring
on the last day of such ten (10) years period.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(h)

(i)

Basis of determining the exercise price

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be
such price as determined by the Board, and shall be at least
the highest of: (i) the closing price of the shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange'’s daily quotations sheet on the date
of offer to grant an option (the “Offer Date"”), which must
be a trading day, on which the Board passes a resolution
approving the making of an offer of grant of an option to an
eligible person; (i) the average closing price of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheets for the
five trading days immediately preceding the Offer Date; and
(i) the nominal value of a Share on the Offer Date.

Remaining life

Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general
meeting or by the Board, the Share Option Scheme shall be
valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing on
the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme, after which
period no further option shall be granted.

COMPETING BUSINESS

During FY2024, none of the Directors, the Controlling Shareholders
or their respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had
any interest in any business (apart from the business of the Group)
that competed or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group other than being a director of the
Company and/or its subsidiaries.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
TEE5gHE (B)

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Mr. Chu and Strong Oriental, each being a Controlling Shareholder
have entered into a deed of non-competition dated 1 February
2019 in favour of the Company (the “Deed of Non-competition”),
pursuant to which each of them had irrevocably undertaken with
the Company on joint and several basis (for itself and for the
benefit of each of the subsidiaries) that he/it would not, and would
procure that any of his/its associates (except any member of the
Group) would not, during the period from the Listing Date, to the
date when the Controlling Shareholders or their associates cease
to hold equity interest in the Company and they are not considered
as substantial Shareholders directly or indirectly, either on his
own account or in conjunction with or on behalf of any person,
firm or company, among other things, carry on, participate or be
interested or engaged in or acquire or hold (in each case whether
as a shareholder, partner, principal, agent, director, employee or
otherwise) any business which is or may be in competition with
the business of any member of the Group from time to time.

The Company has received the confirmation from the Controlling
Shareholders in respect of their compliance with the terms of Deed
of Non-competition for FY2024.

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed and
confirmed that the Controlling Shareholders have complied with the
non-competition undertaking and the non-competition undertaking
has been enforced by the Company in accordance with its terms
for FY2024.

Saved as disclosed above, during FY2024, none of the Directors,
the substantial Shareholders or the management Shareholders or
any of their respective associates has engaged in any business that
competes or may compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group or has any other conflict of interests with
the Group.
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS
PURSUANT TO THE LISTING RULES

Save as disclosed in this report, the Company does not have any
other disclosure obligations under Rules 13.20, 13.21 and 13.22 of
the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than the Directors’ service contracts and appointment
letters, no contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
was entered into or in existence as at 31 December 2024 or at any
time during FY2024.

MATERIAL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Group was not involved in any material legal proceeding during
FY2024.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Due to the nature of business, the Group’s customers for the food
and beverage retail business were mainly individual customers who
patronise its food and beverage stalls, and customers for its outlet
management and leasing business were mainly stall tenants who
rent food stalls in the Group's food centres and food street. There
was no single customer that accounted for more than 5% of the
total revenue for FY2024.

Under the outlet management and leasing business, the Group
typically enter into tenancy agreements with stall tenants for
the rental of food stalls for terms ranging from one to five years.
Generally, such tenancy agreements the Group enter into with stall
tenants contain key terms such as the licence or lease period and
commencement date, the monthly licence fees or rental and the
minimum daily operating hours by the tenant.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
TEE5gHE (B)

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS (Continued)

For FY2024, total revenue attributable to the top 5 tenants
amounted to approximately S$2.8 million, or approximately 4.9%
of the total revenue, with approximately S$0.8 million, or 1.4%
attributable to the largest tenant. For FY2024, purchases from the
Group's five largest suppliers accounted for approximately S$7.5
million, or 32.6% of the Group's total cost of inventories consumed
and property rentals and related expenses, with approximately
S$3.1 million, or 13.4% of the relevant cost from the largest
supplier.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or any of their close
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules), or any Shareholder
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5%
of the issued Shares) had any significant beneficial interest in the
Group's five major customers or the Group's five major suppliers.

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AND GUARANTEES TO
AFFILIATED COMPANIES

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had not provided any financial
assistance and guarantee.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
TEEgHE (E)

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

Sufficient resources and training have been allocated and
provided to ensure the on-going compliance with applicable laws
and regulations. During FY2024, the Board is not aware of any
incidence of non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group’'s business where
the Group is operating, and the Group has complied in material
respects in the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the business and operation of the Group.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Details of the subsequent events are set out in note 42 to
Consolidated Financial Statements for FY2024.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this annual
report, the Company maintained the public float (i.e., at least 25%
of the Company'’s total issued Shares was held by the public) as
required under the Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group for FY2024
are set out in the note 34 to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for FY2024, and none of the related party transactions constitutes a
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction subject
to independent Shareholders’ approval, annual review and all
disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
BEEEHE(B)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed, with the management of the
Company, the Consolidated Financial Statements for FY2024, and
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
system of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate
governance for enhancing the management of the Company as
well as preserving the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.
The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the CG
Code as its own code to govern its corporate governance practices.

In the opinion of the Directors, save for the deviations as disclosed
in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” on pages
29 to 55 of this annual report, the Company has complied with the
relevant code provisions contained in the CG Code during FY2024.

The Board will continue to review and monitor the practices of
the Company with an aim to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance.

Details of the Group's corporate governance practices can be found
in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 29
to 55 of this annual report.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief on taxation available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holdings of the Shares. If
the Shareholders are unsure about the taxation implications of
purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in or exercising of any
right in relation to the Shares, they are advised to consult their
professional advisers.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
TEEgHE (E)

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director or other
officers of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages or
expenses which they shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason
of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution
of their duties. The relevant provisions in the Articles of Association
were in force during FY2024 and as at the date of this annual
report.

Throughout FY2024, the Company has maintained appropriate
directors and officers liability insurance cover providing indemnity
against liability, including but not limited to liability in respect of
legal action against the Directors and officers thereby sustained or
incurred arising from or incidental to execution of duties of his/her
offices.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The auditors, Fan, Chan & Co. Limited, have indicated their
willingness to accept re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Chu Chee Keong (Zhu Zhigiang)
Chairman

28 March 2025
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

R g LERWmE

INTRODUCTION

K2 F&B Holdings Limited (the “"Company”, and together with
its subsidiaries, the “"Group”) is based in Singapore with more
than a decade of experience in the ownership and operation of
food establishments. Currently, the Group’s business operations
include (i) the leasing of food establishment premises to tenants
and the provision of management, cleaning and utilities services
to tenants (the “Rental and Outlet Management”), and (ii) the
retailing of beverage, tobacco products, and cooked food directly to
consumers in food establishments operated and managed by the
Group and third parties (the “Food and Beverage Stalls”). This
Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “"ESG Report”)
summarises the environmental, social and governance ("ESG")
initiatives, plans and performances of the Group and demonstrates
its commitment to sustainable development.

The ESG Governance Structure

The Group has developed a core governance framework to ensure
the alignment of ESG governance with its strategic growth,
while advocating ESG integration into its business operations.
The structure of ESG governance is divided into the board of
directors of the Company (the “Board”), the senior management
and designated personnel from the business and functional
departments.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

BRIR g kEamsE (8)

The Board holds the overall responsibility for the Group’'s ESG
strategies and reporting, as well as overseeing and managing
its ESG-related issues. The Board reviews and confirms the
Group’'s ESG-related risks and opportunities, performance, goals
and targets, progresses made against ESG-related goals and
targets, management approach, and policies at least annually
with the assistance of the Group's designated personnel from
the business and functional departments. The Board also ensures
the effectiveness of ESG risk management and internal control
mechanism.

The Group's senior management facilitates the Board's oversight
of ESG-related issues. Their duties include but are not limited
to overseeing and reviewing the Group's ESG-related policies,
performance, management approach, risks and opportunities and
priorities. The Group’s senior manager holds meeting to report to
the Board at least annually on their findings, suggestions on the
Group's ESG performance and other material findings. They also
propose and recommend to the Board on the Group’s ESG-related
strategies, priorities, goals and targets. They also review the ESG
reports and make suggestion to the Board on approving the ESG
reports. The designated personnel from the business and functional
departments mainly executes ESG-related policies and practices,
and assists in data collection.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

BRI g keEnms (8)

SCOPE OF REPORTING

The Group’s senior management discusses, identifies and confirms
the reporting scope of ESG reports by considering the materiality
principle, the Group’s core business and its main revenue source.
The reporting scope is reviewed and approved by the Board.

Unless specified otherwise, the ESG Report covers the Group's
overall sustainability performance, including its food establishments
and food stalls, which represent the Group’s major sources of
revenue. The operation in Hong Kong has not generated significant
revenue and is therefore excluded from the scope of reporting,
while the employees in Hong Kong are still included in the total
number of employees. The ESG key performance indicators
("KPIs") data is gathered and included subsidiaries under the
Group's direct operational control. The Group will extend the scope
of disclosures when and where applicable.

REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The ESG Report has been prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the "ESG
Reporting Guide"”) as set out in the Appendix C2 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
Information relating to the corporate governance practices of
the Group has been set out in the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report” of this annual report.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

R g kEams (8)

The Group attaches great importance to materiality, quantitative
and consistency during the preparation for this ESG Report,
the Group has applied these reporting principles listed in the
aforementioned ESG Reporting Guide as follows:

Materiality: Materiality assessment was conducted to identify
material ESG issues, thereby adopting the confirmed material
ESG issues as the focus for the preparation of the ESG Report.
The materiality of the issues was reviewed and confirmed by the
Board and the senior management. Details will be mentioned in
the sections headed "Stakeholder Engagement” and “Materiality
Assessment”.

Quantitative: The standards, methodologies and applicable
assumptions used in the calculation of the ESG KPIs and relevant
data in the ESG Report were supplemented by explanatory notes
to establish benchmarks where feasible.

Consistency: Unless otherwise stated, the preparation approach of
the ESG Report was substantially consistent with the year ended
31 December 2023 (“FY2023"). If there are any changes that may
affect the comparison with previous reports, explanations will be
provided for the corresponding data.

For the year ended 31 December 2024 (“FY2024"), the Group
confirmed that it has established appropriate and effective
management policies and internal control systems for ESG issues.
This ESG Report has undergone the internal review process of the
Group and confirmed that the disclosed contents are in compliance
with the requirements of the ESG Reporting Guide. This ESG
Report was approved by the Board.

REPORTING PERIOD

The ESG Report describes the ESG activities, challenges and
measures taken by the Group for FY2024.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
Dear Stakeholders,

On behalf of the Board, it is my pleasure to present the ESG Report
of the Company for FY2024, which provides an annual update on
the ESG performance of the Group.

Sustainability is a vital aspect of the long-term success of a
business. The Group has incorporated sustainable development
into its strategy and built an effective governance structure, namely
the Board and the senior management, to monitor and review
the ESG-related issues of the Group. The risk management and
internal control frameworks provide a structured approach for the
Group to formulate policies and ensure effective execution. More
information about the Group's governance structure is stated in the
section “"The ESG Governance Structure”.

The Group continuously communicates with its stakeholders to
understand their concerns and fulfil their expectations. In order
to identify and assess the material concerns of the Group's
stakeholders, the Group has conducted materiality assessment
surveys through stakeholder engagement. The assessment helped
the Group to determine the factors that have material impacts on
its sustainable growth and incorporated them in the development
of its ESG strategies and targets.

The Group also sets various ESG-related targets on relevant KPIs.
The environmental targets were approved by the Board and the
progress will be reviewed by the senior management annually.
The senior management makes full use of the available ESG data
to compare the performance between different years and report
to the Board at least annually. Aiming to achieve the targets, the
Group is committed to implementing various measures, which
will be mentioned in this ESG Report. The Board believes the
ESG related targets can enhance the Group’s corporate social
responsibility performance as well as the ESG awareness of the
stakeholders. The reviews of the progress of ESG targets can be
found in the section headed "“Environmental Target”.

In closing, | would like to take this opportunity to express my
utmost gratitude to my fellow management, staff and stakeholders
for their contributions and dedication to the Group’s sustainable
development.

Mr. Chu Chee Keong (Zhu Zhigiang)
Chairman

K2 F&B HOLDINGS LIMITED / 2024 5 =

ERE®|E
BEUFNE

RAANERREFEMARE A QA 2024 B L
FEMNRE H@RERMRE  EFEHAN
SERE HEREMBUNFERHEN -

ARKEERDOERERYNEETH - K
SECHASERRMANELRE  WETIT
ZEBNEARE (EFEaRERE)
NERERSAEENERE L& RERE
BEE AREEMANEHNERSESS
B BUR MR B RNTTIRRIEA RRRITTX ©
BRAREEARBNEZERFNRE

HekERERARE] -

AEERERAFNEBRRE NTHREEN
BT EANMEBRENME - REHI LT
AEERNENEAEIZE AKEHCDE
BRENESRETEENLFGHAE - FHE
PAREBEUAKEARKERRELEXN
FENRR YHEMARE HERER
REE R B RS EHRE -

AEBMTHAEBBRESIEERESRRERER -
HekEAREBER REAGCEESS
e mMeafkeE2E8EBRERSFETT
ma c BAREEERDMAAIGRRE i
ERERBE LB ITAFENRR T E
LEBF-ANEZERE - RERZFESR
AEERNERARE HERERRSH
M ZEER -EFEHE RE - HER
ERMHBEBERAURALNKRECEHEEEN
RENUEFBOHENRE HERERAER-
BERHRE HegMERBRERBANT
i B2MREAR] & -

RiEAANEBEUBEROBRHEERE B

ITRFNEHASEAFERRIFHANE

FRE

79



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group values its stakeholders and their feedback regarding its
businesses and ESG aspects. In order to understand and address
their key concerns, the Group has maintained close communication
with its key stakeholders, including but not limited to employees,
shareholders and investors, customers and tenants, suppliers,
government and regulators, media, non-governmental organisations
("NGOs") and the public.

The Group takes stakeholders’ expectations into consideration
in formulating its businesses and ESG strategies by utilising
diversified engagement methods and communication channels.
The following table shows stakeholders’ expectations of the Group
and related communication channels.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
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Stakeholders

Communication channels

Expectation

B0 E BERE HE
Employees ° Trainings, seminars and briefing ° Employees’ health and safety
sessions ° Employees’ development and
o Regular meetings trainings
° Performance reviews o Compliant operation
=] o I e REHE e [EEREREZZD
s TEHEZ e  [EEZHRERKET
o BEHEE e AaHEE

Shareholders and investors

BREEZEE

Customers and tenants

EFERBEP

Suppliers

HEn

Government and regulators

BT & B2 E

Media, NGOs and the public

il

BREE  FFBUNABE AR

o Annual general meeting and other
shareholder meetings

o Financial reports

o Announcements and circulars

° Company website

e RERBAFAGREMBRERE

e  BIBHE

o  DNERMEK

o NElAEuh

° Progress meetings

8
it

B
ik

o Supplier management meetings
and events

° Supplier audit

e HEMEESRKEY

o MERIEET

o Site visits

o Financial reports

° Announcements and circulars

e  EMEXR

o UG

o  DEREM

° Company website

° ESG reports

o NGIE R

e IRE - -HERERWRSE

o Anti-corruption

o Food safety and quality

o Quality of products and services
provided

° Protection of customers’ and
tenants’ privacy

o Compliant operation

e RmTEREE

e FiRHERMRBHES

s REFEPRHEPILE

s EHEE

° Fair and open procurement
° Sustainable development of supply
chain

LI NG e

o HESEHNAFEER
o Anti-corruption

o Compliant operation
o Payment of tax

s REF
. AMEE

o Transparent information disclosure
° Community service

s ZFHAMEEEE

o MERK

The Group aims to collaborate with its stakeholders to improve
its ESG performance and create greater value for the wider
community on a continuous basis.
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The management and staff of the Group's respective major
operations have participated in the preparation of the ESG Report to
assist the Group in reviewing its operations and identifying relevant
ESG issues and assessing the importance of related issues to its
businesses and stakeholders. With the assistance of the Group's
management, the Group identified the list of material ESG issues
with consideration of its business operations, the ESG Reporting
Guide and industry standards. To prioritise the identified material
ESG issues, the Group conducted a materiality assessment
survey. Management and employees of different business units
and departments were invited to evaluate the significance of
the identified ESG issues to the stakeholders and the Group's
business. Based on the results of the survey, the Group compiled
the materiality matrix. The Group reviews and confirms the material
ESG issues annually to ensure its materiality ESG issues can reflect
its business development and industry standards. The following
matrix is a summary of the Group’s material ESG issues:
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CONTACT US

The Group welcomes stakeholders to provide their opinions and
suggestions. They can provide valuable advice in respect of the
ESG Report or its performance in sustainable development by
email at feedback@fuchangroup.com.

BB R

REBEEBDHRMERHERRER - BEFA
i% 38 B X E B & feedback@fuchangroup.com
REBFHARE HegREAMSHAERRE
AREERATENKRENEEER -

A. ENVIRONMENTAL A. R
Environmental Target REBEE
Aspects Environmental targets Progress/review
EBE RIRER ER
Greenhouse gases Gradually reduce GHG emissions intensity (tCO,e/S$ million Status: In-progress

("GHG") emissions revenue) by the year ending 31 December 2026 (“FY2026"),
using the year ended 31 December 2021 (“FY2021") as the
baseline year. (FY2021: 70.79 tCO,e/S$ million revenue)
BERE(CRERB]) LUEZE2021F12A31HFE ([2021MBEE ) (EAREESF - R E1TH
HER FEZE2026F12 A31 HFE ([2026 B F B |) & H[# )R
EREHNEE (B _S(tikEE BEFH MK TiE) - (2021
MIEEE : 707988 — A LixE 8 /5 B g oikas)

Non-hazardous waste Gradually reduce the total non-hazardous waste intensity Status: In-progress
generation (tonnes/S$ million revenue) by FY2026, using the FY2021 as
the baseline year. (FY2021: 0.31 tonnes/S$ million revenue)
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Energy consumption Gradually reduce the total energy consumption intensity (MWh/  Status: In-progress
S$ million revenue) by FY2026, using FY2021 as the baseline
year. (FY2021: 186.18 MWh/S$ million revenue)

RETROH#E ABEE2021 MRFEER/ELESF - B|2026 MBHFEZETRE k]
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Water consumption Gradually reduce the total water consumption intensity (m®/S$  Status: In-progress
million revenue) by FY2026, using FY2021 as the baseline year.
(FY2021: 4,744.01 m3/S$ million revenue)

KR H FE B ZE 2021 MBRFEEEREEF - B2026 M FE LR dkee - 17
IKIRERERE (LK BEHME L) o (2021 MEREFE :

4,744.01 3 KB EF N T E)
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A1.

Emissions

The Group has integrated the “Green Environment”
into its decision-making process and embraced the
responsibility to create an environmentally sustainable
business. To enhance its environmental governance
practice and mitigate the environmental impacts
produced by its operations, the Group has complied
with the requirements of all relevant policies in
Singapore’s food industry, and is committed to the
social responsibility of protecting the environment.
Considering the Group's business nature, it has taken
measures to facilitate the environmental friendliness
of its business and operation in terms of energy, water
and saving. In the long run, it will continue to enhance
its environmental management strategies and minimise
the environmental impacts brought by its operations.

During FY2024, the Group was not aware of
any material non-compliance with the relevant
environmental laws and regulations in Singapore,
including but not limited to the “Environmental
Protection and Management Act” of Singapore, that
has a significant influence on the Group's operations.

Exhaust Gas Emissions

The Group’s businesses focus on the provision of food
and beverage, with limited use of motor vehicles for
travelling. Hence, the Group generates limited exhaust
gas emissions during its operation and regards exhaust
gas emissions as immaterial or insignificant to its
operation. It has adopted the following measures to
mitigate exhaust gas emissions:

o Remind employees to turn off engines for idling
vehicles; and

° Encourage the use of public transportation for
business commuting purposes.
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GHG Emissions

The Group is committed to reducing GHG emissions
through more efficient use of resources in all areas of
the business, where possible. With the aim to lower
the GHG emissions, the Group has installed appropriate
equipment, such as energy saving equipment, and they
are regularly inspected, maintained and repaired.

The principal direct GHG emissions (Scope 1) of the
Group are generated from consumption of fuels for
kitchen operations and motor vehicles. The principal
energy indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2) of the Group
are generated from purchased electricity.

In order to achieve the target on reducing GHG
emissions, the Group has adopted the following
measures to mitigate the GHG emissions in its
operations:

° Appoint head chefs to supervise the staff to turn
off gas stoves, cooking appliances and water
heaters when not in use;

° Clear and defrost unwanted materials and thick
ice regularly from refrigerators;

° Install energy-saving cooking facilities and
equipment in the food centres; and

o Actively adopt environmental protection and
energy-saving measures, which will be mentioned
in the section headed “Energy Consumption”.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
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During FY2024, the total GHG emissions have
increased by approximately 5.00%, mainly attributable
to increased electricity consumption due to new store
openings in Singapore. As a result, the GHG emissions
intensity has increased by approximately 2.25%.
However, it is still below the baseline year (FY2021:
70.79 tCO,e/S$ million revenue). Therefore, the
progress towards the target is on track. The Group will
continue to monitor its GHG emissions and implement
abovementioned relevant measures, reduce its GHG
emissions intensity progressively and aim to achieve
the target on reducing GHG emissions by FY2026.

R2024 BFE - BERBIN
BEEIMNE.00%  TBEHNE
N FARIEE AT EHN -
Ett - 8= R BRS04
2.25% AT - DABEREESF
(2021 LA JE + 70.7918 — & 1k
IREE /BB TR -
It BE B IZERE S AL -
ANEBBEBENEL RS REH
WMEWLE M EMEEER &5
BREBERBEREE  HhER
2026 R FEEIR R E R BHK

The summary of GHG emissions and its intensity are as BERBENELERERE N
follows: T
Indicator’ Unit FY2024 FY2023
B By 2024 ML E 2023 BN E
Direct GHG emissions (Scope 1) tCO,e 460.74 472.69
BEEAERBHNE (SE1) WA b E S
Energy indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2) tCO,e 2,556.89 2,401.26
EREERERBHNE (EE2) Wi — &bk E 2
Total GHG emissions (Scope 1and 2) tCO,e 3,017.63 2,873.95
BRERBHREE (EE152) W_F{tEE
Intensity tCO,e/S$ million revenue? 52.76 51.60
BE W_E{tmEE

BB T2
Note(s): KeE -
1. GHG emissions data are presented in terms of carbon 1. BEREBHERBE DR SR E

dioxide equivalent and are based on, but not limited to, “The
Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A Corporate Accounting and
Reporting Standards"” issued by the World Resources Institute
and the World Business Council for Sustainable Development,
the latest released emission factors of Singapore’s power grid,
"Singapore Energy Statistics 2024" issued by the Energy Market
Authority of Singapore, “How to prepare an ESG report —
Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs" issued
by the Stock Exchange, “Global Warming Potential Values”
from the IPCC Sixth Assessment Report and “NEA Greenhouse
Gas (GHG) Emissions Measurement and Reporting Guidelines
Appendix to Part II: Monitoring Plan” issued by the National
Environment Agency in Singapore.

2. For FY2024, the Group recorded a revenue of approximately
S$57.2 million (FY2023: approximately S$55.7 million). Unless
specified otherwise, the data is also used for calculating other
intensity data.
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Sewage Discharge

During the daily operation, the Group generates
domestic sewage mainly in the course of food
preparation and cleaning. The Group has rigorously
monitored the disposal of sewage, and complied
with relevant laws and regulations to meet Singapore
government’s sewage discharge standards. Since the
Group’s sewage is discharged through the sewage
pipe network to the water reclamation plants, its
sewage discharged amount is considered as the water
consumption amount. Hence, the performance of
sewage discharged will be disclosed in the section
headed “Water Consumption”.

Waste Management

Hazardous waste handling method

Due to the Group's business nature, it does not
generate material amount of hazardous waste during
its operation. Nonetheless, it has established guidelines
governing the management and disposal of hazardous
waste. In case there is any hazardous waste produced,
it must engage a qualified chemical waste collector to
handle such waste, in compliance with the relevant
environmental regulations and rules.

Non-hazardous waste handling method

The major non-hazardous wastes generated during the
Group's operation are food waste and paper waste.
The Group maintains a high standard in reducing waste,
educates employees on the importance of sustainable
development and provides them with relevant support
to improve their skills and knowledge in sustainable
development. To minimise the non-hazardous waste
production, measures adopted will be mentioned
below.
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Food Waste

The Group's waste mainly come from Food and
Beverage Stalls, including non-hazardous waste such
as leftover or unconsumed food. With the aim of
minimising the environmental impact of non-hazardous
waste generated from its business operations, the
Group has implemented guidelines for food ordering
and processing in the Code of Practice in the Employee
Handbook and training manual. The Group’s employees
are aware of food waste reduction and related concepts.
With the controls over food ordering and processing,
the Group can avoid excessive food waste. The Group
has set up an area in each of its food establishments
for qualified contractors to collect and dispose used
cooking oil and grease trap waste. In the long run, the
Group will strive to streamline its processes for its Food
and Beverage Stalls, and to use resources in a more
efficient manner.

Paper Waste

Printing of documents in the head office is the main
source of paper waste. The Group encourages all staff
to reduce paper usage by duplex printing and adopting
electronic information systems for sharing information or
internal administration documents. It has implemented
the following procedures to encourage employees
to share the responsibilities in waste management,
minimise waste generation and promote recycling:

° Utilise electronic media for communication;
° Avoid single-use disposable items; and

° Place “Green Message” reminders in office and
food establishments.
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A2.

During FY2024, the total non-hazardous waste has
increased by approximately 5.85%, mainly due to
new store openings in Singapore. As a result, the
non-hazardous waste intensity has increased by
approximately 3.33%. However, it is similar to the
baseline year (FY2021: 0.31 tonnes/S$ million revenue).
Therefore, the Group is still in progress in achieving the
target. The Group will continue to monitor the amount
of non-hazardous waste it generates and implement
abovementioned relevant measures, reduce its non-
hazardous waste intensity progressively and aim to
achieve the target on reducing non-hazardous waste
intensity by FY2026.

The summary of non-hazardous waste generated and
its intensity are as follows:

R2024BFE BEEEDE
S IN#5.85% T B h A
M REFIE - Bt EEREE
Y E I IN#)3.33% ° Fh M - £

HEEERM (2021 BEE : 0.31
WE, B &N T ) o Ft
REBEDEEKBZEERLE -
AEBBESEENEEENEE
BEEWHE W E Ll AR -
BEREEEREYEE  NF
R2026 M FEEREZREEY
AR E R -

FEENEEEENHERAR
EBEWT :

Type of non-hazardous waste Unit FY2024 FY2023
BEREYER By 2024 L E 2023 E
Food waste Tonnes 16.67 16.22
BT 4 i

Paper Tonnes 1.07 0.54
it i

Total non-hazardous waste Tonnes 17.74 16.76
BEREYRE Mg

Intensity Tonnes/S$ million revenue 0.31 0.30
RnE g, E BN Tk

Use of Resources A2. ERER

As a sustainability-oriented corporation, the Group
places great emphasis on environmental protection
and the efficient use of energy and resources. The
Group strives to optimise resources consumption by
taking initiatives to introduce measures and policies
on promoting resources efficiency towards different
stakeholders and adopting eco-friendly approaches in its
operations.
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Energy Consumption

Consumption of fuels for kitchen operations and motor
vehicles and purchased electricity are the major sources
of energy consumption by the Group. To minimise
environmental impact in its operations, the Group has
promoted energy saving with various energy-efficient
measures and related policies. Regular review is
conducted on its energy objectives and targets to seek
continuous reduction in the Group’s energy usage.

The Group has implemented monthly monitoring of
the usage of electricity, water and other resources.
Unexpected high consumption of electricity or water
will be investigated to find out the root cause and
preventive measures will be adopted. In order to
achieve the target of reducing energy consumption
intensity, the Group has implemented the following
measures to reduce energy consumption:

° Turn off gas stoves and water heaters when not
in use;

° Switch off idle lightings during non-office hours;

° Set air-conditioners at a comfortable temperature
of 25 degree Celsius; and

° Install light emitting diode light fittings in offices
and food establishments.

During FY2024, the total energy consumption has
increased by approximately 5.54%, mainly due to new
store openings in Singapore. As a result, the energy
consumption intensity has increased by approximately
2.78%. However, it is similar to the baseline year
(FY2021: 186.18 MWh/S$ million revenue). Therefore,
the progress towards the target is on track. The Group
will continue to monitor its energy consumption and
implement the abovementioned relevant measures,
reduce its energy consumption intensity progressively
and aim to achieve the target of reducing energy
consumption intensity by FY2026.
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The summary of energy consumption and its intensity
are as follows:

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
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EERERMETEMRDT

Type of energy?® Unit FY2024 FY2023
BERAER B 2024 B BUFE  2023BT L E
Liguefied petroleum gas MWh 1,512.97 1,500.38
AL AHR JKFL B

Town gas MWh 551.11 553.06
o= JKEL B

Charcoal MWh 36.38 48.80
AR JEELBF

Petrol MWh 61.27 59.67
s JKEL B

Diesel MWh 1.42 16.05
Seom JKFL B

Direct energy consumption MWh 2,163.15 2,177.96
HERFRERE Ik B B

Purchased electricity MWh 5,991.96 5,548.82
BEEEN JK LB

Indirect energy consumption MWh 5,991.96 5,548.82
EiZRERE JK L B

Total energy consumption MWh 8,155.11 7,726.78
RFRHEAS Ik F B

Intensity MWh/S$ million revenue 142.57 138.72
RnE BB BN T W s

Note(s): Biat -

3. The calculation of unit conversion is based on, but not limited to, 3. BAEBBRNIEELE  BTRRE

the Energy Statistics Manual issued by the International Energy
Agency.

Water Consumption

Water consumption of the Group is mainly for daily
operations, including food preparation, cooking and
cleaning of kitchen utensils. To encourage water
conservation, the Group has identified water saving
initiatives and has adopted water-saving production
methods and equipment to reduce water consumed. It
has also assigned its head chefs and outlet managers
to ensure that there is no unwarranted use of water.
Furthermore, the Group has conducted regular
maintenance of water pipes and repaired any defective
components to prevent leakage of water. The Group
has been strengthening its wastewater treatment
practices and programmes to align with the Group's
sustainability management approaches.
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To increase water efficiency, the Group has implemented
the following measures:

° Reduce water pressure to the lowest practicable
level;

° Install self-closing taps where practicable; and

° Fix dripping taps to avoid leakage and wastage.

During FY2024, the total water consumption has
increased by approximately 50.42%, mainly attributable
to increased water consumption due to new store
openings in Singapore. As a result, the water
consumption intensity has increased by approximately
46.47%. However, it is still below the baseline year
(FY2021: 4,744.01 m3/S$ million revenue). Therefore,
the progress towards the target is on track. The Group
will continue to monitor its water consumption and
implement the abovementioned relevant measures,
aiming to achieve the target on reducing water
consumption intensity by FY2026.

BRESAKAE REECEH
AT 6

o FKIKEREZEKERTTKE:

o REUMTHWEBEATZKE DA
PZKEERR - I

o BIEEKHIKEERE @R
BIRERE

2024 EUF [Z - KRB FEE
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703 5RO 37 I B BUKIR E FE 1S
e B KR HFEE E 3 04
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(2021 /R F € : 4,744.013 /7
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The summary of non-hazardous waste generated and RKREREHENT :

its intensity are as follows:

Water consumption Unit FY2024 FY2023
KRHEFE B 2024 B BUFE 2023 E
Freshwater m? 297,204.10 197,583.79
Kk M F K

Intensity m3/S$ million revenue 5,195.88 3,547.29
BnE 75K, E B N T s

Due to its operating locations, the Group has not
identified any issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose.
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Use of Packaging Materials

As the Group’s main business is food and beverage,
take-away services is one of the key offering provided
to customers. Plastic bags and containers are the major
packaging materials used in its business operation.
To minimise the usage of packaging materials, the
Group has set out guidelines for staff to use packaging
materials reasonably.

During FY2024, the Group consumed approximately
119.09 tonnes of packaging materials, representing an
increase of approximately 28% compared to FY2023.
The change was mainly attributable to the expansion of
the Group’s food and beverage stall, resulting in more
packaging material consumed for take-away.

The summary of packaging materials consumption and
its intensity are as follows:

BEMBER

HRARENTEXZBLER
WREPREMEF —ETER
BRENE BHXERERSHE
EBLEMANIZBEME -
REERVBEMEOER &
SEEREIAECHABEMHK
HIEHES]

R2024FE - ANEBHER
E MR 119.09 W8 faozs&ﬁ&
FEEMN28% - E— (LT E
ZHER $%@ﬁ@hu%% )
BUBRERE ZARNINAR BEMEL

R ABEHENT

Indicator Unit FY2024 FY2023
BE By 2024 B BUFE  2023BTELEE
Packaging materials Tonnes 119.09 93.39
CETES Mg

Intensity Tonnes/S$ million revenue 2.08 1.68
nE =R ¥ b €
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A3. The Environment and Natural Resources

Upholding its on-going commitment to corporate
sustainability, the Group recognises the importance
of minimising the potential negative environmental
impacts of its business operations and maximising
resources efficiency and waste management. The
Group regards environmental protection as part of
the Group's business goals and strategies. The Group
strives to raise awareness of environmental issues at
work and in life amongst staff through education and
training, and encourages employees’ engagement in
improving the Group’s environmental performance. The
Group regularly assesses the environmental impacts
of its businesses, and supports community activities in
relation to environmental protection and sustainability.
It is also devoted to achieving sustainable development
for generating long-term value for the community and
its stakeholders.

Sustainable Ingredients

The Group is aware of the influence of the selection of
food sources on sustainability. There is rising concern
about the selection of sustainable food sources in
the community. As a corporation that promotes
sustainability and environmental protection, the Group
does not serve any endangered animals in its dishes,
such as shark fins.
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Climate Change

Climate change is one of the most important
contemporary challenges faced by the world. The
Group recognised the importance of the identification
and mitigation of significant climate-related issues,
and therefore, strives to make continuous efforts to
assess the financial implications of climate impacts
and to address the potential risks while capturing gold
opportunities for transitioning towards a low-carbon
economy.

The Group has integrated climate-related risks into
its internal control and enterprise risk management
systems, and conducted a climate change assessment
to identify and mitigate various climate-related risks.
In addition, the Board meets regularly and cooperates
closely with the senior management to identify and
evaluate the climate-related risks, so as to formulate
strategies to manage the identified risks.

Climate-related Issues

Physical Risks

Changes in rainfall patterns and rising ambient
temperature may significantly affect the quality and
quantity of raw food materials, which threaten the food
security and increase the cost of food. In addition, the
increased frequency and severity of extreme weather
such as intense storms, flooding and prolonged droughts
may also disrupt supply chains, interrupt business
operations, and damage the Group’s assets. Concerns
about the volatility and uncertainty of operating costs
are thus arising. In order to manage the related risk, the
Group priorities cooperating with suppliers who possess
high environmental consciousness, increasing food
supply chain diversification, and continuously seeking for
building long-term relationships with first-tier suppliers,
so as to build a more climate-resilient and green supply
chain.
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Transition Risks

The Singapore government has set a target for achieving
net-zero emissions. The Group anticipates that the
climate legislations and regulations will become more
stringent in view of the vision of decarbonisation. From
a listed company perspective, the Group acknowledges
the increasing requirements regarding the disclosure
of climate-related information. For example, the Stock
Exchange has required listed companies to enhance the
climate-related disclosures in their ESG reports. If the
Group fails to meet the compliance requirements of the
regulations as applicable to its businesses, its business
operation may face material impact. Negative publicity
may also arise due to failure to meet the compliance
requirements, thus increasing the Group's cost in capital
investment and compliance. In view of the policy and
legal risks, as well as the reputation risks, the Group
regularly monitors the current and future trends, policies
and regulations regarding climate to be prepared for
prompt response in climate-related measures when
necessary, so as to avoid non-compliance fines, cost
increments or reputational risk.
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B. SOCIAL

B1.

Employment
Employment and Labour Practices

Human talent is the foundation for the Group's
continued success. Therefore, employment policies
relevant to health, safety and welfare were established
to underpin the Group’'s responsibility towards
employees. The Group is strictly in compliance with
various laws and regulations, and also seeks to
implement strict health and safety standards throughout
the Group.

During FY2024, the Group was not aware material
non-compliance with employment related laws and
regulations in Singapore, including but not limited to
the “Employment Act” of Singapore, that would have a
significant impact on the Group.

Remuneration and Dismissal

To attract and retain talent, the Group strives to provide
an equal working environment for its employees. The
Group has developed a set of sound employment
rules and regulations and made clear provisions of the
rights and obligations of employees in the Employee
Handbook.

The Group highly appreciates the contributions of
employees to its development and has developed a
comprehensive remuneration package for them. The
Employee Handbook clearly states the obligations and
benefits for all employees, such as daily working hours
and annual leave entitlements. In addition to offering
competitive remuneration packages, discretionary
bonuses and share options may also be granted to
reward employees based on individual performance.
A long-service award is also set up to appreciate
employees who have worked for the Group for more
than 5 and 10 years.
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Moreover, the Group is aware of the importance of
education and the potential financial burden it poses.
Thus, it has set up the Fu Chan Education Financial
Assistance Programme for Eligible Staff to reduce their
financial burden on the education of their offsprings.
During FY2024, 22 employees received financial support
from the Fu Chan Education Financial Assistance
Programme for Eligible Staff.

In the event of misconduct or contravention of
the express or implied terms and conditions of
employment, the Group will only dismiss employees
after due process. The dismissal process will only be
carried out on a reasonable basis, and dismissal will be
notified in writing when the employee has persistently
committed the offence and has not improved after
repeated warnings.

Recruitment and Promotion

The Group adheres to the principles of openness and
fairness when recruiting and considers candidates
based on their merits instead of age, gender or ethnic
background. Candidates are assessed based on their
suitability for the position and potential to fulfil the
Group's current and future needs.

The Group offers promotion and development
opportunities that is equally applied to all employees.
Through an open and fair assessment system, eligible
employees are offered the opportunity of promotion to
develop their careers and encourage good performance.
Staff performance reviews are carried out regularly to
ensure that all employees can be recognised by the
Group with respect to their efforts and contributions.
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Diversity, Equal Opportunity and Anti-discrimination

The Group appreciates the importance of cultural
diversity and is committed to providing an inclusive
and collaborative work environment that is free from
discrimination, and physical or verbal harassment on the
basis of race, religion, ethnic origin, gender, physical
or mental disability, age, marital status and sexual
orientation. The Group seeks to establish necessary
procedures to ensure all employees are treated equally
and the employment is in compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had a total of 381
employees (as at 31 December 2023: 412). The details
of the Group's employees are as follows:
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HZE2024F 128318 AEEH
B381%EE (B E2023F12 A8
318 :412%) - AEE MR B &
BT

Number of Employee FY2024 FY2023
EE®E 2024 TN EEE 2023 AR
By Gender RERE D

Male S 218 245
Female i 163 167
By Age Group BEERAR B S

18-30 years old 18-30 % 72 88
31-40 years old 31-407% 73 75
41-50 years old 41-507% 54 59
51-64 years old 51-64 7% 98 110
65 years old and above 65 5% M A 84 80
By Employment Type ZEBERES

Full-time i 321 372
Part-time FRE 60 40
By Geographical Region RitE R E S

Singapore* #hN3E 4 3714 412
Hong Kong BH 10 -
Note(s): KaE -

4. As at 31 December 2024, 164 (as at 31 December 2023: 187)
employees worked in Singapore are foreign workers.

4. R2024F12 A31 8 - EFMHE TIE
#1644 (72023412 A31H : 187
Z)EBRINETA °
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During FY2024, the Group's overall turnover rate®
was approximately 31.02% (FY2023: 31.42%). The
employee turnover rate by gender, age group, and

geographical region are as follows:

Turnover Rate®

R2024 W FE - AEBHERE
TR E549531.02% (2023 Bf Br 4
€ :31.42%) < &R - Fie4a R
iR @i E D rEBRA L X
UNNE

FY2024 FY2023

k&S 2024 B BEE 2023 HLEE
By Gender R R &5

Male B 33.69% 31.32%
Female g 27.27% 33.53%
By Age Group BERARE D

18-30 years old 18-30 5% 53.75% 35.76%
31-40 years old 31-407% 32.43% 35.04%
41-50 years old 41-50 5% 44.25% 31.86%
51-64 years old 51-64 5% 16.35% 25.00%
65 years old and above 65 5% M A = 17.07% 36.05%
By Geographical Region Zith &8 2

Singapore g 31.02% 32.27%
Note(s): Btat -

5. The employee turnover rate (by category) is calculated by 5. (RERE S W) EERKXERI I

dividing the number of employees leaving employment (by

category) during the financial year by the average number of
employees (by category) as at 1/1/2024 and the end of the

financial year x 100%.

K2 F&BHOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUALREPORT 2024

FEANGRERS ) BEREE A
HRAE 202451 A1 B EFTREF
EFR(RENSSH) FHEEBA
HIRLA100% 51 ©



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
R - g RERWmE (8)

B2.

Health and Safety

Health and safety of employees in the working
environment is always the utmost concern of the
Group. To ensure a safe workplace for its employees,
the Group has established safety policies and guidelines
which set out the safety procedures and promote
safety at work sites stipulated by the relevant laws
and regulations. The Group is dedicated to providing a
safe working environment and will continue to invest
in resources and devote efforts to reduce the risks
involved in health and safety.

During FY2024, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with health and safety-
related laws and regulations in Singapore, including but
not limited to “Workplace Safety and Health Act” of
Singapore, that would have a significant impact on the
Group.

Reinforcing employees’ safety awareness is of crucial
importance to the Group. All newly hired operational
employees are required to participate in training on
occupational safety and health hazards during their
orientation. To encourage and support newly recruited
employees, training buddies are assigned to them
to ensure they are able to adapt to the new working
environment smoothly and follow safety measures. The
Group has also purchased work injury compensation
insurance and foreign worker medical insurance for its
staff. The measures for fire emergency are embodied
in policies and guidelines to assist employees in taking
sensible immediate action should fire accidents occur.
The related occupational health and safety measures
are reviewed regularly to ensure their effectiveness.

B2.
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B3.

Aiming to consistently lower the lost days due to work-
related injury, the Group will further improve the quality
of its health and safety-related training programmes.
During FY2024, there was no case of work-related
injuries reported to the Group nor lost days of work
due to work-related injuries (FY2023: Nil). Besides, the
Group did not record any cases of work-related fatalities
in the past three years, including FY2023.

Development and Training

The Group recognises the valuable contribution of
its talent for the sustainable growth of its business.
Nurturing talent and polishing the skills of its human
capital is crucial in striving for excellence. It is
committed to inspiring its employees to continue
learning and improving their knowledge and job skills in
relation to food preparation and preservation, customer
services and quality control in different aspects of the
operation. This is achieved through the development of
training strategies and policies that focuses on creating
values and serving the needs of its customers, its
talents and the society.

The Group understands the importance of keeping its
employees abreast of the changing work environment,
job requirements as well as all other safety and
environmental practices at the workplace, thus
a training guideline for supervisors is in place for
reference. Apart from on-the-job training, the Group
also provides training offered by professional training
institutes or experts to its employees.
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To ensure its employees have good knowledge about
correct equipment utilisation and temperature control
in food preparation, the Group has arranged training
on food safety and hygiene, proper temperature
regulation of food and ingredients, factors contributing
to outbreaks of foodborne illnesses and practices to
maintain good personal hygiene to all operational staff.
The Group engages food hygiene training providers
approved by the National Environment Agency and Skills
Future Singapore to conduct these training courses.

In addition, the Group also facilitates seminars and
training programmes for selected staff in safety
awareness and restroom cleaning to improve their
awareness in safety and hygiene standards.

The Group ensures that there is at least one supervisor
in each outlet to strictly implement food safety and
hygiene requirements during food processing. The
Group’s employees receive training in alignment with
their job nature and requirements. The Group continually
assesses the training needs of its staff and emphasises
the importance of continuous learning to enhance their
competency and development.

During FY2024, the Group recorded approximately
12.10%° of trained employee (FY2023: approximately
6.69%), with an average of approximately 0.97 training
hours’ per trained employee (FY2023: approximately
0.80 hours).
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The percentage of trained employees and the average
training hours per employee, by gender and employee

BRI MEEEMNEDOHZIIE

BA

DHNEBERREENFIHE

category are shown below:

Percentage of Trained
Employees® (%)

A BAAT AR -

Breakdown of Trained Average Training Hours™

Employees® (%)

(hours)

FAEEE A (%) ZIEE D (%) EIEANGE (N E)
FY2024 FY2023 FY2024 FY2023 FY2024 FY2023
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

Categories Bl BREE HREE HBREE HEREE HEREE HBEE
By Gender BERIE S
Male S 8.45% 2.54% 40.98% 22.22% 0.68 0.35
Female e 17.31% 12.56% 59.02% 77.78% 1.38 1.43
By Employee Category %{EEERIES
Management EBE - 16.67% - 8.33% - 9.17
General staff —M®ET 12.53% 6.35% 100% 91.67% 1.00 0.51
Note(s): Hfat -
6. This percentage is calculated by dividing the total number of 6. ZEALNEVRFEARNNZIIE

10.

trained employees during the financial year by the total number
of employees during the financial year, including the employees
who left the Group during the financial year and multiplying by
100%.

The average training hours per employee is calculated by dividing
the total number of training hours during the financial year by the
total number of employees during the financial year, including
the employees who left the Group during the financial year.

The percentage of trained employees by category is calculated
by dividing the number of trained employees in the specified
category during the financial year by the number of employees
in the specified category during the financial year, including the
employees who left the Group during the financial year and
multiplying by 100%.

The breakdown of trained employees by category is calculated
by dividing the number of trained employees in the specified
category during the financial year by the total number of trained
employees during the financial year and multiplying by 100% .

The average training hours by category is calculated by dividing
the number of training hours for employees in the specified
category during the financial year by the number of trained
employees in the specified category during the financial year,
including the employees who left the Group during the financial
year.
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B4. Labour Standards

Child and forced labour are strictly prohibited in the
Group as defined by laws and regulations. The Group
is committed to eliminating all forms of forced labour
and supporting the effective abolition of child labour.
The Group is fully in compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations related to prevention of child labour and
forced labour.

During FY2024, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with child and forced labour-
related laws and regulations in Singapore, including
but not limited to “Employment Act” of Singapore that
would have a significant impact on the Group.

Prevention of Child and Forced Labour

The Group has established a complete recruitment
process to examine candidates’ backgrounds and
official reporting procedures to handle any exceptions.
The Human Resources Department of the Group
collects personal data during the employment process
and verifies identity documents of suitable candidates
to prevent recruitment of child labour. If any non-
compliance is found, the employment contract of the
employees involved will be terminated. To prevent
forced labour, working hours are clearly specified
in the Employee Handbook. If violation is involved,
punishment or dismissal of the related employees who
are responsible for the causes of such situations will be
conducted and the related information will be reported
to relevant governmental authorities.
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B5. Supply Chain Management
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The Group highly values its relationship with suppliers
and places heavy emphasis on the management of the
potential environmental and social risks in supply chains.
The Group aims to create a sustainable supply chain and
therefore expects all its suppliers and business partners
to uphold a similar standard in respect to environmental
issues and labour practices. Hence, the Group has
established the principle of ethical business conduct
that all supply chain partners are required to uphold. To
govern the supplier assessment process, the Group has
formulated the relevant supplier management policy,
reviewed on an annual basis.

The Group carefully selects suppliers based on criteria
including but not limited to food quality, food safety
management, sources of ingredients, pricing, capacity,
availability, track record, reputation, payment method,
delivery options and schedules. During FY2024, the
Group has a total of 272 major suppliers (FY2023: 220),
which all suppliers are located in Singapore and have
engaged through its standardised supplier assessment
process.

To reduce the environmental and social risks along
the supply chain, all suppliers are evaluated carefully
and subjected to regular monitoring and assessment
to ensure their food ingredients meet the stringent
requirements on a consistent basis, including standards
on environmental and social performance. The head
chefs are responsible to check and inspect the
purchased ingredients and food items before they are
used. Meetings with food suppliers and other service
providers on a regular basis are set out to ensure the
provision of quality dining service to customers. In
case of non-conformity, the Group will reject and return
the ingredients and food items back to their suppliers.
Besides, the Group diversifies the sources of key
ingredients suppliers to ensure a continuous supply of
the critical resource.
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Additionally, the Group endeavours to promote
environmentally preferable products and support local
economies. Priority is given to the procurement from
local and regional suppliers to lower the carbon footprint
during transportation. The Group also prioritises
suppliers that use environmentally preferable products
and services during the selection process.

Through the above approaches, the Group strives to
minimise the potential environmental and social risks in
the supply chain. The Group will continue to review its
supply chain periodically with regard to the suppliers’
performance and environmental and social standards.

Product Responsibility

Being a part of the food and beverage industry, the
Group values the quality and safety of its food products
and aims to fulfil customers’ needs and expectations.
Through efficient internal control processes, coupled
with adherence to its policies and procedures to deliver
excellent customer services, the Group is committed
to improving food quality and services and satisfying its
customers’ expectations.

During FY2024, the Group was not aware of any
incidents of non-compliance with laws and regulations
in Singapore, including but not limited to the “Sale of
Food Act” and “Personal Data Protection Act” (“PDPA")
of Singapore, that have a significant impact on the
Group, concerning advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and
methods of redress.

Food Safety and Quality

The Group recognises the importance of achieving and
maintaining high food quality standard to the sustainable
growth of the Group. It is its responsibility to ensure
that the food ingredients are safe, fresh and in good
quality upon delivery, in storage and during processing.
All suppliers are evaluated carefully before selection,
and it maintains good relationships only with qualified
suppliers.

B6.
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To further enhance the quality and safety of food
products, the Group continuously improves its
procurement as well as the food production processes.
The Group attaches great emphasis on quality
management to maintain high product quality. Apart
from performing regular identification of hazards, the
Group also establishes critical control points and timely
implements effective control and monitoring measures.

The Group appoints head chefs and supervisors to
monitor quality at each of its food establishments.
Their responsibilities include inspecting the food and
beverage supplies and ingredients, overseeing the
food preparation process and monitoring the dining
environment and kitchen area. Each of the food
establishments are cleaned and sanitised by the Group’s
staff in accordance with the policies and procedures.
During FY2024, there was no material product recalled
due to safety and health reasons (FY2023: Nil).

Customer Services and Privacy Protection

To drive the Group’s continuous improvement, it has
established multiple feedback channels, including email,
social media and facsimile, to facilitate communication
with customers and to satisfy customers’ needs. The
Group has also implemented a set of procedures to
handle customers’ complaints. Complaints received will
be handled by relevant department and action will be
taken promptly to address the identified issues. During
FY2024, no material complaint was recorded regarding
the products and services (FY2023: Nil).

The Group takes protection of its customers’
confidential information seriously. The policies listed
in the Employee Handbook have been established in
accordance with the PDPA. It seeks to protect the
customers’ information by employing data security
measures such as firewalls and anti-virus software.
The Group’'s employees are prohibited from using
the personal information of its clients for purposes
not related to the business context, no matter during
employment or after termination of employment. The
Group has carried out regular reviews on the measures
to ensure its effectiveness.
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B7.

Protection of Intellectual Property (“IP”) Rights

The Group believes its brand and IP rights are critical to
the success of the Group. For any infringements of its
IP, the Group would not hesitate to take action against
the infringers through the appropriate channels.

Responsible Marketing

The Group prohibits the advertisements to disclose
descriptions, claims or illustrations that are not true.
The Group organises promotion campaigns and creates
advertising materials in compliance with the relevant
regulations and guidelines to ensure they are reliable,
reasonable, and not containing any deceitful details
or elements in order to protect consumers’ interests,
rights and benefits.

Anti-corruption

The Group believes that integrity and credibility
of employees are vital to the Group's sustainable
development. The Group has zero tolerance for any
corruption, fraud and other behaviour. It values and
upholds integrity, honesty and fairness in the way it
conducts business.

To achieve and maintain the highest ethical standards,
the Group has established a Code of Practice (the
“Code") in compliance with related laws and regulations
to serve as the general guideline in conducting business
operations. The principles stated in the Code highlight
that all directors, officers and employees must observe
all anti-corruption laws, rules and regulations that are
relevant to the Group.

Recognising that anti-corruption training is essential
for creating a healthy corporate culture, the Group will
provide relevant training or training materials to directors
and employees at least annually. During FY2024, the
Group distributed anti-corruption training materials to
directors and employees for their self-study, which
allowed them to familiarise with their corresponding
roles and responsibilities in anti-corruption and business
ethics.
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During FY2024, there was no concluded legal case
regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group
or its employees nor any related impacts. The Group
was not aware of any material non-compliance with
the relevant laws and regulations of bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering in Singapore, including but
not limited to the "“Prevention of Corruption Act” of
Singapore.

Grievance Channel

In order to further achieve and maintain the highest
standards of openness, probity and accountability, the
Group has established a whistle-blowing mechanism.
The Employee Handbook sets out internal control
policies and procedures to govern the investigation and
follow-up procedures of reported fraud incidents, and
it is mandatory for employees to report any actions or
behaviours of bribery or misconduct. Should the Group
receive any reports, it should carry out investigations
and manage the cases in accordance with the relevant
policies and procedures. If any kind of misconduct or
malpractice is found after investigation, disciplinary
actions, straight dismissal or report to relevant legal
authorities may be taken. The employees reporting
in good faith under the whistle-blowing mechanism
can be assured of protection against unfair dismissal
or victimisation, even if the reports are subsequently
proved to be unsubstantiated. To ensure the
effectiveness of the mechanism, review is conducted
regularly.
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B8. Community Investment

The Group believes that giving back to society
through social participation and contribution is a form
of responsible corporate citizenship. It also sees the
potential to nurture a caring corporate culture and
inspire its employees towards social concerns as part of
work life. By participating in activities that contribute to
the community, it can enhance the civic awareness of
its employees.

The Group mainly focused on helping the needy
in society. In FY2024, the Group donated a sum of
S$521,000 to different organisations and charities. The
donations primarily focus on improving community
art and welfare. They also support youth education
initiatives.

The Group is committed to developing long-term
relationships with all stakeholders and sustaining its
corporate social responsibility as a part of the strategic
development of the Group.
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B LB RERE

THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX OF
THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED

Mandatory Disclosure Requirements

BEMERE

ERBESXZMARATDNCRE -
HERERREEIDABRRLIX

Section/Declaration

ZH 89

Governance Structure

The ESG Governance Structure, Chairman’s Statement

BIRRE

Reporting Principles
s RA
Reporting Boundary
HEHE

Subject Areas, Aspects,

RIE -HENEREARE  TREMS

Reporting Framework

WMEER

Scope of Reporting

W E

General Disclosures and KPIs Description Section/Declaration
TEEHE EBE -
—REBERBRERES it E=4:i ) 1!
Aspect A1: Emissions
EBEA1: HBY
General Disclosure Information on: Emissions
(@)  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to air
and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste.
—RREE BRAERIOAERBEER - AR K1 R
BT BERBEEEVNEESH
(@) WK K
(b)) BTHETABEAXZENIEH
ER RO ERS o
KPI'A1.1 The types of emissions and respective Emissions — Exhaust Gas Emissions

RS DUIRIR AL

emissions data.

PP iE AR R ARRE BE R BUR -
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Subject Areas, Aspects,

General Disclosures and KPls Description Section/Declaration
TEHE - EH-

—REBRBRENES g =889

KPI'A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect Emissions — GHG Emissions

BRI TUEIZEAT .2

KPI'A1.3

AR A BUIEIZA13

KPI'A1.4

BB IEIZEAT S

KPI'A1.5

RS AE AR IEIR A1 G

KPI'A1.6

RS AERIEIRA1.6

(Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions

(in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

HE (BE) kg REE (8E2)R=
RESHEE (AT E) & (@Eh) B
(WABESEM - BFHERBAH) o

Total hazardous waste produced

(in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
FIELBEREEYEE (BEETE) k(1A
BR)EE (WABES B - §IERE
) -

Total non-hazardous waste produced

(in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
FrELAEREEEYES (AEE) k(11
HR)EE(WMASEREMN - BIERE
FTE) o

Description of emissions target(s) set
and steps taken to achieve them.
HIMFTATZEVBEME B R R RERE L
BIRATERERE) 88 o

Description of how hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes are handled, and a
description of reduction target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them.
HEREEERBEEENN L Rk
PR L EV R EE B IR R R ERE LR
TEPTERERH 2P o

HER) — R E RN

Emissions — Waste Management

Bt — ERYER

Emissions — Waste Management

B — EEMERE

Environmental Targets,
Emissions — GHG Emissions
RIREE B — REREBHEW

Environmental Targets,
Emissions — Waste Management

RIREE ) —EEDER
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Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs
TEEE - EH -
—REERARENER

Description

i

Section/Declaration

;01

Aspect A2: Use of Resources
EEA2: EREA

General Disclosure

— R E

KPIA2.1

BSR4 IR IR A2.1

KPI'A2.2

RS A IR IR A2.2

KPI'A2.3

RS AE IR IRA2.3

KPI'A2.4

RS IEIR A2 4

KPI'A2.5

RS AE IR IRA2.5

114

Policies on the efficient use of
resources, including energy, water and
other raw materials.
BREBER(BIERIR
A BIEUR -

KR EAMR

Direct and/or indirect energy
consumption by type (e.g. electricity,
gas or oil) in total (kWh in "000s) and
intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
T BAE S EE R SBEER (N
~ﬂ&&%ﬁ%ﬂ%$l¥ﬁ%ﬁ%)
&nr«mugégmu SIS T

st
= o
o

Water consumption in total and intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per

facility).
i@ﬁm;&%ﬂ*(ﬁm EEEf T
T E

Description of energy use efficiency
target(s) set and steps taken to achieve
them

IR FTET BB IR A e B IR R B3
F 35 L B 1R P ERER Y 2P BR -

Description of whether there is any
issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose, water efficiency target(s) set
and steps taken to achieve them.

el SR ERGE R 7KOR R B ERIERE - A
RETEISLH RK e B IR RO E S| 5 &
B 1R P ERER ) 22 B -

Total packaging material used for
finished products (in tonnes) and, if
applicable, with reference to per unit
produced.

BN MATAREMENEE (UEFTE
R(WER) BEEBIEE -
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Environmental Targets,
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Subject Areas, Aspects,

General Disclosures and KPIs Description
TEHE - EH-

—REBRBRENES g

Section/Declaration

;8- 1)

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

BHEA3: BERIXRER

General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s
significant impacts on the environment
and natural resources.

—RREE IR BT ABRIBERRAREREKEKR
FERLER °

KPI' A3.1 Description of the significant impacts
of activities on the environment and
natural resources and the actions taken
to manage them.

R EBIER A3 L EBEBEIRIFE R AR ERNER
FENEERNERBBEENITE -

Aspect A4: Climate Change

[EEA4 : RIZE1L

General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation
of significant climate-related issues
which have impacted, and those which
may impact, the issuer.

—RREE Bl REHE KK ﬁ%;%ﬁéﬁAFi
FEMNENRIRAEEERHE

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-
related issues which have impacted,

and those which may impact, the issuer,

and the actions taken to manage them.
RS AE IR IR A4 BB KA HBEITAEETLEDN
BARKEFAEE @ RELHITE -

The Environment and Natural
Resources

REMKAEIR

The Environment and Natural
Resources

REMKABIR

Climate Change

Climate Change

RIRE
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Subject Areas, Aspects,

General Disclosures and KPIs Description Section/Declaration
TEHE - EH-
—REBRBRENES it E3:i ) 1!
Aspect B1: Employment
BmEB1: EE
General Disclosure Information on: Employment
(@) the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits
and welfare
— MR EE BT EARE BRREA - TIER =
B REY - FERE  ZUb RER
DA Ko B At 155 38 e AR AN
(@) BE: K
(b) ETFHETABEAZEHNIEH
ER RO ERS o
KPI'B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment Employment
type (for example, full- or part-time), age
group and geographical region.
B A IE1E B IR EREER (a2 B SRR  F (=
AR KRB HIEE A -
KPIB1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age Employment
group and geographical region.
BB A IE1EB1.2 BRI FhE R R E 5 EE BN (=2
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Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs
FTEEE - EH -
—REERARENESR

Description

i

e

Section/Declaration

;8- 1)

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
BEB2: B#FEHEZE

General Disclosure

— R E

KPI'B2.1

BB 4B IR B2.1

KPI'B2.2

RS AR IR 1IR B2.2

KPI'B2.3

RS IR 1R B2.3

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating
to providing a safe working
environment and protecting
employees from occupational

hazards
EHRELZE2THERRRREESE
BEEEERN:
@) B R

b) ETHETABERTZEEM
ERRBROIER -

Number and rate of work-related
fatalities occurred in each of the past
three years including the reporting year.
BEZF (BEERFE)BFAITH
BABUR L -

Lost days due to work injury.

HIGHEEAIIERE -

Description of occupational health and
safety measures adopted, and how they
are implemented and monitored.

TP ER M B R 2 24 - A
MABABMITRERGE -
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Subject Areas, Aspects,

General Disclosures and KPIs Description Section/Declaration
TEHE - EH-
—REERARENER it =a: g 1

Aspect B3: Development and Training
BEB3: #REKRIEZI
General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ Development and Training
knowledge and skills for discharging
duties at work. Description of training
activities.
— MR EE ERRARE BT TIEBE MM R R IE
BEROBUR © IR FNES -

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained Development and Training
by gender and employee category
(e.g. senior management, middle
management).
AR A NIEE B3 BMRIREESRERN (SR EERE - R R RIE
REERE) S >NXIEEBDL -

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed Development and Training
per employee by gender and employee
category.

R4 B X512 B3.2 BRI REERMNE D - BRESTK R R IE

Sl IR 8L o
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Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs
FTEEE - EH -
—REERARENESR

Description

i

e

Section/Declaration

;8- 1)

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
fETEB4 : & T%#H|

General Disclosure

— BB

KPI B4.1

B AR IEIE B4

KPI B4.2

R AE IR B4.2

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
preventing child and forced labour

BRI IEE Tk b4 TH)

(@) BE: Kk

(b) BEFHBETABEAZENHEHA
ERRABIEER

Description of measures to review
employment practices to avoid child and
forced labour.

iR B Ef AR RET R
SRS T .

Description of steps taken to eliminate
such practices when discovered.

IR IR RGN ER A BB
EREREY B o
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Subject Areas, Aspects,

General Disclosures and KPIs  Description
TEHE - EH-

—REBRBRENES it

Section/Declaration

;01

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[EEB5 : HEHEERE

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and
social risks of the supply chain.

— M H R EREEENRERASRRBUR

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical
region.

RS2 4E IE 1R BE.1 i@ E S HEREE -

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating

to engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are
being implemented, and how they are
implemented and monitored

RASE4E IE1R B5.2 MG RHERNED - MERT
BRABOINHEREE - U RBEHT
REERTTE -

KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify
environmental and social risks along
the supply chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

B4R A IE1E B5.3 LB R EE T IR HIRIE &
HtEREAEN - UARBBERTRER
Tk e

KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote

environmentally preferable products
and services when selecting suppliers,
and how they are implemented and

monitored.

AR ENIEEBS.4 i LA B (L PE P R (SR % IR IREE
KR EED - LA RAABEIRITRER T
A o
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Subject Areas, Aspects,

General Disclosures and KPIs Description
TEHE - EH-

—REBRBRENES g

Section/Declaration

;8- 1)

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[EEmB6: EmEE
General Disclosure Information on:
(@)  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress.

—BE BEFTREERMRENEELEZ S -
EE - ZREABEE AR EN
(@ XK K

b) BTHETABEAFZEMEM
EREBPINER -

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or
shipped subject to recalls for safety and
health reasons.

RS2 4E MIE 1R B6.1 PEHCEXEREBT R T HER
EHMARKEBE DL -

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related
complaints received and how they are
dealt with.

B4 IETR B6.2 BEEBNERRRBHRFEE ARE
HHE -

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to

observing and protecting intellectual
property rights.

B4 MIETR B6.3 B MR ABEE G EED -

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process
and recall procedures.

RS2 4E WIE1E B6.4 HilE ERTEBRIENREREBIZT

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection

and privacy policies, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

RS 4E I 1E B6.5 MU BEERRERALBEE - AR
MHERITRERTE -

Product Responsibility

i
20
il
[k

Product Responsibility — Food Safety
and Quality

EREF—RmLelhEE

Product Responsibility — Customer
Services and Privacy Protection

ERET —BPRELLERE

Product Responsibility — Protection
of Intellectual Property (“IP") Rights

EmBEE — RENIERE ([HNBE
1)

Product Responsibility — Food Safety
and Quality
EmEEt—RmxahEE

Product Responsibility — Customer
Services and Privacy Protection

EREE —BPRELLERE
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Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs
TEEE - EH -
—REERARENER

Description

i

Section/Declaration

;01

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
BEB7: RES

General Disclosure

—RWE

KPI'B7.1

RS 4B IR BT

KPI B7.2

AR EBIEIEBT7.2

KPI'B7.3

RAS AR MRS B7.3

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating
to bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering

BRI IEFER - 9% - BEF R REN

(@) B &

(b)) BTHETABEAXENIEH
ER RO ERS o

Number of concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.
RERARNHETASHESERLDLE
BRNESFHFARMAOEE RFRGER -

Description of preventive measures and
whistleblowing procedures, how they
are implemented and monitored.

Ha At By &5 5 R AR T - A R AR
TRERFIE -

Description of anti-corruption training
provided to directors and staff.

AmESTRE TRENRESHE -
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Subject Areas, Aspects,

General Disclosures and KPIs Description
TEHE - EE -

—REBRBRENES g

Section/Declaration

;8- 1)

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[ETHEBS : HtEBRE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement
to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’

interests.

—MRiREE BN RBERTREEMETRE
E%ﬂﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁ%i&%@”*%?ﬁliﬂ =)
BR

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g.

education, environmental concerns,
labour needs, health, culture, sport).

RAR B B 1R B8 ETEREE (NHE REEH 4
IHEK -2 ik 8BF) -

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or
time) to the focus area.
AR A MBS BS.2 EEIEBMEAEIR (N )
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Community Investment

Community Investment

HEERE

Community Investment

HEERE
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Independent Auditor’s Report
T8 3 A7 B A ¥

Rooms 1007-1012, 10/F.
K. Wah Centre
191 Java Road

6 IR 3T ER AT A TR 5]

ab
it A
BEE 1915

Fan, Chan & Co. Limited  North Point HEEERL
Hong Kong 1012 1007-1012 &

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF K2 F&B HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of K2 F&B
Holdings Limited (the “Company") and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 132 to 231, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2024, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2024 - and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs") issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB"”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code"”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (Continued)

BN R RS (8)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

FRESER

BREAFESREESSNERHE  RA
RESZHAYBENGAEVBEBREBRT RS
EENFE BFHEURAVBRMABRE
TERITMEESBAREEREEE M
TERUHEEREREFOER -

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these

matters.

Key audit matter

HEETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEBERNMEERRENSEE

Valuation of investment properties:

REMEMLE

We identified the valuation of investment properties as
a key audit matter due to the inherent level of complex
and subjective judgements and estimates required in
determining the fair values.
HRETATEASHNEREETABEFLTEBHER
HEESEREEMEMER AARETTSIE -

The Group's investment properties portfolio comprises
food courts located in Singapore and is stated at fair
value of approximately S$135,600,000, accounting for
approximately 66.5% of the Group’s total assets as at
31 December 2024 with a fair value gain on investment
properties of approximately S$1,546,000 recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income for the year then ended
as disclosed in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.
EEENREMFEHGBBEUNRIIENEZRES
Tz A F{E49135,600,000 ¥ 0K Ly iE - 16 E&E
2024512 A3 HM B EEK665%  REMER
FEWE XY 1,546,000 5 IR T EREZEZ B IEFEH
meERkAEMEEKERAER MRS 8% H
RMFE15PTHRER) -

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of
investment properties included:

FEEUREAMELREETORFEHE

° Evaluating the competence, capabilities, and
objectivity of the Valuer and obtaining an
understanding of the Valuer's scope of work
and their terms of engagement;

o  FTEMMERAES N REEM - W T ARG
ERM ) TVESE B R Z IR

o Evaluating the appropriateness of the Valuer's
valuation approach to assess if it meets the
requirements of the IFRSs and industry norms;

e  HEMERMZHEEIRNZSHEE  UFTHER
BRE BRI ®EER RITEEOIHRE
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (Continued)

BN AR E ()

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

HEETER

EEESEE A

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEBERNMEERRENSEE

Valuation of investment properties: (Continued)

BREWEMGE : (&)

The Group's investment properties are measured using
the fair value model based on a valuation performed
by an independent qualified professional valuer (the
“Valuer”). As disclosed in notes 4 and 15 to the
consolidated financial statements, in determining
the fair values of the Group’s completed investment
properties, the Valuer has applied valuation techniques
for the respective properties, which involved, inter-alia,
judgements and use of certain estimates, including
market transactions of comparable properties.
EXENREMENREBBE IS ERFTEMEM ([
BER ) ETHMHE RAQATEEXGEZ - HUEE
MBEmAMTARGHEE  REF EXEBEEEX
BEMEZ ANTER  HEMEREVEEANBER
FERMEERN - Rk (KR aE) I REAAL
BMFE B 52ETFMEtr -
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° Challenging the reasonableness of the key
assumptions and appropriateness of valuation
models applied based on available market data
and our knowledge of the property industry and
whether the assumptions and methodologies
are consistent with those used in prior year;

s REMEMSEBELEFUMERITENRE
hBEETEREMEEMRAEABEELNE
BN URBEREEFEZRSHEBEFEM
& B

o Assessing the reasonableness of key inputs
used in the valuation, on a sample basis, by
checking to the publicly available information
on comparable market transactions; and

e FRBREARASHALRTEISER - H
A mEREANFEHRBARE S
54

o Checking arithmetical accuracy of calculations.
e REBRMAESDERER -



Independent Auditor’'s Report (Continued)

BN R RS (8)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

K2 F&B HOLDINGS LIMITED / 2024 £ 3§
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (Continued)

BN AR E ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’'s internal
control.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (Continued)

BN R RS (8)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

RBMRET FEVBRRARNE
£ (&)

HEEEMRASIRERERE AR
HEMM AT MBARERTAE -

HEERAKBELLE G ERRTRE
fEH i - WARBEERN R BE -

ERAFERFHELBRAABNERT
HEM  EMAeEsyE BESENE
BREBENELERRE - WEZAR
BFEEATHEEN  AIEFAEZBED
BETRBEAEIEFEAMBRERT
MAREE  MERERETE Al
RIESHNER BENERIDENZE
B B PSR RETRE - A
AKRERESBIENATELER BEEETRE

g2 gy A
S o

AR B RROEBEIIBIA - &
BUAZR  BERE UARGEaMER
REBRFRINEBERHNEHE-
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (Continued)

BN AR E ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

° Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business units within the group as a basis
for forming an opinion on the group financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and review of
the audit work performed for purposes of the group audit.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (Continued)

BN R RS (8)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Fan, Chan & Co. Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Yee Wai Man
Practising Certificate Number P05594

Hong Kong, 28 March 2025
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
meBEmkEMEE RS

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &%= 20244 12 A31 HiFF/Z

2024 2023
2024 2023 4F
Notes S$$000 S$'000
M5 Fam#Ex  FEFMET
Revenue W 6 57,172 55,740
Fair value gain of investment properties ¥ & %% A FEUW 15 1,546 6,320
Other income, gains and losses, net  EfbUg A ~ Wz & B 18558 7 1,061 1,242
Cost of inventories consumed FTBFET &R (18,527) (18,732)
Staff costs B ITKA 9 (17,417) (16,964)
Property rentals and related expenses 434 RIEEF X (4,572) (4,362)
Management, cleaning and B BERLAEEMRX
utilities expenses (3,325) (3,403)
Depreciation of property, WME - -BELREBINE
plant and equipment 16 (1,738) (2,028)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 17 (3,579) (2,977)
Other operating expenses HgEM= (3,928) (4,127
Finance costs B 75 B AR 8 (3,616) (2,790)
Profit before tax BRBE A% R 9 3,077 7,919
Taxation IR 12 (284) (609)
Profit for the year FEEF 2,793 7,310
Other comprehensive Hinam ()M
(expense)/income
Item that may be reclassified BEEF PR By IHA

subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating /BN EBBEELRNER =58

foreign operations (3) -
Item that will not be reclassified TR EEN P EEEmAIEE -
to profit or loss:
Gain on revaluation of properties Yy E R E e W - 1,534
Total comprehensive income FEXENGZHEE
for the year 2,790 8,844
Profit for the year attributable to: UWTATEEFERF :
Owners of the Company KRARHEA A 2,811 7,310
Non-controlling interests FEIE P = (18) -
2,793 7,310
Total comprehensive income IATATEEEEREREE
attributable to:
Owners of the Company KRNAHEA A 2,809 8,844
Non-controlling interests FEI= P e = (19) -
2,790 8,844
Earnings per share BRER
Basic and diluted (in Singapore cents)  E 7K &2 #4858 (¥ hn3g ) 14 0.35 0.91
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MEIRILR

As at 31 December 2024 120244 12 A31 H

2024 2023
2024 F 20234
Notes S$'000 S$'000
e T Fhn T T b3 T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties A 15 135,600 132,750
Property, plant and equipment W - BER&E 16 48,621 43,473
Right-of-use assets FHEEE 17 7,681 9,158
Deferred tax assets EEIREE 28 28 51
Deposits paid BiEe 20 1,544 1,182
Investment in an associate R—HEBE AR Z2RE 23 4 4
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFABZNEHEE
through profit or loss 21 788 743
194,266 187,361
Current assets RBEE
Inventories T8 18 159 219
Trade and other receivables B 5 K H b e W s s 19 612 526
Prepayments and deposits paid ENRERENES 20 788 1,574
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFABSHNEREE
through profit or loss 21 47 48
Pledged bank deposits BRI 22 1,015 1,015
Cash and cash equivalents Be MRS EEY 22 7,158 7,386
9,779 10,768
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade payables E 5 ENFIE 24 2,628 3,273
Accruals, other payables and FEETEBR - HME[KIE
deposits received B Wize 25 6,828 6,033
Borrowings RN 26 9,891 7,106
Lease liabilities HEBE 27 3,524 3,353
Tax payables FERELIE 346 613
23,217 20,378
Net current liabilities REBABEFEE (13,438) (9,610)
Total assets less current liabilities #REERFBHERS 180,828 177,751
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
e MG R R (8)

As at 31 December 2024 120244 12 A31 H

2024 2023
2024 F 20234
Notes S$$000 S$'000
{hg= FHrm#EoT  FEFMET
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Borrowings B 26 85,777 83,547
Lease liabilities HEAE 27 4,794 6,459
Provision for reinstatement costs 1E1E R A B 25 484 302
Other payables and deposits received  E fb fE 5008 & 2 Wik & 25 565 1,025
91,620 91,333
Net assets FEE 89,208 86,418
Capital and reserves IR 7 R e 4
Share capital f& 7 29 1,381 1,381
Reserves s 30 87,846 85,037
Equity attributable to owners of the RARHE ANEGER
Company 89,227 86,418
Non-controlling interests e M (19) -
Total equity R 89,208 86,418

REBRFEINEWBIENGEATBERER
2025F 3 A28 HEEZE S L & M IRET %
VHNANTESRREE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 132 to 231 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28
March 2025 and signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Chu Chee Keong (Zhu Zhigiang) Ms. Leow Poh Hoon (Liao Baoyun)

REBEE BE=m*
Executive Director Executive Director
HITEE HITEFE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GAMNEDE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 220244 12 A31 HiF F/Z

Attributable
to the
Other  Properties owners of Non-
Share Share reserve revaluation  Retained Translation the  controlling Total
capital  Premium (Note) reserve  earnings reserve  Company interest equity
Efifee Nz A2R
Bx  RBEE (W) EfRE REEN AERE RAARG FBRER g
8000 S§000 58000 S§'000 58000 S§000 58000 S§000 $§/000
Himgn TRk TREMT THMET FEMRR TRMET  FEMgR TRmgT RN
At 1 January 2023 RABE1A18 1,381 21,708 2,79 - 51,69 - 71574 - 71574
Profit for the year Egad - - - - 7,310 - 7,310 - 7310
Other comprehensive income £t 2 A& - - - 1534 - - 1534 - 1534
Total comprehensive income ~ 2EMEES - - - 1,534 7310 - 8844 - 8844
At 31 December 2023 R0BF12A318 1,381 21,708 2,79 1,534 59,005 - 86,418 - 86,418
At 1 January 2024 A0uE1 518 1381 21,708 2,790 153% 59,005 - 86418 - 86418
Issue of share capital to HELARFERRIRE
non<controlling shareholder /7R
by a subsidiary - - - - - - - -# -
Profit for the year ERRH - - - - 2811 - 2811 (18) 2793
Other comprehensive expense M2 E R - - - - - (2) (2) (1) 3)
Total comprehensive 2EkE/(F%) 8%
income/(expense) - - - - 2,811 (2) 2,809 (19 2,790
At 31 December 2024 R04E12A318 1,381 21,708 2,790 1534 61,816 2) 89,227 (19) 89,208

*: Less than S$1,000

Note: The other reserve of the Group represents the reserve arising from
restructuring of the Group for initial public offering of the Company’s shares.

11,000 ¥ AN 7T

ETERELRRFE -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

l\‘/T\ EE v \/Zl\:l\:%i%

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &%= 20244 12 A31 HiFF/Z

2024 2023
2024 2023 4F
S$'000 S$'000
FHmExT  FEMHEIT
Operating activities RETEH
Profit before tax B 11 Bl i A 3,077 7,919
Adjustments for: BLATIEB B 3%
Depreciation of property, ME - BEREEITE
plant and equipment 1,738 2,028
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 3,579 2,977
Finance costs R IDFN 3,616 2,790
Exchange (gain)/loss, net &5 (Was), B8 %58 (28) 8
Interest income B A (43) (3)
Dividend income from financial assets & A F{Ezt AIBz
at fair value through profit or loss ([BAFETAEBREDH
("FVTPL") TREEELNREKA (3) (10)
Fair value (gain)/loss of financial EAFEFABZNEREE
assets at FVTPL AFE (W), BB (22) 10
Fair value gain of investment REMELNTEKE
properties (1,546) (6,320)
Gain on disposal of financial assets LEME - BREREHE 2 W=
at FVTPL - (30)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FHB ARz - (1,205)
Gain on termination of lease contract R IFFEA L 2 Wk - (4)
Gain on disposal of an investment HEREY R 2 WE
property (450) -
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEME  BEREEZ
plant and equipment, net (Ma) B8 588 (235) 157
Operating cash flows before changes ¥ EE ¢ #HHKE RS HE
in working capital 9,683 8,317
Increase in trade and other receivables & 5 & H th & Ig 3k E 18 1 (86) (21)
Decrease in inventories FERD 60 15
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments  FEfTZHIE RS RE D
and deposits paid (1) 424 (506)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables & 5 & FUB Crl 4 ), 1N (639) 385
Increase in accruals, other payables and JE5T & « E b fE S ZE &
deposits received B U R 5 180 696 1,228
Cash generated from operating BRETEBERS
activities 10,138 9,418
Income tax paid BAIAEH (528) (525)
Net cash generated from operating K& FE SRS FE
activities 9,610 8,893
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
melRenEgak (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 220244 12 A31 HiF F/Z

2024 2023
2024 % 2023 F
Notes S$'000 S$'000

Bt FHMFEIT  TEIET

Investing activities RETE
Interest income received B F B HA 43 3
Payment for purchases and additions HBERAEWE - HE &

of property, plant and equipment B{ANEN (3,514) (3,667)
Net cash outflow upon acquisition FRUNE—EIWE A B

of investment property through WEMERNFREM

acquisition of a subsidiary 35 (2,000) -
Additional costs of investment A EEREINK A

property (154) -
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—EHBAR 36 - 6,271
Investment in an associate R—EEERRRE - (4)
Proceeds from disposal of an HEREYMEMSHIE

investment property 3,304 —
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - HE &

plant and equipment BU=RIECE/ e 733 35
Proceeds from disposal of financial HEEAFEFTABERN

assets at FVTPL S REEMNSEIE - 933
Dividend received from financial assets B 1Z A FET ABZEH

at FVTPL T RE E WA AR B 3 10

Net cash (used in)/generated from % &;E& (FTA), Fid

investing activities RE&FE (1,585) 3,681
Financing activities RS SEE
Proceeds from bank borrowings IRITRERATBRIEB 15,720 2,800
Repayment of bank borrowings BEEBITER (16,260) (8,057)
Finance costs paid BT B AR AR (4,115) (3,233)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHEAE (3,595) (2,644)
Net cash used in financing activities FE ZEFfTAR S EE (8,250) (11,134)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash HERBELZEE/YWORD)/

and cash equivalents BT (225) 1,440
Cash and cash equivalents at the FUHERASEEY

beginning of the year 7,386 5,946
Exchange differences on translating 8GN & E S HIE X =28

foreign operations (3) -
Cash and cash equivalents at ERASRBEESEEY

the end of the year 7,158 7,386
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 &%= 20244 12 A31 HiFF/Z

138

GENERAL INFORMATION

K2 F&B Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law as an
exempted company with limited liability on 13 March 2018.
Its parent company is Strong Oriental Limited which is
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and the ultimate
controlling shareholder of the Company is Mr. Chu Chee
Keong (Zhu Zhigiang), who is also an executive director of the
Company. The shares of the Company have been listed on
the Main Board (the “Main Board”) of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 6 March
2019. The registered office is located at Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman lIslands. The headquarters and principal place of
business of the Company in Singapore is 51 Ubi Avenue 1,
#02-17 Paya Ubi Industrial Park, Singapore 408933.

The Company is an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the leasing, outlet
and stall management of food establishment premises and
operation of food and beverage stalls. The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Singapore dollars
("S$"), which is also the functional currency of the Company.
All values are rounded to the nearest thousand (“S$'000"),
except when otherwise indicated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e SRR R (B

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 220244 12 A31 HiF F/Z

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (IFRSs)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to IFRSs issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB") that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the Group:

° Amendments to IFRS 16, Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback

° Amendments to IAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current

° Amendments to IAS 1, Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants

° Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7, Supplier Finance
Arrangements

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to IFRSs in the current year has had no material
effect on the Group’s financial performance and positions for
the current and prior year and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements:

2.

&R #TR] R ARMERT B BR B A 3R &
ZR (BRI R ELER )

RAFE ANEBECEAEE S ER
BEEe ((HREFERNESEE ) BN
AEBEASHHRERERNEETH
PR RS ¥R SR

o BIRMBWEEIF 165 (EFT

. REFHERIE 1SR (BRTA) - &
BESERBRBBRELFREE

&

o BEREEAFE 1R (ETAX) - M
AN IERE R E

o BIREEAFTREBRTBR
ERAF T (ERIA) - HER
B

B T SRt oh - 707N 6 K FE PR B R B 7S
BEEBITAHAEBARFERBE
FENUBRARMAL, XZSEE
MBREMENPELBEAZE
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2.

140

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (IFRSs) (Continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to IAS
1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current and Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current
Liabilities with Covenants

As a result of the adoption of the amendments to IAS 1, the
Group changed its accounting policy for the classification of
borrowings:

"Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless, at the
end of the reporting period, the Group has a right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the
reporting period. Covenants that the Group is required to
comply with, on or before the end of the reporting period, are
considered in classifying loan arrangements with covenants
as current or non-current. Covenants that the Group is
required to comply with after the reporting period do not
affect the classification at the reporting date.”

The application of the amendments in the current year had no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI EHRR MR (58)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 220244 12 A31 HiF F/Z

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (IFRSs) (Continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not applied the following new and
amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective in these consolidated financial statements.

FE PR #T R R ARME R BB B A 3R
ZR (BB BHREER ] (&)

EHEMERERZHTREETH
BRRA R R

AREE RN ZFHRA VBRI ER A
TEEMIERERZH R RAEEFT B
BIFS RS R o

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RUTH#S 2%
RN EHHBENR

° Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7, Amendments to the Classification and

Measurement of Financial Instruments

BRHBRELERNLORRERM B REENFE 7R (BFIAN) - 28 T A5 EH

FTEZEET

° Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28, Sale or Contribution of Assets between an

Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

1 January 2026

20261 A1H

To be determined

BRI S ERIE 105t R ER S ERIE 285 (BRI A) REFHAB LN A BT

A EPEZAAEEHELRA

° Amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards, Annual Improvements to IFRS

Accounting Standards — Volume 11

BRI S ERI QR RR 2 18R] - BRI B 88 &5 B R @ 51 B Al e F R 28 —

11 /it
° Amendments to IAS 21, Lack of Exchangeability
BIFR & 5t AE 21 5% (IBETA) » s AT A 1214

° IFRS 18, Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements

BRI RS ERF 185 A EHREZZIRHKE

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the
impact of these new and amendments to IFRSs but is not yet
in a position to state whether these new and amendments
to IFRSs would have a material impact on its results of
operations and financial position.

1 January 2026

202651 A1 R

1 January 2025
20251 H1H
1 January 2027
20271 H1H

NEBE BT HREHT REETEH
BREA TS TR ERIM RS E - M 18 R AE AR AP
ZEFFT REETEBRM SRS £ S
CHHEBEERUBERREEERY
@,
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3.

142

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable IFRSs issued by IASB.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (”Listing Rules”)
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for investment properties
and certain financial assets which are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies below.

As of 31 December 2024, the Group's current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by S$13,438,000. Having
considered the Group’s internal resources, cash flows from
operations and unutilised banking facilities amounting to
approximately S$10,824,000 as at 31 December 2024, the
directors of the Company have, at the time of approving the
consolidated financial statements, a reasonable expectation
that the Group has sufficient financial resources to enable the
Group to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future, Thus they continue to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting in preparing the consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 220244 12 A31 HiF F/Z

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

For investment properties which are transacted at fair value
and a valuation technigue that unobservable inputs are to
be used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that at initial recognition
the results of the valuation technique equal the transaction
price.

Ej(%%;l_‘rﬂz ﬁ*il'(nﬁ)

RBEE (E)
A —BBEIBRERERBELSE T
MREAFEERT -

N EAME2EERFTEBRESR

REPHEEEMBEMIBREREMX
HEER MAmZERSATERERE
e BEMAERMGE S -

FEMEENAFEFESFT RMEZ
HEFARAREERZEEERRE
RERERBLEZEETHERARERE
RAZEEZRREAEZNS—E2MEHE2
B2 T BE AR AR B MR O BE T ©

RBRATEXINREMEUARRER
HEFERAFERER T BRE AR
Bz EERMTE @ AEHRTE FUR
B SEERM S RN &R R H
RHEHEE -
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3.

144

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significant of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

Basis of consolidation
The principal accounting policies are set out below.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses

and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for
the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group which qualifies
as business combination, except for those acquisitions which
qualify as a common control combination and are therefore
accounted for using the merger accounting.

Under the acquisition method of accounting, subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from
the date that control ceases. The cost of an acquisition
is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity
instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at
the date of exchange and, all acquisition-related costs are
expensed. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s net
assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in
the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case
of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Ej{%ﬁiﬂz ﬁﬂ(nﬁ)

EBa 6
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Revenue and other income recognition

Under IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
("IFRS 15"), the Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group's performance as
the Group performs;

o the Group's performance creates and enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group performs;
or

° the Group’'s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic

benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Revenue and other income recognition (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Food and beverages income

Revenue arising from the sale of food and beverages
is recognised in profit or loss at the point of sale to
customers. Revenue is after deduction of any sale
discount.

Rental income

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term. Contingent rentals
are recognised as income in the accounting period in
which they are earned.

Provision of management, cleaning and
utilities services

Revenue from the rendering of outlet management
services and utilities services to the tenants are
recognised over time.

Revenue from provision of cleaning services is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the terms of the
service agreements upon rendering of services.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost that
are not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is
applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For
credit-impaired financial assets, the effective interest
rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying
amount net of loss allowance) of the asset.

3. Ej{%ﬁiﬂz ﬁﬂ(nﬁ)
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Leases

The Group as lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of

the non-lease components.

The Group also applies practical expedient not to separate
non-lease components from lease component, and instead
account for the lease component and any associated non-

lease components as a single lease component.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of food centres that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. It also applies the recognition exemption
for lease of low-value assets. Lease payments on short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis or another systematic basis

over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and

adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term are depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the

shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted for under
IFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

° the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review/expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)
Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

° the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of
the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at
the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-
of-use asset. When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of lease

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
finance or operating leases. WWhenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset, and such costs are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term except for
investment properties measured under fair value model.
Variable lease payments for operating leases that depend
on an index or a rate are estimated and included in the total
lease payments to be recognised on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as income when they
arise.

Interest and rental income which are derived from the
Group's ordinary course of business are presented as
revenue.

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

When a contract includes both lease and non-lease
components, the Group applies IFRS 15 to allocate the
consideration under the contract to each component. Non-
lease components are separated from lease component on
the basis of their relative stand-alone selling prices.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor (Continued)
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
IFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments from lessees.

Lease modification

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease
as a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to
the original lease as part of the lease payments for the new
lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of the consolidated
entities, transactions in currencies other than the entity's
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At each reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the rates prevailing at the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary

items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

K2 F&BHOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUALREPORT 2024

Eﬁgﬁﬂz ﬁﬂ(nﬁ)

HE (&)
FEBAESHEA (R
REHEEHRE

ERARERERSRIEERMBHRS
ERFEIRARBENT IR FERFE -
B HERE R AL R BRR
REHEANEINEENK

HEEET

AEEREEHEERaEREMEH
RIESFHEAR UKEBREEE
MR S EHEN TR B EE
MHEENK D -

s

E’\iﬁ%i?é%ﬁfﬂﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁ% Nz E

BREER ZINE %(9\\%)5_{72%%
BLM&%E!,HHZEE THE RFER - NER
EHE - DA?\\%EHEWTMQE&EL
TRz AMRITEREHNE - IRRF
BIIRNAINESHEREEHIAE TR E
EAFEEAMNRITEREHNME - 11
S ARSI BR ASNES R B SE B # IR B
AT EHBRE -

BEEBHEMENREEEHBER
EiZER%%ﬁAEAFﬁFEHﬁFﬁZTam
HER



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

l\‘/T\

&M ERRMNE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; %= 20244 12 A 31 HiF F/Z

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and all attached
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for
which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When the
grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as profit or loss in
equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related
asset.

When the Group receives grants of non-monetary assets,
the asset and the grant are recorded at nominal amounts and
released to profit or loss over the expected useful life in a
pattern of consumption of the benefit of the underlying asset
by equal annual instalments.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. All other
borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

Employee benefits
Defined contribution retirement plan

The Group makes contributions to the Central Provident Fund
("CPF") scheme in Singapore, a defined contribution pension
scheme. These contributions are recognised as an expense
in the period in which they become payable in accordance
with the scheme. CPF is a compulsory comprehensive
social security system for working Singapore Citizens and
Permanent Residents to reserve funds for retirement.
Employers must pay a monthly contribution calculated at a
range of 7.5% to 17.0% of the employee’s monthly salary,
depending on their age group and capped at S$6,800 per
month. The Group has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Defined contribution retirement plan (Continued)

The Group contributes to a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “"MPF
Scheme"”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance for all employees in Hong Kong. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees' relevant
income and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed in the MPF Scheme.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contribution to the MPF Scheme
at 5% of the employees' relevant income subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the
MPF Scheme vest immediately.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

(a) Current income tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from “Profit before
taxation” as reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

(b)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or
recoverable on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and their respective tax bases used
in computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities
or deferred tax assets for investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model, the carrying
amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption
is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held within
a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment property over time, rather than through
sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-
of-use assets and the related lease liabilities, the
Group first determines whether the tax deductions are
attributable to the right-of-use or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies IAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities separately. The Group recognises
a deferred tax asset related to lease liabilities to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary
difference can be utilised and a deferred tax liability for
all taxable temporary differences.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the
same taxation authority.

Goods and services tax (“GST")

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net
of the amount of GST except where the GST incurred
on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable
from the taxation authority, in which case the GST is
recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset
or as part of the expense item as applicable.

Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of
GST included.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable
to, the taxation authority is included as part of other
receivables or payables in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment held for use in the production
or supply of goods and services, or for administrative
purposes (except for construction in progress), are stated
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Freehold land is stated at cost and not depreciated.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Buildings in the course of construction for production, supply
or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include any costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management, including costs of testing whether
the related assets are functioning properly and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the
Group's accounting policy. Depreciation of these assets, on
the same basis as other property assets, commences when
the assets are ready for their intended use.

The property, plant and equipment are depreciated using
the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

Leasehold land and buildings 30 to 50 years

Furniture and fittings 3 years
Food establishment and office equipment 3 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for
as an operating lease is presented as “right-of-use assets”
in the consolidated statement of financial position except for
those that are classified and accounted for as investment
properties under the fair value model. When the consideration
cannot be allocated reliably between non-lease building
element and undivided interest in the underlying leasehold
land, the entire properties are classified as property, plant and
equipment.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

If a property becomes an investment property because its
use has changed as evidenced by end of owner-occupation,
any difference between the carrying amount and the fair
value of that item at the date of transfer is recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in revaluation
reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of the
property, the relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred
directly to retained profits.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items over
their estimated useful lives and after taking into account of
their estimated residual value, using the straight-line method.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

If a property becomes an owner-occupied property because
its use has been changed such that the property ceases to
meet the definition of investment property and the change in
use is evidenced by commencement of owner-occupation,
the fair value of the property at the date of change in use is
considered as the deemed cost for subsequent accounting of
the property as property, plant and equipment.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (“CGU") to which the asset belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication
that corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication
exists, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, when a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, or otherwise they are allocated
to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average cost
basis. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with IFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets at FVTPL) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Interest and dividend income which are derived from the

financial assets and shareholders’ rights are presented as
other revenue and other income.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at
FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or
losses recognised in profit or loss to the extent they are not
part of a designated hedging relationship. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included in the “Other
income, gains and losses, net” line item.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit loss (“ECL") on financial assets which are subject
to impairment under IFRS 9 (including trade and other
receivables, deposits paid, pledged bank deposits and cash
and cash equivalents). The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition of the respective financial instrument.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting period.
Assessment are done based on the Group's historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting period as well as
the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually and/or collectively using a provision matrix with
appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is

recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification of financial liabilities or equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an

equity instrument.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortised

cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless, at the
end of the reporting period, the Group has a right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the
reporting period. Covenants that the Group is required to
comply with, on or before the end of the reporting period, are
considered in classifying loan arrangements with covenants
as current or non-current. Covenants that the Group is
required to comply with after the reporting period do not

affect the classification at the reporting date.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid

and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount

of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the reporting date, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision
is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of
those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money

is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the

receivable can be measured reliably.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 220244 12 A31 HiF F/Z

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group's executive directors, being the chief operating
decision maker, for the purpose of allocating resources to,
and assessing the performance of the Group's various lines
of business and geographical locations.

Individual material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks that are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash
management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, which are not restricted as to use.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

In the applications of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of each reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

The Group reviews its property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets for indications of impairment at each
reporting period. In analysing potential impairments identified,
the Group uses projections of future cash flows from the
assets based on management’s assignment of a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Income tax expense

The Group has exposure to income taxes in Singapore.
In determining the income tax liabilities, management is
required to estimate the amount of capital allowances,
deductibility of certain expenses and applicable tax
incentives. There are transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated tax issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recognised, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred income tax recognised in the period in which such
determination is made. The carrying amounts of the Group's
current income tax liabilities as at 31 December 2024 were
approximately S$346,000 (2023: approximately S$613,000).

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on
the future tax treatment of certain transactions. The Group
carefully evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax
provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such
transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into account
all changes in tax legislations. Where the final tax outcome
of these transactions is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such difference will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provisions in the year in which such
determination is made.

No deferred tax asset in relation to unused tax losses and
deductible temporary differences has been recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position. In case where
taxable future profits are generated, an understatement
of current year accounting profit due to the unrecognised
deferred tax asset may arise, which deferred tax asset would
be recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the period in which such event
takes place.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Depreciation

[tems of property, plant and equipment (except for
construction in progress) and right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
life of the assets, after taking into account the estimated
residual value. The Group reviews the estimated useful lives
of the assets regularly in order to determine the amount of
depreciation expense to be recorded during any reporting
period. The useful lives are based on the Group’s historical
experience with similar assets and taking into account
anticipated technological changes. The depreciation expenses
for future period are adjusted if there are significant changes
from previous estimates.

Fair value measurements and valuation process

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent it is available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages
third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The
management works closely with the qualified external valuers
to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs
to the model.

Further information on the carrying amounts of these assets
and the valuation techniques and inputs are provided in notes
15 and 38.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management’s purpose, the Group is organised into two
business segments, namely:

(a) Rental and outlet management

The business segment of rental and outlet
management operation is involved in the leasing of food
establishment premises to tenants and the provision of
cleaning and utilities services to tenants (the “Rental
and Outlet Management”).
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(b) Food and beverage stalls

The business segment of food and beverage stalls
operation is primarily involved in the retailing of
beverage, tobacco products and cooked food directly
to consumers such as mixed vegetable rice, zi
char, roasted meat and chicken rice located in food
establishments operated and managed by the Group
and third parties (the “Food and Beverage Stalls”).

The two business segments described above are identified
as the operating and reportable segments of the Group
for financial reporting purposes. Inter-segment revenue
from service income and rental income are priced with
reference to prices charged to external parties for similar
services or premises, and inter-segment management fee
revenue included in service income is charged at a mark-up
percentage over the staff costs.

Management monitors the operating results of its business
units separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on operating profit or
loss which in certain respects is measured differently
from operating profit or loss in the consolidated financial
statements.

The accounting policy information of the operating
segments is the same as the Group's accounting policy
information described in note 3. Segment profit represents
the profit earned by each segment without allocation of
central administration costs, directors’ emoluments, bank
interest income and finance cost on general working capital
borrowings.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 220244 12 A31 HiF F/Z

5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. K&ESTER (&)
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024: HE2024F12A31MBLLEE :
Rental and Food and
Outlet Beverage
Management Stalls  Unallocated Total
ek
EHER BHEQ AOE @t
$$'000 $$'000 $$'000 $$'000

THMOKT — FHMET  FHOKT  FHRMER

Segment revenue an: 16
External revenue from contracts with BB B 7 3R 5 2
customers within the scope of IFRS 15 155 BB AR B
b e Eopl=ihen 4,679 43,282 - 47,961
External rental income SNERFE S A 9,211 - - 9,211
13,890 43,282 - 57,172
Inter-segment revenue HEpEdka
— Rental and service income — e RRBKA 23,161 - - 23,161
Elimination H8H (23,161) - - (23,161)
13,890 43,282 - 57,172
Segment profit/(loss) AEER/(FB) 4,017 2,474 (3.414) 3,077
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5.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024: (Continued)

REIHER (&)

HZE2024F12A31BLLEE : (&)

Rental and Food and
Outlet Beverage
Management Stalls  Unallocated Total
ek
EHERE BHEN KOE @t
$$'000 $$'000 $$°000 $$'000
FHME T T3 T THMF T T3 3K
Other segment information Hitt 5 BEH
Included in the measure of segment R ERTRF/ (EB)
profit/(loss) and segment assets: R EE ER T AU
TRHE:
Fair value gain of investment properties & ¥ £ A FEI 1,546 - - 1,546
Finance costs BB A (3,316) - (300) (3,616)
Addition to non-current assets (Note) ERBEERE () 11,682 901 7,824 20,407
Depreciation of property, 0¥ BELSERE
plant and equipment (905) (506) (327) (1,738)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE (3,395) (184) - (3,579)
Staff costs ETIRA (3,324) (10,354) (3,739) (17,417)
Property rentals and related expenses ¥ EHE ¢ RABHY (2,285) (2,287) - (4572)
Note: Non-current assets included investment properties, property, plant and Mk : ERBDEEREREME V¥ BEER

equipment and right-of-use assets.

K2 F&B HOLDINGS LIMITED / 2024 4 ¥

BAREREEE -

171



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e SRR R (B

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 220244 12 A31 HiF F/Z

5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. K&ESTER (&)
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024: (Continued) BZE2024F 12831 BLLFE : ()
Rental and Food and
Outlet Beverage
Management Stalls  Unallocated Total
ek
EHER BHEQ AOE @t
$$'000 $$'000 $$'000 $$'000

FE MK T FHME R THME T THME T

Reportable segment assets AHEIBEE 162,090 9,421 10 171,521
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFABRA
SREE - - 835 835
Pledged bank deposits BEFBRITER - - 1,015 1,015
Deferred tax assets ERTIEEE - - 28 28
Unallocated property, plant AAEVE  BE
and equipment P& - - 30,646 30,646
Consolidated total assets REEELR 162,090 9,421 32,534 204,045
Reportable segment liabilities AHELBEE 88,100 5,472 18,925 112,497
Tax payable FERTIE - - 346 346
Unallocated accruals and other payables K2 EfEEH & I
HEi MR - - 1,994 1,994
Consolidated total liabilities REEEAE 88,100 5,472 21,265 114,837
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5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. RKR&ESHER ()
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023: HZE2023F 12 A31 HILFE -
Rental and Food and
Outlet Beverage
Management Stalls Unallocated Total
ek
EHER ZHIEA AAW @ar
S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000
FHME T T THMET FHMET
Segment revenue 2 s
External revenue from contracts with B B B s i 25 2 A
customers within the scope of IFRS 15 155 BB AR B
EFanm N 3,949 43,891 - 47,840
External rental income SNERFE & A 7,900 - - 7,900
11,849 43,891 - 55,740
Inter-segment revenue HEpEkE
— Rental and service income — BERBRBKA 23,347 - - 23,347
Elimination HiE (23,347) - - (23,347)
11,849 43,891 - 55,740
Segment profit/(loss) AEER/(FB) 5,477 5,527 (3,085) 7,919
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5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. K&ESTER (&)
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023: (Continued) HZE2023F12A31HILFE « (8)
Rental and Food and
Outlet Beverage
Management Stalls Unallocated Total
ek
EHER BHRIEN ADE M@t
S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000

THmET  THIORT  THMET  THIEET

Other segment information Hitt 5 BEH
Included in the measure of segment R ERTERF/ (EB)

profit/(loss) and segment assets: R AHEEREA

WTEIE:

Fair value gain of investment properties &£ A T B 6,320 - - 6,320
Finance costs BB (2,583) - (207) (2,790)
Addition to non-current assets (Note) ERBEERE () 3,755 793 4,325 8,873
Depreciation of property, 0¥ BELEERE

plant and equipment (1,168) (551) (309) (2,028)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE (2,764) (213) - (2,977)
Staff costs BIMA (2,846) (10,544) (3,574) (16,964)
Property rentals and related expenses ¥ EH ¢ RABHY (2,464) (1,898) - (4,362)
Note: Non-current assets included investment properties, property, plant and Mk : ERBDEEREREME V¥ BERR

equipment, and right-of-use assets. BEUAREREEE -
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5.

&M ERRMNE (8)

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. RKR&ESHER ()
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023: (Continued) HE2023F12A31HILFE : (8B)
Rental and Food and
Outlet Beverage
Management Stalls Unallocated Total
ek
EHER BHRIEN AOE M@t
S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000
FHMET T FEIBT FEMET
Reportable segment assets AHREIBEE 157,358 14,018 35 171,411
Financial assets at FVTPL BRATEFABREN
SREE - - 791 791
Pledged bank deposits BEAEITER - - 1,015 1,015
Deferred tax assets ERHIEEE - - 51 51
Unallocated property, plant AAEWE  BE
and equipment B - - 24,861 24,861
Consolidated total assets RREERE 157,358 14,018 26,753 198,129
Reportable segment liabilities AHRELBEE 82,116 11,981 16,099 110,196
Tax payable FERTHIE - - 613 613
Unallocated accruals and other payables K7 Bl JExH & F R E At
JERT5R - - 902 902
Consolidated total liabilities RERERE 82,116 11,981 17,614 111,711
Information about major customers EHEEXEEZEFHNEHR

No single major customer contributed more than 10% of the
Group’s total revenue. The revenue is spread over a broad

base of customers.
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A B YA N
e SRR (8
For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 220244 12 A31 HiF F/Z

5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Geographical information

The Group operates mainly in Singapore with revenue
generated in, and non-current assets situated in, Singapore.
Accordingly, an analysis of revenue and non-current assets
of the Group by geographical distribution has not been

REPHER (&)

I 38 & K

AREE T EBRIIEEE - Wt RN H
I B3ERENE AL H AN o Hutt
B 2 53R i 15 7 i B9 AN SR [ e as % SF
MENEEDT

presented.
6. REVENUE U =
2024 2023
2024 20234
S$'000 S$'000
FErmE T FEFHMET
Revenue from contracts with customers [5] B 81 75 3R & € B 15 35 81 B 7
within the scope of IFRS 15 KREEFEHHIWK
Sales of goods, recognised on HEEm  RE-—KHHER
point in time basis
— Sales of cooked food, beverage and  — HEHR - KRR NIEEHE R
tobacco products 43,282 43,891
Services income, recognised on over FRFWA - A — ER B A FERR
time basis
— Provision of management, cleaning — MEFREERE  BRK
and utilities services to tenants NHAEERS 4,679 3,949
47,961 47,840
Revenue from other sources E b KR W 25
Rent from leases of premises to tenants AP KB AE S 9,211 7,900
57,172 55,740
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7. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES, NET 7. HtWA  WKWBEREEFEH

2024 2023
2024 F 20234
S$'000 S$'000
FHEmET  FEMET
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HEWE - BERZED
plant and equipment, net Wz (E518) F58 235 (157)
Gain on disposal of an investment property i & 1% & ) 2t I 25 450 -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 36) & —EH B A A& UKz
(M$5E36) - 1,205
Gain on termination of lease contract BIEHES N 2 W - 4
Gain on disposal of financial assets at HEEATFEFTAEBERN
FVTPL SREE W - 30
Exchange gain/(loss) PE 5 W s (E518) 28 (8)
Interest income FEUA 43 3
Dividend income from financial assets BEATEFAEENERMEE
at FVTPL EEHNREKA 3 10
Fair value gain/(loss) on financial assets ?ﬁ@i@ﬁ)\?ﬁ SRS REE
at FVTPL ~NTEKE(BE) 22 (10)
Sundry income MIEWA 280 165
1,061 1,242
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8. FINANCE COSTS 8. B#HA
2024 2023
2024 5 20234
S$'000 S$'000

FHIFEIT  TEMET

Interest on borrowings EEN:oRI 3,753 2,933
Interest on lease liabilities HEARENTE 362 300
4,115 3,233
Capitalised interest in relation to BRAWE LI RFAEKRER Y
acquisition of land and BRI B
development cost (499) (443)
3,616 2,790
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 220244 12 A31 HiF F/Z

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

2024 2023
2024 F 20234
S$'000 S$'000
FEmiET  FEFMET
Profit before tax is arrived at after BRELRDE M TR BRI T & IBE
charging the following items: B
(a)  Staff costs (including directors’ (a BIXK(BREZEME)
emoluments)
Salaries and benefits (note (i) o REF (FEE) 16,606 16,149
Contribution to defined TE SR AT B 3R
contribution plans 811 815
17,417 16,964
(o)  Other items (b) HAbIEE
Cost of inventories consumed F B RETF B RN (B 5 (i)
(note (ii)) 18,527 18,732
Auditor’s remuneration 1% BB 357 B
— annual audit services — FEEZRS 115 110
— non-audit services — EBEERE 34 -
Expenses relating to HEEBAEREMNAY
short-term leases 4,572 4,362
Direct operating expenses arising FAEEHESWANIEEY
from investment properties ¥EEKERT
that generated rental income
during the year 387 368
Notes: BisE -

(i) For the year ended 31 December 2024, manpower related government (i)
grants or assistance amounted to S$379,000 (2023: S$643,000) have
been offset against staff costs. There were no unfulfilled conditions for

receiving such government grants or assistance.

(ii) Cost of inventories consumed mainly includes food and beverages (ii)
purchase cost of S$15,400,000 (2023: S$15,711,000)
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10. DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS 10. EEEE
Details for the emoluments of each director of the Company ARAREEESABMEHANEFFB I
during the reporting period are as follows: I

For the year ended 31 December 2024

BZ2024F12A3NALEE
Contributions
to defined
contribution Other
Directors’ Discretionary retirement  short-term
fees Salaries bonuses plan benefits Total

EREMEBIK At
EsHe E WA SrESEX  EHEAN At
$$'000 $$000 $$'000 $$'000 $$'000 $$'000
FHMET FHMET  FHRORT  FHORR FHORT FHMARR

Executive directors: HTEE:
Mr. Chu Chee Keong FEREE(REE])

(Zhu Zhigiang) ("Mr. Chu") - 660 248 16 - 924
Ms. Leow Poh Hoon BEEzut((Bzt))

(Liao Baoyun) (“Ms. Leow") - 240 125 16 - 381
Mr. Chu Pok Chong, Ivan REREE(TRER

("Mr. lvan Chu") (note (@)~ %&41) (FizE () 17 47 16 6 - 86
Ms. Chu Pek Si (Zhu Peishi) &zt ([kzt))

("Ms. Chu") (note (b)) GBIV - 76 3 10 - 89

Independent non-executive BIFHTEES:

directors:
Mr. Wong Loke Tan Wong Loke Tan %t 4

("Mr. Wong") (IWong %4 ) 31 - - - - 31
Mr. Mah Seong Kung DENEE((DEE])

(“Mr. Mah") 38 - - - - 38
Mr. Ng Yong Hwee ('Mr.Ng") EXE%L4 (&L 31 - - - - 31

iy 1,023 392 48 1,580
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10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

10. EEM< (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE203F12A31B1LFE

Contributions
to defined
contribution Other
Directors’ Discretionary retirement  short-term
fees Salaries bonuses plan benefits Total
ERATRIK Hith
2k e BERL  GrEMfR  RHEN FEE
S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000
THMET FHMET  FTEMET TEMET FEgET FEmNET
Executive directors: HITES:
Mr. Chu Chee Keong REBREE(REE]
(Zhu Zhigiang) (“Mr. Chu”) - 660 247 19 - 926
Ms. Leow Poh Hoon Brzut((Bzt])
(Liao Baoyun) ("Ms. Leow") - 240 140 19 - 399
Ms. Chu Pek Si (Zhu Peish) &z T ([&K&L])
("Ms. Chu") - 120 50 19 - 189
Independent non-executive BIFHTEES:
directors:
Mr. Wong Loke Tan Wong Loke Tan %t £
(“Mr. Wong") ([Wong %4 /) 30 - - - - 30
Mr. Mah Seong Kung DR S E(TDEE])
("Mr. Mah") 36 - - - - 36
Mr. Ng Yong Hwee (“Mr. Ng") ExE%E ([EEE]) 30 - - - - 30
% 1,020 437 57 - 1,610
Notes: B3
(a) Mr. Ivan Chu was appointed as non-executive Director on 1 April 2024 (a) KRB EN2024F4 A1 BEZ T AIEHR

and appointed as an executive Director and assistant chief executive

officer with effect from 15 October 2024.

(b) Ms. Chu resigned as executive director on 30 April 2024.

HITESRBBITHEH -

1TEE WR2024F10 816 REEZTA

(b) KL L2024 F 4 A30 HBIERITES -
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10.

11.

182

DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 10. EEM S (8)
The remuneration shown above represents remuneration ENFRNeBREEEUIRIERR
received and receivable from the Group by these directors EHEESNE/ IARNRREEHHD
in their capacity as employees to the Group and/or in their DRI AN B & 2024 F K 20234 12
capacity as directors of the Company during the years A3MBIEFECREEWANE - RF
ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 respectively. None of N BRESERERRREHAREN
the directors agreed to waive or waived any emoluments & (20234 : &) ° AIRHIAR R AIBAT
during the year (2023: Nil). The Company’s executive EEMSEFEERAMEEARARARAR
directors’ emoluments shown were mainly for their services SEZERHBRBE 2] o EXXFTR
in connection with the management of the affairs of the ARARBYIPTEESNHEETE AT
Company and the Group. The Company's independent non- EREERRRIEEMH -
executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly
for their services as directors of the Company.
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS 11. & & N
Five highest paid individuals TEBREFMAL
The five highest paid employees during the year included RAFE: AasaTEE SR
2 (2023: 3) directors and details of whose emoluments are 2% (20235 :3%)EF - BREHNME
set out in note 10 above. Details of the emoluments of the FEIEERN EXMIE10 - RAFE T
remaining 3 (2023: 2) highest paid employees who are not a 3% (2023F : 2% ) B=mF MEE (W3IE
director during the year are as follows: EF)MMeFBOT
2024 2023
2024 % 20234
S$'000 S$'000
FHmET  FEMHEIT
Salaries, other allowances and e HiEMREYEAF
benefits in kind 570 485
Discretionary bonuses BIEIELL 35 50
Contributions to defined contribution TE BB RURIRET B A 3R
retirement plan 41 26
646 561
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 220244 12 A31 HiF F/Z

11.

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 11.

Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose
emoluments fell within the following bands is as follows:

EEHM (&)
TEBRSHEMAL (F)

FHBEATHENFEERSFHIMES
ABIT -

2024 2023
2024 F 20234
HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 872 1,000,000 7T
(equivalent to Nil to S$171,233) (FEENZT 171,233 1 T) 2 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 87T £ 1,500,000 % 7T
(equivalent to S$171,233 to $$256,849)  (FZER 171,233 F N TE
256,849 ¥ 1% 7T ) - -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 78 7T & 2,000,000 %5 7T
(equivalent to S$256,849 to $$342,466) (#5571 256,849 ¥ Nk T &
342,466 A1 7T ) - -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7 7T & 2,500,000 7 7T
(equivalent to S$342,466 to S$428,082) (#5142 342,466 ¥ N T &
428,082 ¥ AN oT) 1 1
3 2

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office
(2023: S$Nil). None of the five highest paid individuals have
waived any emoluments during the year (2023: S$Nil).

RAFE - NEBEHER R A& 5
AL - (ERIMARKESEIMA
REEER R SR SAF BRI E S (2023
FoTHMHET) - NAFE - ZHA
i = B T 8L R B = (2023
F T
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12.

184

TAXATION 12. HI1E
The Group's subsidiary incorporated in Hong Kong is not AEEREBFMA IO ERFHEAE
liable for income tax as it did not have any assessable income BB DHRERE E20244F
arising in Hong Kong during the year ended 31 December AN ALEFERTEREBELER
2024 (2023: S$Nil). ] FERRBLUA (2023 5F : AN IT) ©
The Singapore Corporate Income tax (“CIT”) rate was 17% 2024 A BFEE - TN PSR
(2023: 17%) during the year. Income tax expense for the ([%#mBH]) £XAH17% (2023 F :
Group relates wholly to the profits of the subsidiaries, which 17% ) o A5 B 89 715 71 5 52 58 22 B ffY
were taxed at 17% in Singapore. Major components of BRARIK T BERE ZEWBRAFRHE
income tax expense for the year are: MEIR17% OB G - NREERIFTE
REXETZAKID 5 -
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
S$$000 S$'000
FHmiET  FEFMET
Current tax: BVERRR IS -
— Singapore CIT — I MG 299 281
— (Over)/under provision in respect of — BEFE (BEEE)
prior years BiETR (38) 310
261 591
Deferred tax EAERIE 23 18
284 609
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 220244 12 A31 HiF F/Z

12. TAXATION (Continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rate for the country in which the
Company's subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at
the effective tax rate, is as follows:

12. ﬁIE(nE)

BARBINE QR FTEBZOAE &R B
ERBEHAE N ENR AR 2IZE
BRI ENOHRBEREERET

2024
2024 F
$$'000

2023
2023 F
S$'000

FHIFEIT — TEIMET

Profit before tax R 55 A& A 3,077 7,919
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 17% WORTERER17% (20234 1 17%)

(2023: 17%) FTEEBIA 523 1,346
Non-deductible expenses kil 326 416
Non-taxable income BmEATRA (385) (1,261)
Effect of tax exemption and tax relief MIERELBIERENTE (359) (258)
Utilisation of tax losses previously LRI RERH AR AT IEEE

not recognised (4) (17)
Effect of temporary differences not REREREZENTE

recognised 221 73
(Over)/under provision in prior years BAEFE (BEEEG), BETR (38) 310
Taxation charge IEE 284 609

The Group has unused tax losses of S$2,586,000 (2023:
S$1,495,000) that are available for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose.

RE B AR E) A IEE 18 & 2,586,000
103 T (2023 4F 1,495,000 %7 10 #
L) ATREEREEABEARBERZ

FERTE A
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13.

14.

186

DIVIDENDS

The Directors of the Company do not recommend the
payment of any final dividend for the years ended 31
December 2024 and 2023. No interim dividend was declared
during 2024 and 20283.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
of approximately S$2,811,000 (2023: approximately
S$7,310,000) and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of the Company in issue during the year of
800,000,000 shares (2023: 800,000,000 shares).

No adjustment is made in arriving at diluted earnings per

share as there were no potential ordinary shares in issue for
both years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 220244 12 A31 HiF F/Z

15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. REWE
S$'000
TN T
Fair value A¥EE
At 1 January 2023 7 2023F1H1H 113,130
Transferred from property, plant and equipment  EEEW¥ « BE LR E 13,300
Net gain arising from change in fair value of REMERNTFEESHEAN KR FE
investment properties 6,320
At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 72023%F 12 431 H X% 2024F 1518 132,750
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 35) W — MW B A (HiE35) 9,500
Addition NE 154
Disposal of an investment property HEREYE (8,350)
Net gain arising from change in fair value of WEMHEATFEEEENKZFE
investment properties 1,546
At 31 December 2024 2024512 A31H 135,600

The investment properties of the Group consist of 8 (2023: 9)
food centres that are held under leasehold interests, 1 (2023:
1) food centre that is held under freehold interests, 1 (2023:
Nil) commercial shop under leasehold interest and 1 (2023:
1) property unit in an industrial building to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation as at 31 December 2024 and 2023, all
of which are located in Singapore. The investment properties
are stated at fair value. Fair value is estimated by the
management of the Group with reference to valuation report
provided by an independent valuer, Knight Frank Pte. Ltd.
(2023: Knight Frank Pte. Ltd.), who holds a recognised and
relevant professional qualification and has recent experience
in the location and category of the investment properties
being valued. The fair value measurements of the investment
properties are categorised as Level 3 valuation. The Group's
investment properties’ fair values are determined using
comparable sales method.

20244 22023612 A31H * & E
K& E Y % B IE8E (20234 - 91&) M
%ﬂiﬂ%é\ BEMNERES - 118 (2023

CED LUK A ERFENERES
11(2023¢ CE)AHERERSE BN
A (20234 - 118) TEEEME
B S R BIEEAFERSE &5
MR - WEMETIARFE
R NTFEHIBASEEEEL2EE
37 & 1B Bl Knight Frank Pte. Ltd. (2023
£ : Knight Frank Pte. Ltd.) 12 #t &894 (&
WEMTBE  ZBUHEMFAELR
AMABEEEE  TREHEREY
X R ATE B R T S -

REMENRFEFESBRE=RM
B AKENRENERAFETIERMA
BHBIHEAERE -
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15.

188

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The valuations that have been arrived at using comparable
sales method were determined by reference to market
evidence of transaction prices for similar properties in similar
locations and conditions. The key inputs of unit sale rates are
determined after taking into account of the transaction time,
location, and individual factors, such as size, age, floor, flow
of people and frontage. There was no change in the valuation
technique used to determine the fair values of each of the
respective investment properties in 2024.

The fair values of the investment properties were derived
using valuation technique with unobservable inputs being
used which could result in significantly higher or lower
amounts of the fair values being measured, hence are
categorized as Level 3 valuations.

In estimating the fair value of investment properties, the
highest and best use of the Group’s investment properties is
their current use.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, two investment
properties with revalued amounts of approximately
S$13,300,000 were transferred from property, plant and
equipment (note 16) upon the change in use of the properties
such that the properties were held by the Group to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation. The transfers were made
upon the end of owner-occupation during the year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 220244 12 A31 HiF F/Z

15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

On 30 April 2024, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
CK Chu Holdings Pte Ltd entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to dispose of a property, 200 Jalan Sultan, #01- &
05 Textile Centre, Singapore 199018 (“200 Jalan”) at cash
consideration of S$8,800,000 in aggregate to an external
party, a company incorporated under the laws of Singapore
with limited liability. The disposal was completed on 11
September 2024 and the Group lost control over 200 Jalan

with effect from the same date.

15. REWE (H)

R2024F 4 A30H » KARINEEN B
2 @] CK Chu Holdings Pte Ltd5] 2 E &

%  DA#83R £ 19 {2 8,800,000 %7 A
7T H & A7 7 200 Jalan Sultan » #01-05
Textile Centre, Singapore 199018 (200
Jalan|) T oMNEFA I (— AR IR RN DNE
FZAMEIMERART) o HEK2024
FOANMHBZENK AEEARBRALAE

%200 Jalan &9 128 4 # o

Relationship of
Valuation techniques Significant unobservable inputs
Type of building and key inputs unobservable inputs to fair value
THRERAYEHE
BFER HEETREIEGARE EXTUHERAYE AVEZBE
Shop units of Direct comparison method 2024 2024

industrial building
2024: S$2,200,000
2023: S$2,300,000

The key input is:
(i) unit sale rate

TEREMHHEN ERLEE

2024 % : 2,200,000 F7 h03 7T

2023 : 2,300,000 KT FEBHAHEAR:
n EuEE

Unit sale rate, taking into account
differences in the transaction
time, location, and individual

factors, such as size, age, floor,

flow of people and frontage,
between the comparables and
the property, ranging from
S$8,600 to S$9,600 (2023:

S$7,700 to S$10,800) per square

meter on gross floor area basis
for properties
2024 :

An increase in the unit sale
rate used would result
inan increase in the fair
value measurement of the
investment properties by the
same percentage increase, and
vice versa.

20245

BUEEEARTALRETERY MAELEELNBERREY

FZENR SR A RE

BBk BE ARELEE

WREENRENEZE)NTETE
757K8,600 %1 A3 7T & 9,600 710
BT (20234 + 7,700 I L2
10,8007 I TT) 2 E iR

EETERC

FMAVEFERERNAD
PR INETT - RZTA -

K2 F&B HOLDINGS LIMITED / 2024 4 3§ 189



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ERRMNE (8)

l\‘/T\

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &%= 20244 12 A31 HiFF/Z

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Valuation techniques
Type of building and key inputs

BFER HERMREIEBDABE

Significant
unobservable inputs

EATTRERALE

Relationship of
unobservable inputs
to fair value
THRERAYBE
AVEZRE

Shop units of commercial building Direct comparison method
2024: S$26,300,000
2023: $$25,150,000 The key input is:

(i) unit sale rate

HEETRHEN ERLEA

2024 % : 26,300,000 7 M3 7T

2023 : 25,150,0003T KT FEHAHES
i EBREE

Public housing food centres
2024: $$107,100,000
2023: $$105,300,000

Direct comparison method

The key input is:
(i) unit sale rate

DEEEERBD
20244 : 107,100,000 % I3 7T
2023 4F : 105,300,000 ¥ 3% 7T

BERBA

TEGABER:
() BAEE

190

Unit sale rate, taking into account
differences in the transaction
time, location, and individual
factors, such as size, age, floor,
flow of people and frontage,
between the comparables and
the property, ranging from
S$14,200 to S$30,100 (2023:
S$16,000 to S$85,000) per
square meter on gross floor area
basis for properties
BAEE (G RAELBETH
ME 2 BORSRE - UK
E% A @ @E /\//wg&ﬁuffﬁ
HASERNRRNEZR)NTE
F737K14,200 2 h3% 7T £ 30,100
HAN% T (20234 : 16,0007 40
T2 85,000 ¥ MK TT) 2 T
RMEREERE

Unit sale rate, taking into account
differences in the transaction
time, location, and individual
factors, such as size, age, floor,
flow of people and frontage,
between the comparable and the
property, ranging from $$25,700
to S$100,000 (2023: $$21,000 to
S$100,000) per square meter on
gross floor area basis for properties.
B EEEHRTELRIETH
MEZBORSHHE - HEUR
EF B BE - ARERE
EHRASENEERNZR)NTE
?Jﬁ 25,700 %7 3% 7T Z 100,000
FTON3 7T (20234 < 21,000 %70
¥ 7T E 100,000 57 3% L) 2 FETH
ROEREEEAE -
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An increase in the unit sale
rate used would result
in an increase in the fair
value measurement of the
investment properties by the
same percentage increase, and
vice versa.

FTAREMNEEEMEERREY
E¥NATENERARNED
FEIEINEST - RZTFA

An increase in the unit sale
rate used would result
inan increase in the fair
value measurement of the
investment properties by the
same percentage increase, and
vice versa.

FAENEEENKERREY
A TEHBRERNAS
FLRIETT - RZINAR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

l\‘/T\

&M ERRMNE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 220244 12 A31 HiF F/Z

15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The Group's policy is to recognise transfer between levels of
the fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period
in which they occur. There were no transfers between levels
during the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

The investment properties of the Group with a carrying
amount of S$124,400,000 (2023: S$121,750,000) have been

15. REWE (H)

AEBOBRRABRBEBRRAFEER
B A BT R g R - 5 =2024
FK2023F12A31THILFEE &R F
1B JE AR P 30 g 3 o

7K & [E BR @ {8 /A 124,400,000 7 40 3% 7T
(20234 : 121,750,000 % 03 7T) &9 3%
BYECIEERN  UERANEFENHER

pledged to secure borrowings of the Group (see note 26).
The Group is not allowed to pledge these assets as security
for other borrowings or to sell them to another entity.

At the reporting date, the details of the Group's investment

(RMIsE26) -
ABEMERNERKIEEHETFS —F

g ©

AEETERZEEEF

REEBH - NREBEREVMENFEN

properties are as follows: T
Location Description/existing use Tenure
A= Hit RERE F 1
220 Orchard Road #B1-10/11 Midpoint Two strata-titled retail units Freehold
Orchard, Singapore 238852 (food centre)
MESEXETEEM(ERPL) KAKHE

Block 631 Bedok Reservoir Road
#01-982, Singapore 470631

Block 744 Bedok Reservoir Road
#01-3019, Singapore 470744

101 Upper Cross Street #01-02/A/B/C/E,

#01-04A, #01-05A/B/C/P, People's
Park Centre, Singapore 058357

Block 134, Jurong Gateway Road,
#01-309, Singapore 600134

A coffee shop with living quarters
(food centre)

HREFERAMYEE ERP L)
An eating establishment with living
quarters (food centre)

BRREFRORE (ZRFD)

Nine strata-titled shop units (food
centre and retail shop)

NEDEEH (ERPOLRTERE)
An eating house (food centre)

RE(XRFL)

K2 F&B HOLDINGS LIMITED / 2024 £ 3§

88 years lease from 1 October 1993
HERE 19934610 A1 HiEst 884
90 years lease from 1 August 1995
THERB 1995481 B0 F

99 years lease from 2 June 1970

HERB 197056 A2 Bk 99F
91 years lease from 1 April 1993

THE#B1993F4 51 BENE
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15.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Location

wE

Description/existing use

Had REAR

Tenure

1

Block 139, Tampines Street 11,
#01-08, Singapore 521139

Block 145, Teck Whye Avenue #01-151,

Singapore 680145

Block 710A Ang Mo Kio Avenue 8
#01-2625, Singapore 561710

Block 171, Yishun Avenue 7, #01-781,
Singapore 760171

83 Genting Lane, #08-00, Genting
Building, Singapore 349568

Block 491, Jurong West Avenue 1,
#01-173, Singapore 640491

An eating house with living quarters
(food centre)

RRETROERE (ERHPL)

An eating house (food centre)

RE(ERPL)

A shop unit of 2-storey commercial

block

MEBEANEN — AR

An eating house (food centre)
RE(ERPL)

The 8th storey of the industrial building
BEIFEEY

An eating house (food centre)

REZERDL)

90 years lease from 1 July 1993
MERE1993F7 A1 R 05F
92 years lease from 3 July 1992
HERB199257 A3BEH02F
86 years lease from 1 July 1993
THERB 199357 A1 B 86F
93 years lease from 1 January 1994
THERB 199451 A1 BRI F
Freehold

KA K IE

88 years lease from 1 December 1996

TAEHB1996E12 51 At 88E

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the details of the investment property disposed of by the Group are as follows:

BHE2024F12 A3 BIEFE

Location

B

AEBMLEREMFEOFEOT :

Description/existing use

i REAR

Tenure

£

200 Jalan Sultan, #01-05, Textile Centre,

Singapore 199018

Two strata-titled shop units (food
centre)

MED BXEERMEL (ERF L)

K2 F&BHOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUALREPORT 2024

99 years lease from 2 June 1970

THERB1970F6 52 H#:T994F
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 220244 12 A31 HiF F/Z

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. 1%  MERRE
Food
Leasehold establishment
Freehold land and Furniture and office Motor  Construction
land buildings ~ and fittings equipment vehicles in progress Total
XA BELH RER
EELH kEF BHAREE  BOERE RE EEIR @t
S$'000 S$'000 S$$000 S$/000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000
THmgr  TEMET  FTENET 0 FEMx Mg TR FEEx
Cost RE
At 1 January 2024 H2024E1818 14,500 23,200 218 4,368 533 4,976 41,19
Additions HE - - - 920 - 7,732 8,652
Transfer B - 12,708 - - - (12,708) -
Disposals e - (1931) - - - - (1931)
Written off s - - - (57) - - (57)
Exchange difference ELER - - - 2 - - 2
At 31 December 2024 120245128318 14,500 33,977 218 5233 533 - 54,461
Accumulated depreciation 2itHE
At 1 January, 2024 R2024E1A18 - 1,067 218 2910 127 - 4,322
Charge for the year ERTH - 511 - 1,120 107 - 1,738
Disposals hE - (203) - - - - (203)
Written off i - - - (18) - - (18)
Exchange difference EHESE - - - 1 - - 1
At 31 December 2024 R2024512A318 - 1375 218 4013 234 - 5,840
Carrying value FHEE
At 31 December 2024 R2024512A318 14,500 32,602 - 1220 299 - 48,621
Cost RE
At 1 January 2023 R2023%51718 20,095 34,274 218 4,483 316 956 60,342
Additions AE - - - 7% 282 4,020 5,097
Transferred to investment BEERENZ
properties (1510 10,220) - (414) - - (12,144)
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 36) (& —FEHBAE
(Fr13£36) (4,085) (854) - (201) - - 5,140)
Disposals e - - - - (65) - (65)
Written off i - - - (295) - - (296
At 31 December 2023 120235128318 14,500 23,200 218 4,368 533 4976 47,1%
Accumulated depreciation BitE
At 1 January, 2023 R2023E1A18 - 614 218 1,997 85 - 2,914
Charge for the year ERTH - 77 - 122 89 - 2,028
Transferred to investment EEERENE
properties - (228) - (150) - - (378)
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 36) (& —FEHBAF
(Fr13E36) - (36) - (38) - - (74)
Disposals e - - - - (47) - (47)
Written off HisH - - - (121) - - (121)
At 31 December 2023 12023128318 - 1,067 218 2910 127 - 4322
Carrying value BEE
At 31 December 2023 12023124318 14,500 22133 - 1,458 406 4976 43473
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

194

Notes:

(a)

(c)

During the year ended 31 December 2024, additions of property,
plant and equipment of S$8,652,000 (2023: S$5,097,000) comprised
of capitalized interest of S$499,000 (2023: S$443,000) and purchases
and additions of property, plant and equipment of approximately
S$$8,153,000 (2023: S$4,654,000), with approximately S$906,000
(2023: S$1,087,000) unsettled at the end of the reporting period, the
remaining balance of approximately S$7,247,000 (2023: S$3,567,000)
was paid by the Group in cash of S$2,427,000 and financed from bank
of S$4,820,000 (2023: S$Nil).

As at 31 December 2024, property, plant and equipment with net
carrying amount of approximately S$44,069,000 (2023: approximately
S$33,484,000) comprising freehold land of carrying amount of
approximately S$14,500,000 (2023: S$14,500,000) and leasehold land
and buildings of carrying amount S$29,569,000 (2023: $18,984,000),
were pledged as security under mortgage loans as mentioned in note 26.

As at 31 December 2024, leasehold land and buildings with remaining
land lease period of 29 to 61 years and net carrying amount of
S$21,784,000 (2023: S$22,133,000) include both leasehold land and
building elements of properties. The consideration paid by the Group
and the fair value at the date the properties were transferred from
investment properties for the acquisition or transfer of these properties,
respectively, could not be allocated reliably between the non-lease
building element and undivided interest in the underlying leasehold land,
hence the balances of the entire properties are classified as property,
plant and equipment.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, there was change in
use of two properties with carrying values of S$11,766,000 that the
properties would be held by the Group to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation. These properties were previously occupied by the Group
for its own food and beverage stalls operations. These two properties
were transferred to investment properties at their revalued amounts of
S$13,300,000 upon the change in use and a gain on revaluation of these
properties of S$1,534,000 was recognised in other comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2023.
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B AE -

(a)

(c)

(d)

16. 1% - BERHRE (&)

HE2024F12A31BILFE FEDY
¥ - W5 & 3% 88,652,000 57 hn i 7 (2023
£F : 5,097,000 % ¥ 7T) (823 & AL F &2
499,000 7 A 3% 7¢ (2023 4F : 443,000 # 1
BIT)UARBERABEYE BERERED
8,153,000 %1 1 # T (2023 4F : 4,654,000 7

Mg IT)) - AR IR & HA oK Kk 45 & 49 906,000
$N3% 7T (2023 4 © 1,087,000 7 N3 7T)

BN A5 B2 407,247,000 %1 hn 3% oT (2023 4F ¢
3,567,000 MK L) - EHAEB LR &
2,427,000 %7 M3 7t K #8177 74 & 4,820,000 #7
N TT (2023 4F « T IT) A ©

AR SCHY R 26 Tl - 2024 F 12 A 31
B BREFE L 544,069,000 5 403 T
(2023 4F : #33,484,000 #7 i3 TT) B % -
BB K& (B IEBRE A4 A 14,500,000 %7
% Tt (2023 4F : 14,500,000 7 b3 7T) #9
KA FEHE 1 LA K BR T (B 49 /4 29,569,000 7
hnig 7t (2023 4F : 18,984,000 ¥ A1 # 7T) H9
AE L RIEF) DAERBERIKA -

R2024F12A31H T LiwfAEA29%
614 K BRI /F{E 21,784,000 %1 N3 7t (2023
£F : 22,133,000 7 3 JT) M & i R 42
FEREDENHETHWRIETHD - AEE
RUELEEZSEVESIAORBERAR
BYEEEMELE B D RHQFEEEZR
HEAEITHANIEHEEFRIRERSE
2B SN At HmENEHRE
DEEARME  BEREE -

HZE2023F12A31BLFE - EEEE
11,766,000 % hN 4 7T &) w1 18 47 25 R %
ZEMESBAERRES Lx,ﬁsﬁzﬂxﬂaﬁf'ﬁﬁ
TEE - ZEVELARAERAREAR
EREMLE ZMBNEERETREY
¥ REFRBREEBEMHSEA13,300,000
oo - B E2023F12 A3 B IEFE
BEZEWEM 1,534,000 %1 h TR
Hah 2R ER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 220244 12 A31 HiF F/Z

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 17. EREEE
Food centres/
Food stalls
ES L%
S$'000
TN T
Cost 2%
At 1 January 2024 7R2024F1H1H 14,101
Additions NE 2,101
Exchange difference PE N A= 3
Derecognition RIETER (1,407)
At 31 December 2024 2024512 A31H 14,798
Accumulated depreciation B E
At 1 January 2024 R2024F1 H1H 4,943
Charge for the year FAZM 3,579
Exchange difference P 3 =58 2
Derecognition IR (1,407)
At 31 December 2024 7R2024%F 12 A31H 7,117
Carrying values FREE
At 31 December 2024 R2024%F 12 A31H 7,681
Cost 2%
At 1 January 2023 #2023F1 A1 8 11,165
Additions NE 3,776
Modification [ETe (345)
Derecognition RIETER (495)
At 31 December 2023 M 2023F12 A31 A 14,101
Accumulated depreciation AT E
At 1 January 2023 720231 H1H 2,644
Charge for the year FAZM 2,977
Modification 1B (183)
Derecoghnition IR (495)
At 31 December 2023 M20239F 12 A31H 4,943
Carrying values BREE
At 31 December 2023 7R2023F 12 A31H 9,158
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17.

196

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

2024 2023

2024 F 20234

S$$000 S$'000

FEmET  FEMET

Expenses relating to short-term leases RS HEMNMX 4,572 4,362
Repayment of principal portion of lease  EEHEBFENARL IS

liabilities 3,595 2,644

Interest paid on lease liabilities HEBENENTHE 362 300

Total cash outflows for leases for the year FAHERR &R HE 8,529 7,306

The right-of-use assets are rented from the Singapore
government and private entities. The lease terms of the
food centres or food stalls used by the Group in its Food and
Beverage Stalls segment range from 2 to 5 years (2023: 2
to 4 years). Leases contain terms requiring payments by the
Group of minimum monthly lease payments that are fixed
over the lease term and variable lease payments that are
based on certain percentages of the monthly gross sales
turnover if the variable lease payment exceeds the monthly
basic rent. No variable lease payment was paid or payable
to the lessors for the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023:
S$Nil). Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items
of right-of-use assets over their expected useful lives using
straight-line method. When there is no reasonable certainty
that ownership will be obtained by the end of the lease term,
the assets are depreciated over the lease term.

The short-term leases relate to food centres and food stalls
which are rented from Singapore government and private
entities with the lease terms of 12 months or less.

The Group does not have the option to purchase the right-
of-use assets for a nominal amount at the end of the lease
terms.

Lease liabilities of approximately S$8,318,000 (2023:
S$$9,812,000) are recognised with related right-of-use assets
of approximately S$7,681,000 (2023: S$9,158,000) as at 31
December 2024. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the leased
assets that are held by the lessor. Lease assets may not be
used as security for borrowing purposes.
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FEHEEAEDRAFTMEBRERLAE
RS - AEBRESENDZATHED
EFRPLARENHESHN TF2254F
(2023F - N F224F) - HEBRSE
KAEERBEEPAIFEERES
ﬂﬁ S FRIER AR 2R E R
SEBBATAEARES  AIRIEST A @A
4%%%%56’1%?5 Db E R A E
KB E2024F12831BILFE -
EEREMNTHBEANTEEENRK
(20234 : TFMFETT) - FRHEEEMN
BEREATEBAEAFHRRGIRTE
LAUSE B AR AS - s & B e A E H
[EmEESHERE  MIEELHER
RITE -

RHEEEEZRFOLRERR  THH
MNEBALLABRER HEHRR
128 A eE R -

AEEEECHENERRARESER
BEERREE -

R2024F12F831H HEAEBEY
8,318,000 #1104 7t (2023 4F : 9,812,000
g ) REEERARBEEED
7,681,000 ¥ 0% 7T (2023 4 : 9,158,000
o) —HER -BRHEAARBREN
HMEEEPHEFEZIN  HEHZR
FEMERZEE  HEEETSRAEGR
RO AR o
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z=2024F 12 A31 HiIFF/&E

18. INVENTORIES 18. F&

2024 2023
2024 2023 £
S$'000 S$'000
F Fhhn g T FETINH T
Raw materials and consumables TR R X H FE SR 159 219

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. ESREMEWRIRE
2024 2023
2024 20234
S$'000 S$'000
T i hn T T TT
Trade receivables B 5 W FIE 187 291
Other receivables E fth pE Y R IE 425 235
612 526

Ageing analysis of the Group's trade receivables based

AEBRBERRREZAHNESE

on invoice date as at the end of the reporting period is as WERTERRE AT T
follows:

2024 2023
2024 F 2023 F
S$'000 S$'000
FHEmyEo  FEFMHET
0 to 30 days 0E30XK 184 267
31 to 90 days 31E90K 3 14
91 days to 180 days 91 £180K - 10
187 291
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19.

198

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Group allows an average credit period of 7 days to its
customers.

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measure
ECL which uses a lifetime ECL model. Trade receivables have
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and
the historical observed default rates adjusted by forward-
looking estimates. Based on historical experience, majority
of trade receivables were settled within credit term and
the Group received certain deposits from these customers,
hence the expected loss rate of current trade receivables
is assessed to be immaterial, no loss allowance on trade
receivable was recognised during the year (2023: S$Nil).

A default on receivables is when the counterparty fails to
make contractual payments within 90 days of when they
fall due. Financial assets are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor failing to
engage in a repayment plan with the Group and the amount
due is significantly larger than the deposit received by the
Group. The Group categories a receivable for write off when
a debtor fails to make contractual payments greater than 180
days and the receivable is larger than the deposit received
by the Group. Where receivables have been written off, the
Group continues to engage in enforcement activity to attempt
to recover the receivable due. When recoveries are made,
these are recognised in profit or loss.

The carrying amount of trade receivables approximate their
fair values.
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19.

B 5 K HEAEWRRIER (&)

AEBGETEPHNIFHEER/TIXR -

AEBERBERYBREENFEIR
B XFERREEER  EPER
E2HIRHEEEEEL - B 5 BKF0R
ERBEAZEERBREEEBAEE
A ABRNERAFHNELENRET
DM RBEERLR  AHBOBEZRI
RECREENRNEE  MAXEER
ZERPWRETHE  FHUAHES
ERFKBENERERREFALTE
K A LA R R B 5 R WK IR H
B iR (2023 5 - THINKIT) ©

FEW RN RIEH F A REREIEA
BORALNEHFTIE - BEESETES
REIE  NEBESMESREE -
INEARGEERNEBE] S ERGTE
M 3% 2 HA & %8 3 BB 1A 7K £ (8 Ug B /Y 3
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B AW - WE D MEERE - &
EESBEDNTT TIEUH B R EZEH
FEUCGRIE - AEIUERR - ZEREE R

B R -

B RWFRR RE EEE QX EMEE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE RN (8)
For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 220244 12 A31 HiF F/Z

20. PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS PAID

20. ANRERENRE

2024 2023

2024 2023 %

S$'000 S$'000

FHEmET  FEMET

Prepayments SRS 117 337
Deposits paid (current portion) R (BIEE ) 671 1,237
788 1,574

Add: Deposits paid (non-current portion) il : B3R & (FERVEAEL 5 ) 1,544 1,182
2,332 2,756

As at 31 December 2024, deposits paid mainly represented
the amount of rental deposit of approximately S$2,114,000
(2023: S$2,331,000).

MN2024%F 12 A31H - 24 T EiE
THEMLLEL AE2,114,000 3 0 T
(20234 : 2,331,000 F NI 7T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 220244 12 A31 HiF F/Z

21.

200

ira M ERRME (8)

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

BRAVEFABESNEHMEE

2024 2023
2024 F 20234
S$$000 S$'000
FHMET  FEMET
Financial assets mandatorily measured &l AFEFF ABRT 2SR
at FVTPL: BE:
Key management personnel life TEEBABASRE (i)
insurance policies (Note (a)) 788 743
Listed equity securities (Note (b)) R RS (D) 47 48
835 791
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
S$$'000 S$'000
FHm#Esx  FEFMET
Analysed as reporting purposes as: MBEEMITOT
Current assets MENE E 47 48
Non-current assets EmENEE 788 743
835 791

Notes

(a):

On 24 July 2017, a subsidiary of the Company has entered into life
insurance policies (the “Policies”) to insure the directors of the
Company, Mr. Chu and Ms. Leow. Under the Policies, the beneficiary
and policy holder is a subsidiary of the Company and the insured sum
is USD1,000,000 (equivalent to S$1,358,000) for each of the directors.
The Group is required to pay an upfront deposit of USD562,000
(equivalent to S$763,000). The Group can terminate the Policies at any
time and receive cash back based on the cash value of the Policies at
the date of withdrawal, which is determined by the upfront payments
plus accumulated interest earned and minus the accumulated insurance
charges and policy expense charge. The Group receives an interest at
interest rates guaranteed by the insurer.

Income arising from Policies is recognised as other income in the
consolidated statement profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

The entire amount of the rights under the Policies is denominated in
United States Dollar.

The financial assets held by the Group are equity securities listed in
Singapore and their fair values are based on quoted market value as at
31 December 2024. The listed equity securities are accounted for under
FVTPL financial assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

T A

MR (8

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 220244 12 A31 HiF F/Z

22.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS/PLEDGED 22 BERBRSEEY CEFHRT
BANK DEPOSITS I

2024 2023

2024 F 2023 F

S$'000 S$'000

FHME T  FEMET

Cash at bank and in hand RITRFERS 8,173 8,401
Less: pledged bank deposits B BERRITER (1,015) (1,015)
Cash and cash equivalents RehkReFED 7,158 7,386

Cash and cash equivalents comprised in different currencies
are as follows:

HAREEAKNREE RIREEEYI

T

2024 2023
2024 5 2023 F

S$'000 S$'000

FEMFEIT  FEFMHEIT

Singapore Dollar ¥ hnig o 7,027 7,376
Hong Kong Dollar (“HKD") B (%)) 131 10
7,158 7,386

Pledged bank deposits carry fixed interest rates of 3.25%
(2023: 1.00%) per annum as at 31 December 2024,
representing deposits pledged to banks for securing the bank
facilities granted by the bank to the Group and unutilised
banking facilities amounting to approximately S$10,824,000
(20283: approximately S$18,250,000) as at 31 December 2024.

R2024%F12 8318 2 MBETHF
FRHE EFFE E3.25% (2023 F -
1.00% ) * ¥R 2024F12A31 8 A
BASRTAANERRDRITEE MK
BFRITNGEREASAHARITHE
4710,824,000 %71 p1 3 T (20234 : 49

18,250,000 T N L) °
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e M ERR W (B

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &%= 20244 12 A31 HiFF/Z

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS/PLEDGED
BANK DEPOSITS (Continued)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities:

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash
flows as cash flows from financing activities.

REeERRSEEY SEART
T?'ZFA (nﬁ)

METHELENEEYR:

TRAMLAEEREETHEENEEE
B BRERASIEREEH -HEEDY
EXMNABERASRKREIARRSRE
RAEEGEReERERDERRER
FHBHRERENAE -

Lease
Borrowings liabilities Total
&K HEAE BF
S$'000 S$'000 S$'000

THEBT O TEETT O TEIMET

At 1 January 2023 M2023F1H81H 95,910 8,846 104,756
Changes from financing REBMERSRENEEH
cash flows:

Proceeds F{S E 2,800 - 2,800
Repayments B (8,057) (2,644) (10,701)
Finance cost paid B BEKA (2,933) (300) (3,233)
Non-cash changes: RSB

Additions of lease liabilities HEBGEEMN - 3,776 3,776
Modification &&T - (166) (166)
Finance costs BhE AR A 2,933 300 3,233
At 31 December 2023 202312 H831H 90,653 9,812 100,465
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 220244 12 A31 HiF F/Z

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS/PLEDGED
BANK DEPOSITS (Continued)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities: (Continued)

22. IE%&E%%E%/E?&W&E??

ﬁ (IIE)

METHELENEBEYHR : (B

Lease
Borrowings liabilities Total
BEX HEaE &5t
S$$'000 S$'000 S$'000
FHMFT  FHMET FHMET
At 31 December 2023 and A2023F12831HE
1 January 2024 20241 81H 90,653 9,812 100,465
Changes from financing REBERSRENEEH :
cash flows:
Proceeds PR 5I8 15,720 - 15,720
Repayments BN (16,260) (3,595) (19,855)
Finance cost paid EBE R (3,753) (362) (4,115)
Non-cash changes: RSB
Additions of lease liabilities HEBFEEM - 2,101 2,101
Additions of mortgage loan upon  UZ 88 I /B 2 R 1% 18
acquisition of subsidiary B8 0 7,500 - 7,500
Additions of mortgage loan upon R EWEBIZIBE K
construction of a property N 4,820 - 4,820
Reductions of mortgage loan HEWE - BE R&E
upon disposal of property, Fm IR BE R
plant and equipment (1,269) - (1,269)
Reductions of mortgage loan HER B Y E R R D
upon disposal of an investment  ZIBE K
property (5,496) - (5,496)
Finance costs BhE AR 3,753 362 4,115
At 31 December 2024 M 2024%12831H 95,668 8,318 103,986
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
12\\'/_\_\'/\ aﬁﬁ%$&% BﬁL IIIE <n\/\>

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 220244 12 A31 HiF F/Z

23. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 23. R—REBELNTRE
2024 2023
2024 5% 2023 F
S$'000 S$'000

FHIFEIT  TEMET

Cost of investment B AR 4 4
Movements during the year are as follows: FRNEFHOT :

2024 2023

2024 F 2023 %

S$$000 S$'000

FHMEIT  TERIET

At 1 January R1A1H8 4 -
Investment in a newly incorporated RETEM A LB R R R E

associate - 4
Share of profit and other FEAG i ) & EAth 2 T W e

comprehensive income - -

At 31 December ®12A31H 4 4
At 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, particulars of 72024412 A31 8 % 2023F 12 A 31
the associate are as follows: H B2 ArFEET
Share capital / Proportion of
Place and date Paid up ownership Principal
Company of incorporation capital interest held activities
HE AR LR MR RESE REBHEXR BFENEEAERLLG TEEB
2024 2023
2024 % 2023 F
Rasa Bagus Restoran Singapore Ordinary S$4,000 40% 40%  The operation
Pte. Ltd. 15 December 2023 of food and
beverage stalls
Rasa Bagus Restoran Ny L@k 40% 40% IEEERIEA
Pte. Ltd. 2023F 12 1658 4,000 %7 I3 7T
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 220244 12 A31 HiF F/Z

24. TRADE PAYABLES

24, EZEANRIE

2024
2024 F
S$'000

2023
2023 F
S$'000

FHIFEIT  TEMET

Trade payables B 5B RIA

2,628

3,273

Trade payables are non-interest bearing. They are generally
settled within 15 days to 90 days credit terms.

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, trade payables were
mainly denominated in Singapore dollars.

Ageing analysis of trade payables based on invoice date as at
the end of the reporting period is as follows:

BHRNFARTFE  BERIERE

ORMEEHRALELN -

R2024F 2 2023F12 8318 &

NRIEE BT AR IS TETE

RERARRERAROE Z RN HIE

FRECOMTANT -

2024
2024 %
S$$'000

2023
2023
S$'000

FHEMEIT  TEROIKT

0 to 30 days 0ZE30K 2,623 3,270
31 to 90 days 31290K 1 2
91 to 180 days 91E 180K 4 1

2,628 3,273
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BT sk MY e (A8)

™IN (3T

For the year

ended 31 December 2024 # %2024 F 12 31 H1FF/E

25. ACCRUALS, OTHER PAYABLES AND DEPOSITS 25. fEstEH Htt ENFHERE K

RECEIVED, PROVISION FOR REINSTATEMENT

COSTS

HE  BERRRE

2024 2023
2024 F 2023 €
S$'000 S$'000

FHMEIT  THERIET

Accrued operating expenses (Note (a)) FERTE ER S (H5E () 2,989 2,556
Other payables (Note (b)) H b &~ 5 (M 5 (b)) 2,137 2,172
Advances received (Note (c)) B R (HIEE (c) 619 524
Deposits received (current portion) YR e (BNERER o) (B3 (d)
(Note (d)) 1,083 781
6,828 6,033
Add: Other payables and deposits received Al : E e~ 218 & 2 U 4 &
(non-current portion) (Note (e)) (GEBNERER ) (P E (e) 565 1,025
Provision for reinstatement costs 1EE A (FHFE)
(Note (f)) 484 302
7,877 7,360
Notes: BT AE -
(@) As at 31 December 2024, accrued operating expenses mainly (a) R2024F12A31H Bt & ERZEB

(c)

(f)

206

represented the accrued staff costs of approximately S$2,223,000 (2023:
approximately S$2,262,000).

The balances represented the unpaid balance of costs for construction (b)
work, property rents, utilities, clean services fees and property taxes.

The balances represented the balance of value cards issued to the (c)
customers of food and beverage stalls.

The balances represented the customers’ deposits received in advance (d)
from tenants of the Group's investment properties.

The balances included customers’ deposits received of S$565,000 (e)
(2023: S$699,000) and retention payable for the costs of construction

in progress under property, plant and equipment of S$491,000 (2023:

S$326,000).

The Group recognises provision for reinstatement costs in relation to (f)
the food courts that were leased by the Group as at the end of the year.

This provision is recognised for the expected costs for dismantling,

removal, and restoration of leased properties to their original state upon

expiry of the leases. In determining the amount of the provision for

restoration cost, estimates are made in relation to the best estimates of

the expenditure with reference to expenditures incurred or quotations

provided by third party contractor.
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&M ERRMNE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 220244 12 A31 HiF F/Z

26.

BORROWINGS . B
2024 2023
2024 F 2023 %
S$$000 S$'000
FEmiET  FEFMET
Classification under contractual terms: EHBRR TS
Current portion BERER &
Secured mortgage loans BEFIZIBER 2,898 2,827
Term loans EHER 146 204
Working capital loans EEESEN 6,847 4,075
9,891 7,106
Non-current portion FEENEAE o
Secured mortgage loans EEMIZIBER 84,500 80,491
Term loans TEHER 1,277 2,409
Working capital loans EEESER - 647
85,777 83,547
95,668 90,653
Effective floating interest rates ERFHRER
Secured mortgage loans BEMIZIBER 3.48%-4.70% 1.35%-4.95%
Term loans FEHER 3.90%-4.18% 4.55%-4.79%
Working capital loans BEESEN 2.00%-4.10% 2.00%-5.45%
The borrowings are repayable as follows: & EVERER T ¢
Within 1 year or on demand —FARIFENR 9,891 7,106
Within a period of more than 1 year HBIB—FE TR R A B A
but not exceeding 2 years 3,488 3,788
Within a period of more than 2 years HBBmFEE I ERRFREEN
but not exceeding 5 years 11,265 9,988
After a period of more than 5 years BB A F A HARE 71,024 69,771
95,668 90,653
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 &%= 20244 12 A31 HiFF/Z

26. BORROWINGS (Continued)

208

Note: As at 31 December 2024, the borrowings of approximately

S$95,668,000 (2023: approximately S$90,653,000) were secured by the
pledge of certain of the Group's (i) property plant and equipment (note
16), (i) investment properties (note 15), (iii) future rental income earned
from all of the Group’s investment properties, and certain properties
under property, plant and equipment, and; and (iv) corporate guarantee
of the Company and its subsidiaries.

As at 31 December 2024, the borrowings of the Group were
bearing interest at floating rates except for borrowings amounting to
S$13,545,000 (2023: $1,922,000) which were fixed rate borrowings
bearing interest at effective interest rate of 3.03% (2023: 3.73%). The
floating interest rates were benchmarked to Singapore Overnight Rate
Average (SORA).

As at 31 December 2024, the borrowings amounting to $S$6,622,000
(2023: Nil) were subject to interest rate swap agreements entered into
during the year to swap the floating interest rates of the borrowings,
which are at the SORA plus 1%, to the fixed interest rate at 3.90%
(2023: Nil) calculated on notional amount of S$7,006,000. The fair value
gain on the interest rate swap is immaterial to the consolidated financial
statements.

As of December 31, 2024, certain bank borrowings with a total carrying
amount of S$88,045,000 (2023: S$83,318,000) are subject to financial
covenants, which vary by loan facility. These covenants may include:

o A loan-to-value (LTV) ratio not exceeding a specified percentage,
ranging from 65% to 90%,

. A minimum net worth of S$20,000,000 for a subsidiary of the
Company,

. A minimum net worth of S$75,000,000 for the Group, and

. A minimum debt service coverage ratio (DSCR) of 2.25x.

Some loan facilities are subject only to LTV requirements, while others
also include net worth and/or DSCR conditions. The Group has complied
with all applicable covenants throughout the reporting period and it is
not foreseen that the Group would have difficulty in complying with
these covenants in the next twelve months after the end of the financial
reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 220244 12 A31 HiF F/Z

27. LEASE LIABILITIES

27. HEESE

The following table shows the remaining contractual
maturities of the Group's lease liabilities at the end of the

reporting period:

Present value

TRETHEMRAEEHER BN
TAEKNTHA

Present value

of minimum  of minimum Minimum Minimum

lease lease lease lease

payments payments payments payments

RERE RERE

FHHHRE [(ARMRE REEEMR HEAENX

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2024 2023 2024 2023

2024 F 2023 F 2024 F 2023 F

12A31H 12A31H 12A31H 12A31H

$$°000 S$'000 $$°000 S$'000

FHMET  FEHMET  FEHMERT  TEMET

Within 1 year —FR 3,524 3,353 3,796 3,670
After 1 year and within 2 years —FUERMFUA 2,840 3,218 2,975 3,409
After 2 years and within 5 years MEL FRFUR 1,954 3,241 2,061 3,324
8,318 9,812 8,832 10,403

Total minimum lease payments REHENRESE 8,832 10,403
Less: total future interest expenses & * R RFI B 2% (514) (591)
Present value of lease liabilities HEEERE 8,318 9,812
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 220244 12 A31 HiF F/Z

28. DEFERRED TAXATION 28. ELERIIE
The following are the deferred tax liabilities/(assets) FAREERARHELTHRIEEE (&
recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the E)RESHHBERAT -
year:

Accelerated
Lease Right-of-use depreciation

liabilities assets allowances Total
HEERE FHREEE NEFERE et
S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000

THMET  THIOET  THMET  THIOET

At 1 January 2023 2023461710 (1,491) 1,631 (109) (69)
Recognised upon initial recognition of A #IIAHEREE K

assets and liabilities BERER (642) 642 - -
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss me/GtA) aEx 465 (437) (10) 18
At 31 December 2023 20234612 A31H (1,668) 1,736 (119) (51)
Recognised upon initial recognition of A #IIAHEREE K

assets and liabilities BERRER (357) 357 - -
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss me/ GGt A) a5 663 (644) 4 23
At 31 December 2024 M2024%12 A31H (1,362) 1,449 (115) (28)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 220244 12 A31 HiF F/Z

29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. A
Number of
shares Share capital
R EE &S
HK$'000 S$'000
FHT FEMHE T
Authorised: EE

BREE0.01 75 T8 28K
M2023F 1818 -
2023512 A3 B R

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
At 1 January 2023,
31 December 2023 and

31 December 2024 2024512 A31H 10,000,000,000 100,000 17,668
Number of
shares Share capital
R &R [N
HK$'000 S$'000

TET TH KT

BRTRBE:

®2023F1 418
2023512 A31 B R
2024512 A31H

Issued and fully paid:
At 1 January 2023,
31 December 2023 and

31 December 2024 800,000,000 8,000 1,381

There was no change in the share capital of the Company FRN - ARBRAWEES) o
during the year.

ARREREARNEBRAREAEE

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are

to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. The Company
regularly reviews and manages the capital structure of the
Group and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes
in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure of the Group, the Company may adjust the
dividend payments to shareholders, issue new shares or to
obtain new bank borrowings. The Company is not subject to
any externally imposed capital requirements. The Company’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from 2023.

BB WABRREERBRE A
HinEm A5 A IR A i@%?
EEREBURDERKAN - AR
BRI R EEAEBAE ARE Il
JEAS AR L E B E TR o ﬁ%%jﬁ
BAREBMNERNER  KNABIAJEEFAE
ﬁ%%iﬁm%gﬁ ﬁﬁ%ﬁ&

BERITIER - AR FIBAETEM
%%mmm§$ﬁm $@7m%w“
& B 2023 F B MERF T8 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 &%= 20244 12 A31 HiFF/Z

30. RESERVES 30. A&

(a) Reserves (a) B
The amounts of the Group's reserves and the TEERFREANSBREREAF
movements therein for the current year and prior year ERE—FENEY BEREE
are presented in the consolidated statement of changes BHEHRES -
in equity.

(b) Statement of changes in equity of the (b) AATFEZEER
Company

Share Accumulated

premium losses Total
i 47 % 8 REtE#R @t
S$'000 S$'000 S$'000

THIEIT  THMET THIET

At 1 January 2023 K2023F1A1H 21,708 (4,458) 17,250
Loss and total comprehensive loss ~ FREER2HEGIEESE

for the year - (674) (674)
At 31 December 2023 and R2023F 12 A31H K

1 January 2024 202418 1H 21,708 (5,132) 16,576
Loss and total comprehensive loss ~ FRBERZHABIELE

for the year - (62) (62)
At 31 December 2024 M2024%12 4318 21,708 (5,194) 16,514
As at 31 December 2024, the Company had M2024%12 A31H » AR A AT #
distributable reserves of approximately S$16,514,000 Ik 7 5 4916,514,000 1 h1 3% 7T
(2023: S$16,576,000) calculated in accordance with (20234 : 16,576,000 7 h0 4 7T.)
the Company Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as DIRBERERERAFREFE2E
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. (1961 FEIFEN - Kixa K&

ST & -

212 K2 F&B HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2024



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ir e B R B B

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 220244 12 A31 HiF F/Z

(48

31. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE NN B 307 O S
COMPANY
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
S$'000 S$'000
T Fhn T T3 b3 T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in subsidiaries R B RRIMIEE —* —*
% _*
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries e LB B A R FRIA 33,665 31,505
Prepayments and deposits paid ENFEREMNIES - 67
Cash and cash equivalents RehkREEED 24 31
33,689 31,603
Current liabilities REAE
Accruals, other payables and FEET B - A 5RIE LB YR
deposits received & 610 661
Amounts due to subsidiaries FESTH B A R 5RIB 15,184 12,985
15,794 13,646
Net current assets and net assets RBEEFEREEFRE 17,895 17,957
Capital and reserves BEARRFEE
Share capital &z 1,381 1,381
Reserves HiE 16,514 16,576
Total equity B 17,895 17,957
* The balance represents an amount less than S$1,000. * kR TE ©EE A H 1,000 37 N4 T
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32. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS . REHERE
As lessor EREEA
Future minimum lease rental receivables under non- REBPRE BRRETTREEEE
cancellable operating leases of the Group as at the reporting ENRREEHERSBUGRIENT ¢

dates are as follows:

2024 2023
2024 5% 2023 F
S$'000 S$'000

FHIFEIT  TEMET

Within one year —F K 4,833 5,520
In the second year RE_F 2,175 2,641
In the third year RE=F 1,024 1,539
In the fourth year REME 544 187
In the fifth year RERF 522 -
9,098 9,887
Operating leases, in which the Group is the lessor, relate AEBATHEANCEHERNEE R
to investment properties owned by the Group with fixed ERREMERR KREETHEENKE
lease payments and lease terms of between 1 to 5 years - -HEBHAB1E5F (2023F : 124
(2023: 1 to 4 years). All operating lease contracts contain F) o WAMAITEREEEELD A
market review clauses in the event that the lessee exercises FReEHEaNIBEmEEE KRR -
its option to renew. The lessees do not have an option to FEABECHERERNEEYE -
purchase the property at the expiry of the lease period.
33. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 33. EREE
The Group had the following capital commitments at the end RIERR  AEEB U TERNRIE :
of the reporting period:
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
S$$000 S$'000

FHEMFEIT  TERIKT

Contracted, but not provided for BETHERETIEEE
— construction costs of a building — EFEEEA - 6,772

- 6,772
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34. ABEA RS

In addition to the information disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, the Group has the
following transactions with related parties:

Compensation of key management personnel
Compensation of key management personnel of the Group,

including directors’ remuneration as detailed in note 10
above, is as follows:

BEa M BRRRLDA FRENER
Sh - A D REB T TRS
TREREARNHH

AEET2EEEASNME (BEL
X0 EFFHB) 0T -

2024 2023
2024 F 2023 F
S$'000 S$'000

FHEMEIT  TEIKT

Directors’ fees = -Yokn 117 96
Salaries and bonuses %f/i\&++ 1,617 1,665

Contributions to defined contribution R FURIRET IR 3R
retirement plan 79 89
1,813 1,850

The remuneration of directors and key management
personnel is determined by the remuneration committee
having regard to the performance of individuals.

EERI2EEEABNFHAFTHNE
BERENALTHRREE -
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35.

216

ACQUISITION OF A PROPERTY THROUGH
ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 10 May 2024, U Property Holdings Pte. Ltd, an indirect
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a sales and
purchase agreement with Second Chance Properties Ltd
("Second Chance") to acquire the entire equity interest of
a wholly owned subsidiary of Second Chance, New Chance
Properties Pte. Ltd (“New Chance"”) at a total consideration
of S$$9,500,000. The principal activity of New Chance was
holding of properties as investments for rental income in
Singapore. The completion of the acquisition took place on
14 October 2024. The fair value of the property at the date of
acquisition amounted to S$9,500,000.

The assets acquired and liabilities assumed did not constitute
a business as defined in IFRS 3 Business Combinations and
therefore, the acquisition was not a business combination
and was accounted for as assets acquisition.

The acquisition had the following effect on the Group's

BERWE-EHEARWEYE

R2024F 58108 AR Al &2
& Mf B A AU Property Holdings Pte.
Ltd - 2 Second Chance Properties Ltd
([ Second Chance |) 5] 32 B & % :% -
LA % 42 X {8 9,500,000 7 h0 3% 7T 4 B8
Second Chance = & {1 B 2 7] New
Chance Properties Pte. Ltd (| New
Chance ]) /)2 ZB % # - New Chance
TEEBRARTNEREMEELRMA
DWARE - WEER20245F 1014
B MERKEBHNAFER
9,500,000 #1 iN# 7T °

P BB E M ATAE A B NMEK B
MBmELENEIREBAHPEEDN
7% AtZBRB I EREBEMA
EEREEREIIK -

REEBAE ZRBBHAEENEE

assets and liabilities on the date of acquisition: LEBEEMNFENT
S$'000
FEr T
Investment property B 9,500
Total consideration paid B EAE 9,500
Less: amount financed by mortgage loan B IERBERNRE SR (7,500)
Purchase consideration settled in cash LR & EE R RIBNRE 2,000
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FIENIIRE RIS EEY
Cash outflow on acquisition WEEANIR SR 2,000
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36. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 36. HE—REHEAQF
On 3 May 2023, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, MR2023FG5A3B ARBE2EWE
Eastern Native Limited entered into a sale and purchase ‘A @) Eastern Native Limiteds] L E &
agreement to dispose of the entire equity interest of a # 3% » M B 5 Goh Ching Huat %t 4 (38
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, FS700 Pte. Ltd. VE=ZF)HERRAZERB AR
("FS700") at cash consideration of $$6,500,000 in aggregate FS700 Pte. Ltd. ([FS700]) #) % ZRAS#E
to the purchaser, Mr. Goh Ching Huat, an independent third REREA 6,500,000 MM T - H
party. The disposal was completed on 23 August 2023 and EEZHEO RN 2023F8 A23HEK - A
the Group lost control over FS700 with effect from the same B 2L K FS7T00 M9 HI4E - AR B AR -
date.
The net assets of the disposed subsidiary over which control M 2023F8A23H BARIEHEMNE I
was lost on 23 August 2023 were as follow: EMBAREEFELT
S$'000
T3 N T
Net assets disposed of: EHENEETE:
Property, plant and equipment W - BE R 5,066
Cash consideration ReRE 6,500
Less: commission fee o Re 211)
Less: legal fee B EEEA (18)
Net cash consideration FHESNRE 6,271
Gain on disposal e M= 1,205
S$'000
T T
Cash inflow on disposal: HERESRA :
Net cash consideration FHERE 6,271
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

218

37. #ERHETHNEMITA

2024 2023
2024 F 20234
S$$000 S$'000
FHmiT  FEFMET
Financial assets EMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost: IR AR 2 A EE
— Trade and other receivables — B NEAMEYFRIE 612 526
— Deposits paid — BEfNHE 2,215 2,419
— Pledged bank deposits — BEBIRITER 1,015 1,015
— Cash and cash equivalents — REeRBREFEY 7,158 7,386
Financial assets at FVTPL: BRFEGAEBGN B EE :
— Other financial assets — HthemEE 788 743
— Listed equity securities — iR EES 47 48
11,835 12,137
Financial liabilities cRAE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: BEEK AT B ERMEE
— Trade payables — B SR IE 2,628 3,273
— Accruals, other payables and — EFTER - AMENFKIE
deposits received EBWHE 6,774 6,534
— Borrowings — &R 95,668 90,653
— Lease liabilities —HEAE 8,318 9,812
113,388 110,272
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38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 38. PFERLAFEER
The Group's financial instruments include trade and other AEESR T ABIEE S RH M EWGK
receivables, deposits paid, financial assets at FVTPL, pledged BB EAFESFAEZENS
bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, trade payables, MEE DEBRTER BREEBRS
accruals, other payables and deposits received, borrowings ZEY BIHRENKE BFEHR E
and lease liabilities. The nominal values less any estimated @FEH%IE&EH&?@% BRLEES
credit adjustments for financial assets and liabilities with a cEEREBERINPBELIR—FHEH
maturity of less than one year are assumed to approximate QF&EEﬁﬁf’ﬁ&ﬂﬁ.{l‘f%ﬂ%ﬁj B
their fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities with a REAERNFEMEE REZEMS o/
maturity of more than one year for disclosure purposes is BEATFEEZAREE RAR R FHEM
estimated to approximate to their carrying amounts and are &R T B AT EVS RO IR B T 45 R R AR IR R
estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at Ié%@fﬁ@/mﬁ S -
the current market interest rate that is available to the Group
and the Company for similar financial instruments.
The fair value of financial assets at FVTPL is set out below: EZATEFAEENEREEN A TE
AT
Fair value measurement
DFEHE
Level 1 Level 2
E—# et}
2024 2023 2024 2023
2024 5 2023 F 2024 F 2023%F
S$'000 S$'000 S$$'000 S$'000
FHMET  FEMET  FHMERT  FENET
Key management personnel ~ £ Z2EEAEASRE
life insurance policies - - 788 743
Listed equity securities iR EES 47 48 - -
Fair value of the Policies is based on the account value of the {%$E@Q$Tﬁ)}%ﬁ’\ﬁﬁﬁ“ﬂﬁf #I 1R
Policies as provided by the insurance company. Fair value of BRFPEBEMNE - LTREZESHNQF

the listed equity securities is based on the quoted market
value of the listed equity securities.

During the year, there was no transfer into or out of level 1,
level 2 or any other level. The Group's policy is to recognise
transfer between levels of the fair value hierarchy as at the
end of the reporting period in which they occur.

BNERLET Hx%%’é%%ﬁ’\] mIGHREFF °

RAFE IEBEALELE K F
“REEMEMER - REBOBRS
R ERRA AR R SRR g
RBEMREE-
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

220

The Group is exposed to financial risks arising from its
operations and the use of financial instruments. The key
financial risks include credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk.

The following sections provide details regarding the Group’s
exposure to the above-mentioned financial risks and the
objectives, policies and processes for the management of
these risks.

(a)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial
loss to the Group. The major classes of financial assets
of the Group are cash and cash equivalents, pledged
bank deposits, other financial assets and trade and
other receivables. For trade receivables, the Group
adopts the policy of dealing only with customers of
appropriate credit history. For other financial assets, the
Group adopts the policy of dealing only with high credit
quality counterparties.

As the Group does not hold any collateral, the maximum
exposure to credit risk for each class of financial
instruments is the carrying amount of that class of
financial instruments presented on the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The Group assesses concentration of credit risk by
monitoring the individual profile of its trade receivables
on an ongoing basis.

As at 31 December 2024, approximately 3% (2023:

18%) of the Group’s trade receivables were due from
the top five customers.
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(a) EERB
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BRHRAESEREEFEY &
WIRTHER HUemEE H
HREMEYHIE - LE ZHEK
REME  ARERANERE
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

(i)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables

The Group applies simplified approach for
providing for expected credit losses prescribed
by IFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime
expected loss provision for all trade receivables.
Based on historical experience, majority of trade
receivables were settled within credit term
and the Group received sufficient deposit from
these customers, hence the expected loss rate
of current trade receivables is assessed to be
approximately zero and no loss allowance on trade
receivable was recognised.

A default on receivables occurs when the
counterparty fails to make contractual payments
within 90 days of when they fall due. Financial
assets are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery, such as a debtor failing
to engage in a repayment plan with the Group
and the amount due is significantly larger than
the deposit received by the Group. The Group
categorises a receivable for write off when a
debtor fails to make contractual payments greater
than 180 days and the receivables is larger
than the deposit received by the Group. Where
receivables have been written off, the Group
continues to engage in enforcement activity to
attempt to recover the receivable due. When
recoveries are made, these are recognised in
profit or loss.

. BREREERFERBER (&)
(a) FERR (&)

(i) EZEUKE

AREBE KA A RBER
s mEEREIRAABRTE
AHREHEEEE  ZER
RARE E ZRUWGIARE
ReMEyEEREe - RIZ
Lﬁmﬁ REBnE 5 R
REEREERRNGEE M

ﬂ$%lﬁ%§§ﬁ%ﬁﬁ
WRE  HUAHE 5 EK
RENERERRGEFTOR

T UWEEREHEEKRE
HIE R -

FEWRIBE A TIRE F &
%#Q%E%%imiﬁé
HFBRELE EEAIETE
H Ry [0 U B - A 5 B 2 8
CREE - WmﬁﬁAxw
HARE B EREE
v%ﬁti%$%lwmm
W% AEBEBAREIN
KFRIERIBRIBIB 180K -
WHERKFEZNALEER
U ER ) #0208 - AR E W %
FEUGRIES B - BB
MWHEWRTE  AEE S HE
B 1T TIEAS B U [l 3% e
W SR IE - A UL HR RS - H X
TG R IB S FERR o
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

222

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

(ii)

Other financial assets at amortised costs

In respect of pledged bank deposits and cash and
cash equivalents, the credit risk is considered to
be low as the counterparties are reputable banks
incorporated in Singapore and Hong Kong with
good credit ratings. The existing counterparties
do not have defaults in the past. Therefore, ECL
rate of pledged bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents is assessed to be close to zero and no
provision was made as at 31 December 2024 and
2023.

Other receivables were mainly receivables from
multi-national companies or listed companies.
As a result, the directors assessed the expected
loss rate of other receivables was immaterial.
Thus, no loss allowance for other receivables was
recognised as at 31 December 2024 and 2023.

For deposits paid, management makes periodic
collective assessments as well as individual
assessment on the recoverability of deposits
based on historical settlement records and
past experience. The management committee
members of the Company believe that there is
no material credit risk inherent in the Group's
outstanding balance of deposits.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

(i)

Market risk

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to variable-rate borrowings and
bank balances due to changes of interest rate.

The directors of the Company consider the
Group's exposures in relation to the bank balances
are not significant as interest bearing bank
balances have short maturity period and thus they
are not included in sensitivity analysis.

The Group currently does not have any interest
rate hedging policy. However, management
closely monitors its exposure to future cash flow
interest rate risk as a result of changes in market
interest rates and will use interest rate swaps to
reduce the possible effects of changes in market
interest rates should the need arise. The interest
rate risk of the interest rate swap agreement
entered into by the Group is immaterial (note 26).

The Group's exposures to interest rates on
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk
management note 39(c).

. BB EREEERERBER (&)

(b) TiZEM
(i) FEEE
HRM RS KREEARZ

BZ S ERRRITEHRE
mfﬁé//|uiﬁt|J$ﬂ P8 ©

KAREERE A5EHR
RITHESRA RN E R~ E
K REZFBIRITERD
BHA A 852 Bt I E A
BREDHF -

AR EE B AT A A R Y
UK o %ﬁ m%ﬁ%ﬂ
R2EY EEEETUESR
Eﬁ%%*XﬁﬁmEﬂ%
R TeERnEmEREM
M) R 4 B LASRL A T 45 ) 3R
BNEEFE NEERIZ
B I 2 12 B 155 2 B0 1) R L B
R (MisE26) -

TEEHNSREENEER
Eimﬁ/\/m%bﬁiﬂ % & 38 Bt
F£39(c)
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

224

(b) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

As at 31 December 2024, if the interest rate on
all variable-rate borrowings had been 100 basis
points higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, the Group's profit for the year would
have been decreased/increased by approximately
SGD682,000 (2023: SGD752,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the end of each of the
reporting period and had been applied to the
exposure to interest rate risk for the borrowings
in existence at that date. The 100-basis point
increase or decrease represents management'’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in
interest rates over the period until the end of the
next reporting period. The analysis is performed
on the same basis during the reporting period.

Currency risk

In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the Group is not exposed to the inherent foreign
currency risk exposure as the carrying amounts
of the Group’s monetary assets denominated
in currencies other than functional currency of
the respective group entity at the end of each
reporting period are not material.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

. BB EREEERERBER (&)

Liquidity risk (c) MBELE
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter méﬂﬁéﬂ RIEARNE BN EXH
difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its REREHE—eREENH
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash Eﬁ%ﬁﬁz(ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁ&ﬁ& i3
or another financial asset. The Group's approach to EBRHBNER ALEEER
managing liquidity risk is to ensure, as far as possible, it FELRRN T AFUTREER
will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities E—EMExRERBESA &R
when due, such as maintaining sufficient cash and cash HIEBeE flngsrril
equivalents as disclosed in note 22 to the consolidated S REeEEM (REAVBHRE
financial statements. MIFE22 FTHE EE) o
The table below summaries the maturity profile of TERBABRBEENARTRERE
the Group’s financial liabilities based on contractual FREECREBENIRHER -
undiscounted repayment obligations.
As at 31 December 2024 A2024%12A31H
Weighted More than More than
average 1year 2 years
effective  On demand but less but less Total
interest or within than than Over undiscounted Carrying
rate 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flows amount
MmELH RERS,  BB1EE  BB2EE KRR
BRAE 15/ PR2E DRBE BB5E TEHE REE
% $$'000 §$'000 §5'000 $$'000 $$'000 $$'000
% THOEZ FEMET  FHEMER O FHEOER TEMRT THMER
Financial liabilities tREE
Trade payables EHRAFTE - 2,628 - - - 2,628 2,628
Accruals, other payables  fEZTEf - EfifER
and deposits received  FBR YRS - 6,209 565 - - 6,774 6,774
Borrowings Pﬁx 3.92% 12,947 6,560 19,681 94,894 134,082 95,668
Lease liabilities ReaE 4.10% 3,796 2975 2,061 - 8,832 8318
25,580 10,100 21,742 94,894 152,316 113,388
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39. BiERMEEBEEREEK (E)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) RBELRAMR (H)
As at 31 December 2023 72023412 A31H
Weighted More than More than
average On 1 year 2 years
effective demand but less but less Total
interest or within than than Over  undiscounted Carrying
rate 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flows amount
T REXY, RBIFRE  BB2FR RUERE
G YIE 15/ DR2E DRBE HBiBsE MERE FHE
% S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 $$'000 S$$'000 S$'000
%  FEmET O TEDET O TEMET O FEMER FENgEr TR
Financial liabilities SRAE
Trade payables ZHRAHE - 3273 - - - 3273 3273
Accruals, other payables  [EEF B » E A fE(S
and deposits received  FBREYFE - 5,509 1,025 - - 6,534 6,534
Borrowings & 4.18% 117 7139 23,860 99,294 141,410 90,653
Lease liabilities HEEE 3.59% 3,670 3,409 3,324 - 10,403 9,812
23,569 11,573 27,184 99,294 161,620 110,272
40. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 40. EXREE

226

The Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged throughout the year. The capital structure of
the Group consists of debt, which includes borrowings, as
disclosed in note 26, net of bank balances and cash and
equity attributable to owners of the Group, comprising share
capital and retained earnings. The management of the Group
reviews the capital structure from time to time. As a part of
this review, the management considers the cost of capital
and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the management, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, the issue of new shares and new debts.
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40. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of a
net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. For this purpose the Group
defines net debt as total debt (which includes interest-bearing
loans and borrowings), less cash and cash equivalents.
Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity. In order
to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares,
return capital to shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell

assets to reduce debt.

The net debt-to-adjusted equity ratio at 31 December 2024

EXEE (H)

AEELREGEHERHBER L RNE
BERERNRE - Bt $’§lﬂﬂfﬂ‘%
FEAEREHRE(BEGFEERK

fE3)  BRERREEFEY - i%uﬂﬁé
BEARmMAAEDARK - BRFFLFHEL
oA EKEAE ﬂ%iﬁﬂx%ﬁ’]ﬂxmﬁ
BoBTHERD MERREREEAS

SMEGREILEEENRES °

2024 FF % 2023912 A 31 HHEHE Y

and 2023 was as follows: KRB ERLENT ¢
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
S$$'000 S$'000
FHrmiox  FEMET
Total debts — Bank borrowings B4 % — RITE X 95,668 90,653
Less: Cash and bank balances IR MIRTTAE R (7,158) (7,386)
Net debt ERH#E 88,510 83,267
Total equity EmiaE 89,208 86,418
Net debt-to-adjusted equity ratio B/ FE & FHEE ALK 99.2% 96.4%
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41.
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PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

At 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, particulars of
the subsidiaries are as follows:

41.

o) PN

MN2024412 A31 8 %2023 12 A 31
B HEARFBOT

Proportion of

ownership
interest held
Place and date of Share capital/ BAENER AR A
Company incorporation Paid up capital 2024 2023  Principal activities
MEAR SR MRt ER B BRAE BHER 2024 2023F EFEEHK
Directly held:
EERE:
Entire Courage Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
("BVI")
15 November 2017
Entire Courage Limited EEERHS LRER1ET 100% 100% REER
((RBEZEE])
2017611 B 150
Eastern Native Limited BVI Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
30 January 2018
Eastern Native Limited EEERHS - LAR1ET 100% 100% REER
201841 A30H
Indirectly held:
BERE
Fu Chan F&B Group Pte. Ltd. Singapore Ordinary S$500,000 100% 100%  The ownership
10 December 2009 and operation of
food centres, and
management of food
and beverage stalls
Fu Chan F&B Group Pte. Ltd. Hohnyg - TR 100% 100% HERKLEERFD
2009 12 A 108 500,000 7 N3 7T AR EBESRIER
U Property Holdings Pte. Ltd. Singapore 1 Ordinary S$1,000,000 100% 100%  The ownership and
2 December 2008 operation of food
centres
U Property Holdings Pte. Ltd. N L@k 100% 100% HERKLEERFD
2008F 12 A 2H 1,000,000 ¥ A3 7T
CK Chu Holdings Pte. Ltd. Singapore Ordinary S$270,000 100% 100%  The ownership and
5 May 2005 operation of food
centres, and operation
of food and beverage
stalls
CK Chu Holdings Pte. Ltd. N - Rl 100% 100% HWERLEEERFD
20056 5H5H 270,000 7 N3 7T PAR B R B R AR L
FC 883 Pte. Ltd. Singapore Ordinary S$10,000 100% 100%  The ownership
18 March 2015 and operation of
food centres, and
management of food
and beverage stalls
FC 883 Pte. Ltd. 2N AR 100% 100% HEEREEERAL -
20153 A 18 H 10,000 7 03 7T DA E TR SRR
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41. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 41.

o) PNCIESAE )

Proportion of

ownership
interest held
Place and date of Share capital/ BAENAERARRLA

Company incorporation Paid up capital 2024 2023  Principal activities

i) PNCEE AR B R B RE,/BHER  2024F 2023F EBE¥K

Indirectly held: (Continued)

BESE: (8

Fu Chan F&B Pte. Ltd Singapore Ordinary S$300,000 100% 100%  The ownership and
29 January 2004 operation of food

centres

Fu Chan F&B Pte. Ltd N - EmR 100% 100% HWERKLEERFD
200441 A29H 300,000 ¥ AN T

Lady Boss Food Channel Pte. Ltd.  Singapore Ordinary S$1,000,000 100% 100%  The operation of food
18 March 2015 and beverage stalls

Lady Boss Food Channel Pte. Ltd. ¥ fns - TimR 100% 100% EEEHREN
201643 A18H 1,000,000 ¥7 03 T

FS 100 Pte. Ltd. Singapore Ordinary S$1 100% 100%  The operation of food
18 March 2015 and beverage stalls

FS 100 Pte. Ltd. N - gl 100% 100% & & B RREA
201543 418 H 1 ¥ T

FS 200 Pte. Ltd. Singapore Ordinary S$1 -* 100%  The operation of food
18 March 2015 and beverage stalls

FS 200 Pte. Ltd. N - Rl —* 100%  #8EBRIEAL
201543 A18H 13T T

FS 300 Pte. Ltd. Singapore Ordinary S$1 —* 100%  The operation of food
18 March 2015 and beverage stalls

FS 300 Pte. Ltd. 2N - AR —* 100% 48 EERRIEAL
201643 A18H 13N T

FS 400 Pte. Ltd. Singapore Ordinary S$1 100% 100%  The operation of food
18 March 2015 and beverage stalls

FS 400 Pte. Ltd. N - gl 100% 100% & E IR
201543 418 H 1 ¥ T

FS 500 Pte. Ltd. Singapore Ordinary S$1 100% 100%  The operation of food
18 March 2015 and beverage stalls

FS 500 Pte. Ltd. N - il 100% 100%  #8EE AR
201543 A18H 13T T

FS 600 Pte. Ltd. Singapore Ordinary S$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
18 March 2015

FS 600 Pte. Ltd. 2N - ik 100% 100% REZER
201643 A18H 13N T
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 &%= 20244 12 A31 HiFF/Z

l\‘/T\

41.
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PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 41.

BB~ A & 15 ()

Proportion of

ownership
interest held
Place and date of Share capital/ BAENAERARELA

Company incorporation Paid up capital 2024 2023  Principal activities

i) NGRS MRS R B BA BHER 20245 2023F EBEXR

Indirectly held: (Continued)

BESE: (8

FS 800 Pte. Ltd Singapore Ordinary S$1 100% 100%  The operation of food
18 March 2015 and beverage stalls

FS 800 Pte. Ltd N - LmAk 100% 100% 48 ERRIEAL
201643 A18H 13N T

FS 900 Pte. Ltd Singapore 18 March Ordinary S$1 - 100%  The operation of food
2015 and beverage stalls

FS 900 Pte. Ltd TN - TimR - 100% (EEERERN
201543 418 H 1 ¥ T

FS 881 Pte. Ltd Singapore Ordinary S$1 - 100%  The operation of food
18 March 2015 and beverage stalls

FS 881 Pte. Ltd N - EimAk - 100% 48 EERIEAL
201543 A18H 13T T

FC 882 Pte. Ltd Singapore Ordinary S$1 100% 100%  The operation of food
18 March 2015 and beverage stalls

FC 882 Pte. Ltd N - LmAk 100% 100% 48 ERRIEAL
201643 A18H 13N T

FC 884 Pte. Ltd Singapore Ordinary S$1 100% 100%  The operation of food
18 March 2015 and beverage stalls

FC 884 Pte. Ltd N - LAk 100% 100% EEERIEL
201543 418 H 1 ¥ T

FC 885 Pte. Ltd Singapore Ordinary S$1 - 100%  The operation of food
18 March 2015 and beverage stalls

FC 885 Pte. Ltd N - EimAk - 100% &8 EERRIERL
201543 A18H 13T T

FC 886 Pte. Ltd Singapore Ordinary S$1 - 100%  The operation of food
18 March 2015 and beverage stalls

FC 886 Pte. Ltd N - AR - 100% 48 ERRIEAL
201643 A18H 13N T

Food Dynasty Pte. Ltd. Singapore Ordinary S$1 100% 100%  The operation of food
5 May 2021 and beverage stalls

Food Dynasty Pte. Ltd. NS - TR 100% 100%  ASEE IR
202145454 1 ¥ T
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41.

42.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)  41. KiEB 2 A& 18 ()
Proportion of
ownership
interest held
Place and date of Share capital/ BENERARRLA
Company incorporation Paid up capital 2024 2023  Principal activities
i) PNCEE AR B R B RE,/BHER  2024F 2023F EBE¥K
Indirectly held: (Continued)
BESE: (8
Da Jia Hao Eating House Pte. Ltd.  Singapore Ordinary S$500,000 —* 100%  The operation of food
2 March 2022 and beverage stalls
Da Jia Hao Eating House Pte. Ltd. #7103 - TR - 100% EEBHREN
202243 A2H 500,000 ¥ N3 7T
First Capital Pte. Ltd. Singapore Ordinary S$4,121,350 100% 100%  Property holding
29 March 2018
First Capital Pte. Ltd. N - TR 100% 100% WEEE
201843 A29H 4,121,350 ¥ N3 7T
New Chance Properties Pte. Ltd.  Singapore Ordinary S$2 100% - Property holding
10 July 1999
New Chance Properties Pte. Ltd. #7013 - iR 100% - YERA
19997 H10H 2F N T
Lady Boss Food Paradise Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 85% - The operation of food
2 May 2023 and beverage stalls
Lady Boss Food Paradise Limited ~ &% - TmR 85% - REEHEN
202345 A82H 10,000 7T
* The subsidiaries were struck off during the year ended 31 December * ZEMBRARNREZE2024F12 A31ALLF

2024.

All of the above subsidiaries operate principally in Singapore
except Lady Boss Food Paradise Limited which operates
principally in Hong Kong. None of the subsidiaries had any
debt securities outstanding as at 31 December 2024 or at any

time during the years.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

42.

There were no significant events after the reporting period for
the year ended 31 December 2024.

K2 F&B HOLDINGS LIMITED / 2024 5 =

B AR o

BrE 2R EBLE M Lady Boss Food

Paradise Limited 9]

FirrAEME AR

FTEEFMBELL - R2024F 12 A 31

B FERNEMERE  SENEA

AARERERE
HREE

AAE

HE2024F 12 A3 HILFERE EAM
% MEEREEEAL -
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Five Years Financial Summary

AFITIFHE

For the five years ended 31 December 2020, 2021, 2022, 2023 and

Bl £ 20204 ~ 20214 ~ 20224 - 2023%F &

2024: 2024F 12 A3 BRI AEFE -
RESULTS E
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A3MBLEE
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
2024 5 2023 F 2022 F 20214 2020 4
$$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000
FHME T  FEMET  FTEMET  FEHMET  FEMET
Revenue Wz 57,172 55,740 47,290 37,386 34,901
Profit before tax BRE AR T 3,077 7,919 6,176 5,004 2,467
Income tax expense FTiSRif X (284) (609) (502) (436) (277)
Profit for the year FEEF 2,793 7,310 5,674 4,568 2,190
Profit for the year attributable to: JA N AT FE(S
FEREF
Owners of the Company KRFHEEBA 2,811 7,310 5,674 4,568 2,190
Non-controlling interests FEERR RS (18) - - - -
2,793 7,310 5,674 4,568 2,190
Total comprehensive income LA T AT fE(S
attributable to; PHEKEARE:
Owners of the Company KRFHEE A 2,809 7,310 5,674 4,568 2,190
Non-controlling interests SEPERR I (19) - - - -
2,790 7,310 5,674 4,568 2,190
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
As at 31 December
MW12A31H
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
2024 5 20234 2022 % 20214 20204
$$'000 S$$'000 $$'000 S$'000 S$'000
FHMET  FEMET  FEMET  FTENET  FTERMET
Total assets EEHBE 204,045 198,129 190,815 167,837 147,756
Total liabilities BERTE 114,837 111,711 113,241 95,937 80,424
89,208 86,418 77,574 71,900 67,332
Equity attributable to the RREHEB A
owner of the Company Bl 89,227 86,418 77,574 71,900 67,332
Non-controlling interest FEER (19) - - - -
89,208 86,418 77,574 71,900 67,332
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